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Chairman’s Statement

EREH|E

I am pleased to present the 2022 annual results of Xingfa Aluminium
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”, “the Company”, or “Xingfa Aluminium”).

The year 2022 has been an extraordinary year for Xingfa Aluminium.
The real estate industry remained sluggish due to the complicated
and changeable external environment, such as international
geopolitical tensions, drastic changes in industrial policies, ups and
downs in the market and fluctuations in raw material prices, coupled
with sporadic COVID-19 outbreaks across China, which dragged
down the market demand for aluminium profiles. All these factors
added many difficulties and uncertainties to the development of the
Company. However, under the leadership of the board of directors,
all staff of Xingfa Aluminium met the challenges with a positive and
pragmatic attitude. It led innovation and stabilised the production
order during the year to supply high-quality aluminium profile
products to meet various needs of customers. Finally, both the
revenue and sales volume hit an all-time high in the tough year.

Xingfa Aluminium, as a long-term close partner of major real estate
developers in China, continuously participated in the construction of
important landmark projects as a main supplier, with the provision of
high-quality construction aluminium products for projects, including
Beijing Ronsin Technology Centre, Suzhou China Central Place,
Wuhan Great River Centre and Xiamen Winland International Finance
Centre. Participation in landmark projects not only confirms that
Xingfa Aluminium has been recognised by industry leaders in the
field of construction aluminium profiles, but also helps further
enhance its brand awareness. This allows it to establish a solid
foundation, win more new orders and achieve sustainable and high-
quality development.
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In 2022, the revenue of the Group increased by 9.7% year on year to
a record high of approximately RMB16,933,100,000 (2021:
RMB15,432,900,000), and the sales volume rose by approximately
3.7% year on year to a record high of 710,534 tonnes (2021:
685,006 tonnes), of which the sales of construction aluminium
profiles and industrial aluminium profiles accounted for 81.1% and
16.1% of the revenue, respectively. Gross profit for the year was
approximately RMB1,774,700,000 (2021: RMB1,811,800,000), a
year-on-year decrease of 2.0%. However, the continuous impact of
the pandemic on production and the increasingly fierce market
competition significantly affected the gross profit margin during the
year. In addition, due to the financial difficulty faced by certain real
estate developers, the Group had to make a one-time impairment
provision for some accounts, resulting in a sharp decline in the profit
attributable to shareholders for the year.

Despite the huge challenges in the macro environment, our pace of
development has not slowed down, and we continuously improved
the quality of management, making preparations for seizing future
opportunities. Xingfa Aluminium has maintained its leading position
in the industry for a long time, thanks to the continuous
improvement of technology, research and development, products,
services and management of the Group over the years. Although the
external environment is uncertain, we still kept up with the pace of
market changes, gained insight into customer needs, focused on
creating value, and adjusted our goals in time, with a view to
providing products with higher quality and more responsive to
market demands. In the process of promoting intelligent
manufacturing, we also adopted modern digital management to
drive a new round of digital transformation, and focused on
intelligent manufacturing with Foshan Sanshui Precision Base as a
pilot, seeking to improve production benefit and cut costs, and good
results were achieved.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREH|E

In terms of business, we adhered to the dual-engine development
path of "construction profiles + industrial profiles”, aiming to
establish a healthier revenue portfolio. As a major player in the field
of construction aluminium profiles, Xingfa Aluminium inevitably
faced great challenges due to the deep adjustment of the real estate
industry. However, instead of being discouraged, we stepped up
efforts to explore cooperation opportunities with high-quality market
players, such as central-government-controlled and state-owned
enterprises, and strove for more public construction projects to build
new revenue streams and overcame challenges from the external
environment. As the pandemic situation gradually improved and a
series of policies were introduced to support the healthy development
of the real estate market, we firmly believe that Xingfa Aluminium,
relying on the business foundation established over the years, can
gain huge opportunities in the current market to prop up the
development of new businesses. As far as industrial profiles are
concerned, it made presence in the fields of electronic consumer
products and lightweight transportation. Last year, the Group
entered the supply chain of new-energy vehicles for the first time and
participated in the supply of some aluminium profile parts, marking a
key milestone for the Group to increase its presence in the industrial
field.

To support the long-term development of the Group, especially the
innovation in the field of industrial aluminium profiles, we actively
promoted intelligence and digitalisation, and optimised production
process, product research and development, information technology,
sales process and human resources management, etc., so as to
consolidate our competitive edges and realise a leap forward in
efficiency and benefit. In the meantime, we continuously improved
services, technology and product quality, and enhanced the brand
influence and popularity of Xingfa Aluminium from multiple angles.
We further increased operational efficiency and strengthened
competitiveness while creating higher value for customers, working
together to create a win-win situation.
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In the future, as the domestic pandemic prevention and control
situation continues to improve, the Chinese economy is expected to
return to the right track of rapid development. The recent favourable
policies for the real estate sector deliver a clear signal of the slow
market recovery and lay a good foundation for the all-round
recovery. Xingfa Aluminium will seize the market opportunities and
implement the development strategies proposed at the Twentieth
CPC National Congress. It will follow the new development
philosophy, vigorously support new technologies, new models and
new formats, develop and extend related industrial chains and
upgrade the value chain, striving to create a new higher-quality
development model and demonstrate the Group's high resilience and
huge development potential in the challenging future.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my
heartfelt thanks to all shareholders and customers for their long-term
support. In the future, Xingfa Aluminium will devote to promoting
the high-quality development of its business and growing stronger
and better, with an attempt to becoming a first-class aluminium
profile company with global competitiveness, and actively bringing
richer and sustainable returns to our shareholders. Thank you.

WANG Li
Chairman

Foshan China, 15 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE R

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Industry Review

Dragged down by uncertainties such as the downward trend of the
real estate industry and the COVID-19 pandemic, China’s aluminium
processing industry faced a great test in 2022. Affected by macro
policies such as deleveraging and “three red lines (Z§4L4%)", the
domestic real estate industry has undergone major adjustments, and
some developers have gone bankrupt and closed down due to capital
chain problems. According to the data published by National Bureau
of Statistics, sales area of commercial housing was 1.36 billion square
metres in 2022, down by 24.3% as compared to last year. Sales of
commercial housing amounted to RMB13.3 trillion, representing a
year-on-year decline of 26.7%. Due to poor project sales and strict
industry regulation, the majority of real estate developers slowed
down the pace of project development, inevitably affecting the
construction aluminium profile market. Fortunately, with the release
of favourable policies such as “New Nine Guidelines (¥7/L1§)" at the
end of the Year, China’s real estate industry is slowly walking out
from the trough. As a major manufacturer and supplier of
construction aluminium profiles, the Group, riding on its partnerships
with key property developers, actively consolidated its business,
continuously improved its internal operational efficiency and strove
to expand its product portfolio in order to facilitate the development
of diversified aluminium profile business.

Business Review

In the past year, Xingfa Aluminium encountered unprecedented
challenges in operation, sales, delivery and even business expansion.
First of all, the downturn in the real estate sector has weakened the
demand for aluminium profile products, and some peers adopted
more competitive approaches to compete for orders, resulting in a
downward trend in processing fees. In the meantime, in-situ control
was implemented in many regions in China amid the ongoing
pandemic, leading to disruptions in the supply chain of raw materials
and making it difficult for employees to report duty. In addition,
many local authorities imposed restrictions on the use of electricity
and production due to the continuous high temperature in summer,
which posed a negative impact on the overall production efficiency
of the Group, among which the Chengdu factory was hit the
hardest.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Thanks to the untiring efforts of all staff of Xingfa Aluminium, the
Group actively strengthened its business scale during the Year and
rose to the occasion under extremely difficult circumstances to ensure
double growth in sales and production. As a major player in the
construction aluminium profile industry, the Group was inevitably
affected by the negative situation in the industry. During the Year,
the Group made a specific provision of impairment loss on trade
receivables due from certain property sub-contractors, amounting to
approximately RMB552.8 million. However, the Group was still able
to record profits, fully demonstrating the strong resilience of its
business.

In order to cope with the complicated and ever-changing situation,
Xingfa Aluminium sought changes while maintaining stability,
actively fine-tuned its business portfolio, and tried to minimise
controllable operational risks. In 2022, the Group strengthened
cooperation with central-government-controlled enterprises, state-
owned enterprises and listed real estate developers with relatively
healthy cash flows and reasonable gearing ratio. With the reputable
participation in the construction of landmark projects over the years,
it strengthened cooperation with local governments to provide high-
quality construction aluminium profiles for public facilities projects,
including bridges, exhibition halls and airports. Meanwhile, the
Group actively expanded its presence in the retail market by offering
aluminium profiles to door and window manufacturers and
decoration companies as a wholesaler, allowing Xingfa’s products to
enter into more people’s homes and continuously enhancing its
brand influence.

In addition to optimising and adjusting the construction aluminium
profile business, the Group has also made breakthroughs in the field
of industrial aluminium profiles. With the growing penetration of
new-energy vehicles, the market demand for aluminium parts has
also increased. In 2022, the Group entered into the supply chain of
new-energy vehicles for the first time and acquired customers of
new-energy vehicle brands, with the provision of aluminium profile
components such as battery trays and anti-collision beams, which
greatly boosted the Group’s confidence in developing industrial
aluminium profile business. In order to better grasp the market
opportunities and seize the market share in various segments, the
research and development team of the Group will keep
strengthening the research and development of industrial aluminium
profiles, with a view to developing new lighter and more efficient
products. At the same time, the Group actively increased its
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE R

production capacity to seize opportunities, and Foshan Sanshui
Precision Manufacturing Base was fully put into operation in 2022.
The precision base, which attaches importance to digitalisation and
overall production process, greatly improved production efficiency as
compared with traditional factories. The project was certified as a
digital landmark project in Foshan during the Year, and received a
subsidy of RMB15 million. The Group believes that the new factory
will establish a solid foundation for Xingfa to undertake orders of
industrial aluminium profiles, and will help the Company rapidly
increase its market share in various application fields in the next few
years, so as to achieve more diversified development. Moreover,
construction for the new project located in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province has officially commenced. The new factory will initiate and
enhance digitalisation and automation, aiming to become Xingfa’s
“Intelligent Manufacturing 2.0". It strives to produce high-quality
aluminium profile products with advanced technology and
equipment, which is expected to come into production in 2023.

In terms of overseas business, the Group has strengthened its
connections with corporate customers, while offering quality
aluminium profile products to cater market demand in the post-
pandemic era. The Group continuously pushed forward with plant
construction plan, in a bid to achieve balanced development and
meet potential market demand. For instance, a joint venture project
in Australia has been approved, which is expected to complete
equipment installation, commissioning and trial production within
2023. Meanwhile, it continuously conducted research in ASEAN,
seeking to build the first production facility in the region. The Group
believes that setting up factories overseas will help the sales team
better understand customer needs and the production team to
achieve faster delivery, which will enable Xingfa to further expand its
overseas business and gradually develop into an international
aluminium profile manufacturer and distributor.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue and sales volume
of the Group increased by 9.7% and 3.7% to approximately
RMB16,933.1 million and 710,534 tonnes respectively (2021:
RMB15,432.9 million and 685,006 tonnes respectively), of which the
sales of construction aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium
profiles accounted for 81.1% and 16.1% of the revenue respectively.
The gross profit of the Group for the Year decreased by 2.0% year-
on-year to approximately RMB1,774.7 million. The gross profit
margin decreased to 10.5% (2021: 11.7%), and such decrease was
mainly due to the increase in the procurement costs during the Year
as a result of the increase in the price of raw materials. During the
Year, the profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately RMB457.8 million, representing a decrease of 48.4%
year-on-year.

Construction Aluminium Profiles

Construction aluminium profiles are surface treated aluminium
profiles mainly used for the construction and installation of doors and
windows, curtain walls, ceilings and blinds and other decorative
products.

In 2022, the revenue of construction aluminium profiles increased by
13.5% year on year to approximately RMB13,727.4 million (2021:
RMB12,093.5 million), and sales volume grew by 6.7% year on year
to approximately 570,071 tonnes (2021: 534,309 tonnes).

Industrial Aluminium Profiles

Industrial aluminium profiles are mainly plain aluminium profiles,
which can be used as container frames and other products such as
new conductive profiles of urban railway locomotives and ship
components. In addition, they can also be made into different forms
and shapes, such as heat sinks of central processing units (CPUs) and
displays and frames of consumer electronic products.

The revenue of industrial aluminium profiles decreased by 5.1% year
on year to approximately RMB2,723.0 million (2021: RMB2,869.9
million) in 2022, and sales volume dropped by 7.7% year on year to
approximately 132,977 tonnes (2021: 144,096 tonnes).
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PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2023, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the aluminium profile processing industry and its own business.
After a long period of adjustment, the real estate industry is believed
to resume to a steady and orderly development under the boost of
new policies, which will give rise to the demand for aluminium profile
products. The Group is confident that the sufficient resilience of
Xingfa Aluminium will enable it to overcome the challenges ahead
and, realise business growth as in the past in spite of adversity, which
will strengthen the Group’s position in the aluminium profile
processing industry.

The challenges in recent years have made the Group more aware of
the importance of continuous internal change. Through several years
of efforts, the Group has achieved certain results in digital
transformation, especially in intelligent manufacturing. In the future,
the Group will strive to improve the efficiency of management,
production, sales and research and development, so as to reduce
costs and expenses, continuously enhance profitability and cost-
effectiveness, and enable the Group to be resistant to challenges.

Furthermore, Xingfa will continuously expand its overseas presence
and seek to establish a more complete production network, so as to
allow the Group to have greater flexibility to seize opportunities in
such uncertain business environment. In addition to the joint venture
project based in Australia, which is expected to be put into
production in 2023, the Group also seeks to set up another
production base in an ASEAN member state to achieve better
business synergy between the two bases, with an aim to improve the
operational efficiency of overseas business from multiple perspectives
and accelerate the overall overseas development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue and sales volume of the Group for the Year increased by
9.7% and 3.7% year-on-year to approximately RMB16,933.1 million
and 710,534 tonnes respectively (2021: RMB15,432.9 million and
685,006 tonnes respectively). The growth of revenue was attributable
to the increase in sales orders during the Year.

The sales volume of construction aluminium profiles for the Year
increased by 6.7% to approximately 570,071 tonnes (2021: 534,309
tonnes). Meanwhile, the sales volume of industrial aluminium profiles
for the Year decreased by 7.7% to approximately 132,977 tonnes
(2021: 144,096 tonnes).

The following table sets forth the details of our revenue by reportable
segments for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Manufacturing and sale of aluminium profiles A K $5 65 SR80 4
— Construction aluminium profiles — BERAREM

— Industrial aluminium profiles — T eaM

All other segments P78 B fth 53 BP
Total Et

Note: Our Group's revenue from all other segments represented revenue generated
from processing service contracts related to aluminium products, sale of office
premises and residential properties and sale of aluminium panels, aluminium
alloy, moulds and spare parts.
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RAFE  AEBZEEBREERT DRI
$19.7% K. 3.7% &= #9 A R % 16,933,100,000 7T
K710534M( =2 = —F: DRl AARE
15,432,900,000 7T } 685,006 8 ) o 5% & 3£ 55 1%
RIEEHNFRNHERTEIZIMATE -

RAFE  BEPBAMESEIN6T%EL
570,071 M (== ——4 : 534,309 M) - Ed |t [A]
Br MAFE  TEREAMBEERDTII%NE
#9132,977M8(ZZF = —4F : 144,096 1) -

TRV AEBEREE S _—_FR T - —
F+-_A=Z1+—HIFERAIERSBE DK
EERFG

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T
13,727,371 12,093,485
2,723,032 2,869,879
16,450,403 14,963,364
482,661 469,536
16,933,064 15,432,900

Bifet - ANERERE TR R D HE S X BRIRE 2
ITRBAH  HERRAMERTEWEARHE R
R Eae  RARTRMFAMEERNEEE -
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group for the Year decreased by 2.0% year-
on-year to approximately RMB1,774.7 million (2021: RMB1,811.8
million).

The overall gross profit margin for the Year of the Group decreased
by 1.2% to 10.5% (2021: 11.7%), and the sales to production ratio
increased slightly to 99% (2021: 97%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles in 2022 and 2021:

Construction aluminium profiles FEER SR
Industrial aluminium profiles T ESRAM

The gross profit margin of construction aluminium profiles and
industrial aluminium profiles deceased to 10.3% and 6.6% for the
Year respectively as compared to that of 2021. Such decrease was
mainly because the increase in the costs of raw materials.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the Year remained stable at
approximately RMB132.1 million (2021: RMB133.0 million), which
was mainly attributable to the combined effect of the decrease in
interest income and the increase in net foreign exchange gain.

Distribution costs

The distribution costs of the Group for the Year decreased by 8.3%
to approximately RMB288.4 million (2021: RMB314.6 million), which
accounted for 1.7% of the revenue (2021: 2.0%). The decrease was
mainly due to the effective cost control implemented and better
bargaining power over the sales distribution channels by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year remained
stable at approximately RMB410.5 million (2021: RMB401.1 million),
which accounted for 2.4% of the revenue (2021: 2.6%).

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The impairment loss on trade and other receivables of the Group for
the Year increased by RMB472.6 million to RMB552.1 million (2021:
RMB79.5 million), which was mainly attributable to the loss
allowances provided for the credit-impaired trade receivables
amounted to RMB552.8 million. Such loss allowances were provided
for after considering the recoverability of trade receivables due from
certain property sub-contractors as a result of negative situation in
construction aluminium profile industry.

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by 37.4% to approximately RMB138.9 million
for the Year (2021: RMB101.1 million) mainly due to the overall
increase in loans and borrowings during the Year.

Profit for the Year and net profit margin

The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”) for the Year decreased by 48.4% year-on-year to
approximately RMB457.8 million (2021: RMB887.8 million). The
decrease was mainly attributable to a provision of impairment loss on
trade and other receivables of approximately RMB552.1 million
(2021:RMB79.5 million) made by the Group during the Year.

EREMRR D

ITRAX

EHit - RAFE - AEBEZTHAZH#FTE
EHARM410,500,000C(ZFTE=—F : AR
#5401,100,0007T ) * h & EF224% (= F
:—E‘E : 2.60/0) ©

ReREMEVRRBERESR

REBFANE G K E M EURGIRRE BB M
AR # 472,600,000 TE AR 552,100,000 7T

—T - —%:79,500,0007T) TEHNEE
BEEZERFEREHEREBEARE
552,800,000 7T ° /£ B 2| R B E in M &Y
TRIBEAMEBNE TUESBENE HEW
SRIAR AT YL B M FR 4 il s HE 1 o

B AR AN

B 75 A N8 AN 37.4% & 49 A B2 #5 138,900,000 7T
—E-—%: AR¥101,100,0007T) * ThEZE
HARAFEER R EEREEIE I -

N B A R AR =

RARPRER (IR ) BIEAFERFIZFERD
48 4% EH AR #EA457,800,0000( = F ——4F ¢
AR 887,800,0007T) ° 2B HEZHRAK
SERFANEE S REMBEKIEFRBER
BHARKES52,100,000C(ZFE-—F: AR
79,500,000 7T) °

------------------- Annual Report 2022 F 2 17



Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE R

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out our Group’s current and quick ratios as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Current ratio (Note i) TRBILL & (Bfat i)
Quick ratio (Note ij) RELL S (Bt et i)
Notes:

(i) Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the total

current liabilities at the end of the year.

(ii) Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current assets
and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Both ratios as at 31 December 2022 increased as compared to those
as at 31 December 2021. Such increases were in line with higher
level of cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2022 due to
higher utilization of banking facilities.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out our Group’s gearing ratio as at 31
December 2022 and 2021:

Gearing ratio (Note) BB E (M)

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings divided by total

assets and multiplied by 100%.

The gearing ratio increased for the Year as compared to that of 2021
which was mainly due to the increase in the balances of loans and
borrowings as at 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Inventory turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s inventory turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

FEREH (K )

Inventory turnover days (Note)

Note: Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and

ending inventory balance before provision for the periods divided by the total
cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The production efficiency was improved due to better arrangement
on production plans, leading to a reduction in inventory backlog and
the inventory turnover days for the Year.

Debtors’ turnover days

The following table sets out our Group’s debtors’ turnover days
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Debtors’ turnover days (Note)

Note: Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and

ending balance of trade and bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
for the periods divided by revenue during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The debtors’ turnover days increased for the Year as compared to
that of 2022. This was mainly because the Group provided a slightly
longer credit period to its debtors generally during the Year.

JE W AR SR RC AR HA (A )
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Creditors’ turnover days PE{ BR FRAC AR A
The following table sets out our Group’s creditors’ turnover days FR&EIAEFRHEZE_TE_—_Fr_T=
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021: FH+ZA=+—BUHEFEZEMERGCERSA
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Creditors’ turnover days (Note) FEfS R AR B (M aE) 92 88
Note: Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning and Kist : FEfTERERNEEBR HA LA R W) R HRAR 2 2 5 FE A~ 2008 K FE )
ending balance of trade and bills payables for the periods divided by the total ERLEs T TG IAERZEER A BLERE
cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days. 365 HEt&E

The creditors’ turnover days for the Year increased as compared to RAARFEE » ENEFHGCERR T - —F
that of 2021. This was mainly because of better negotiation power — F o l}t J3F EHRANE B HERI AL HESE
of the Group.

Loans and borrowings EREEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's loans and borrowings R—-Z-——&#+—-HA=+—H KEEZER

dominated in RMB amounted to approximately RMB2,499.0 million  R{EEUAREFHEDN A AR 2,499,000,000

(31 December 2021: RMB1,751.4 million), of which approximately gT(=—Z&Z—-—®+-_A=4+—H: AR

RMB550.5 million were fixed rate borrowings (31 December 2021:  1,751,400,0007T) @ H e #) A R# 550,500,000

RMB632.6 million). TREENEEE(ZEZ—F+ZA=+—
H : AR#632,600,0007T) °

Save for typically lower borrowing requirements in the first quarter of BREBHEBRIRSAEEE—=ZENEEE
the Year due to holidays during the Chinese Lunar New Year, there  S@ESEIN - REBHETEEERKW ES

was no seasonality in the Group’s bank borrowing requirements. S o
Banking facilities and guarantee RITEEHEERER

As at 31 December 2022, the banking facilities of the Group ®R—-ZT—-——#+—-HA=4+—H - ZK'*@Z%E?‘T
amounted to approximately RMB12,004.0 million (31 December {ZE%E 442 AR #12,004,000,0007T (=

2021: RMB9,023.0 million), of which approximately RMB5,039.0 ——%+=-HF=+—8 : }\Eﬁ%9,023,000,000

million were utilised (31 December 2021: RMB5,185.0 million). 7T H A4 AR #5,039,000000T( =
——F+ZA=+—H: AR%¥H5,185,000,000
T)EEA -

No banking facilities were guaranteed by related parties of the WHIEITZEREEDEAREBBEHIER o
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights. During the Year, our Group's capital
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB975.1 million (2021:
RMB686.8 million). The significant increase in capital expenditure
during the Year was mainly due to the acquisition of equipment and
lease prepayment for our production plants.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had 420,649,134 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue. During the Year, a total of
1,152,800 ordinary shares of the Company were issued upon the
exercise of share options granted under the share option scheme of
the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.46 per share by a Director
and certain employees of the Group.

Financial instruments for hedging purposes

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group used
commodity futures contracts in the Shanghai Futures Exchange to
manage the commodity price risk exposure in respect of the highly
probable forecast purchase of aluminium products. The Group
designates those commaodity futures contracts as hedging instruments
in cash flow hedges and does not separate the forward and spot
element of the commodity futures contracts but instead designates
the commodity futures contract in its entirety in a hedging
relationship.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in both short term and long term.

Certain sales and purchases of inventories of the Group are
denominated in the United States (“US") dollars and Hong Kong
("HK™) dollars. Furthermore, certain trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and bank loans are denominated in US dollars and HK
dollars, therefore exposing the Group to the currency risk of US
dollars and HK dollars. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group used forward exchange contracts to manage its exposure
to fluctuations in the exchange rate of US dollars.
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CASH FLOW HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets out our Group’s cash flow highlights during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

BERERE

TREVWAEEREBEE_E__FN_T - —
F+-_A=Z+—BULFEZHESRERE -

2022 2021

2022 £ 20214

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®FT AREFIT

Net cash generated from operating activities 484 EENFT1SIR & /850 790,767 1,333,295

Interest received B UF A 59,344 78,083
Payment for purchase of property, plantand ~ BEE % - FE K& M1

equipment and land use rights FRAE 2R (975,097) (686,834)

Interest paid SAHFLE (139,052) (92,742)

Net increase in bank borrowings RITEEIG INFEE 747,647 621,067

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the B fIZARR FIRESARER 2 IE 5
Company (285,419) (123,631)

We generally finance our operations through internally generated
cash flows and bank borrowings. Our Directors believe that on a
long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from operations and, if
necessary, additional equity financing or bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB1,849.8 million (31 December 2021: RMB1,643.1 million),
among which 1.54% was held in US dollars, 2.04% was held in HK
dollars and the remaining balance was held in RMB.

SALE OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
(i) Xingfa Plaza

“Xingfa Plaza” (% K [&), a property project wholly-owned
by the Group, is located at the northern side of Jihua Road and
western side of Changang Road, Chancheng District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The land use rights of the
property were granted for a term of 40 years expiring on 19
May 2050 for commercial service, office, culture and
entertainment uses. The property comprises a parcel of land
with a site area of approximately 16,961.36 sq.m. and a gross
floor area of approximately 123,527.29 sq.m..
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Year, 9 units of “Xingfa Plaza” (# 2 X [Z) had
been sold and delivered. The revenue recognized from such
sale for the Year amounted to approximately RMB8.1 million
(2021: RMB13.1 million).

(ii) Other properties

During the Year, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements with certain property developers, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to purchase certain properties at a
consideration of RMB176.4 million (2021: Nil). As at 31
December 2022, the Group has completed the purchase of
properties of RMB115.3 million and has obtained the relevant
ownership certificates in respect of such properties. As at 31
December 2022, such properties were recorded as inventories
of the Group. In addition, the Group received the remaining
properties of RMB61.1 million without obtaining the related
ownership certificates and such properties were recorded under
prepayments of the Group as at 31 December 2022. The
Group intended to hold all such properties for sale at market
price in subsequent period.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, our Group employed a total of
approximately 9,366 full time employees in the PRC and Hong Kong
which included management staff, technicians, salespersons and
workers. In 2022, our Group's total expenses on the remuneration of
employees were approximately RMB1,092.5 million, represented
approximately 6.5% of the revenue of our Group. Our Group’s
emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employees and directors, which will be reviewed regularly every year.
Apart from the provident fund scheme (according to the provisions
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong
employees), housing fund, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance (according to the PRC rules
and regulations for PRC employees), discretionary bonuses and
employee share options are also awarded to employees and directors
according to the assessment of individual performance. In-house and
external training programmes are provided as and when required.
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EERGREEAS

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Li (“Mr. Wang”), aged 44, has been an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company (“Chairman”) since 14
April 2022. Mr. Wang has over 18 years of working experience in
investment banking, mergers and acquisitions, and operation
management. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Investment
Economics Management from Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics in 2001 and a Master’s degree in Finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 2004. Mr.
Wang held different positions in various banks and financial
institutions during the period from June 2004 to June 2018. Mr.
Wang was the general manager of the investment banking
department of Guangzhou branch of China Everbright Bank (B3¢
KERITEIMN 5 77) from May 2014 to November 2016. From
November 2016 to June 2018, Mr. Wang was the general manager
of Guangdong Finance Fund Management Co., Ltd.* (BR B E 4
EIRAPRAF]). From June 2018 to February 2021, Mr. Wang was
the assistant to general manager and head of the capital operation
department of Guangdong Province Guangging Holding Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BREEETREBEABR A R). Since February 2021, he has
been serving as the operation management director of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Co., Ltd.* (BR A EFIEREEFRAR])
("Guangxin Holdings”). During his employment with Guangxin
Holdings, Mr. Wang also took up the position of director in various
companies invested by Guangxin Holdings, namely FSPG Hi-Tech Co.,
Ltd. (BB BEEBRI R £ E RN AR A T), the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000973) (from August
2021 to March 2022), Star Lake Bioscience Co. Inc. Zhaoqing
Guangdong* (ERZE 2 HEMRHERMBIRAR]), the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600866) (from August 2021 to April 2022), Guangdong Foodstuffs
Import & Export Group Co., Ltd.* (ERARBEHOEBGRAR)
and Guangdong Guangxin Emerging Industries Investment Private
Equity Management Co., Ltd.* (EREFHEEEZLELEEEE
EARAT).

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Liao Yuqing (“Mr. Liao"), aged 54, is an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company. He is in charge of the
sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible for the
planning, development, implementation and evaluation of the
marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group in
January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between
1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of
China Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the
director of Guangdong Xingfa and an executive director of
Foshan Xingfa Trading Co., Ltd., Guangdong Xingfa Precision
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. , Guangdong Xingfa Aoke Architecture
Technology Co., Ltd., Alxin Investment Co., Ltd. (325 EBR A F])
and Alxin Development Co., Ltd. ($a{5 2 & B A 7). Mr. Liao is
the son-in-law of Mr. Luo Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group.

Mr. Law Yung Koon (“Mr. Law"), aged 65, has been appointed as
an executive Director since 28 April 2009. He is responsible for the
sales and marketing of our products in overseas market. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general manager of Hang Fat
Aluminium Profiles Company Limited, which was the sole distributor
of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau and one of the suppliers of
aluminium ingots.

EERGREEAS
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Mr. Wang Lei, aged 53, is an executive Director and a senior
engineer. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in mechanical
engineering from University of Science and Technology Beijing (16
fl . K EB) and master's degree in business administration from
Central South University (R A2) in 1991 and 2004 respectively.
He has extensive business management experience. Mr. Wang was
the executive president of Guangzhou Zhongyong Group Co., Ltd.*
(BM e EEBEABRRAF) from 2005 to 2006 and the general
manager of Guangdong Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd.* (EE% &
% 1% & £2 B A [R A 7)) stationed in Guangdong Hongli Machinery
Co., Ltd.* (FEERAF 2 B R A 7)) from 2006 to 2009. Since 2009,
Mr. Wang has served various group companies of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd.* (E R E =R EE H R A 7))
("Guangxin Holdings”). He was the vice president of FSPG Hi-Tech
Co., Ltd. (L FHBEHTERE R H BR A R]), the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000973), from
2009 to 2016 and was a member of the party committee of FSPG Hi-
Tech Co., Ltd.. From 2016 to 2017, Mr. Wang served as the deputy
director of the operation department of Guangxin Holdings and the
deputy general manager of Guangxin Maritime Heavy Industry Co.,
Ltd.* (EFEEEIRM B2 F]). He was also the chairman and
secretary of the party committee of Guangdong Guangging Metal
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EREF & BEHEER A F]) as well as the
executive director of Guangdong Guangging Metal Rolling
Company* (ERES &EBELEAR]) from 2017 to 2020. From 2020
to present, he is a director of Guangxin Shengte Investment Co.,

Ltd.* (EREMNEFREBERAF).

Mr. Wang Zhihua (“Mr. Wang"), aged 52, is an executive Director.
Prior to joining the Group in January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr.
Wang worked at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou
Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in statistics from the Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang is also an executive director of Xingfa
Aluminium (Chengdu) Co., Ltd..

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Luo Jianfeng (“Mr. Luo”), aged 51, has been appointed as an
executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Luo has approximately 30
years of experience in accounting and finance. He worked in (i)
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996; (ii)
Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from
April 1996 to December 2001; (iii) Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. He then
worked in Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co.,
Limited as a certified public accountant from January 2008 to April
2016. In addition, Mr. Luo was the independent non-executive
director of Bestsun Energy Co. Ltd. (/IR MHBR A R])
(stock code: 600681), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, from June 2009 to June 2015. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in the PRC in June 1993 and is a non-practising
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Luo is an executive director of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Fh BB 28 £ B P IR B TR A B)) (stock code: 2128) (“China Lesso”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies in China Lesso and its subsidiaries
("China Lesso Group”).
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zuo Manlun (“Mr. Zuo”), aged 50, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 16 April 2018. Mr. Zuo has
approximately 23 years of experience in the industry of plastic pipe.
Mr. Zuo has extensive business management experience. He is the
chief executive officer of China Lesso Group and was appointed as
an executive director of China Lesso in February 2010. He is also a
director/general manager/supervisor of various companies in China
Lesso Group. Mr. Zuo's expertise was recognised by several awards
including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic Industry in the PRC”
accredited by China Plastics Processing Industry Association in 2009
and “Senior Plastic Product Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)”
accredited by Guangdong Human Resources and Social Security
Department in 2019.

Ms. Xie Jingyun (“Ms. Xie"), aged 42, has been appointed as a
non-executive Director since 6 December 2018. Ms. Xie is
experienced in strategic investment and capital operation and is
currently the general manager of the operating management centre
of Guangxin Holdings. Ms. Xie first joined the Guangxin Holdings
group in 2003. She became the deputy department head of the
investment development department of Guangxin Holdings in 2008
and was subsequently promoted as the department head. She then
joined the capital operation department of Guangxin Holdings as an
assistant to department head in 2015 and was promoted as the
deputy department head and department head in 2016 and 2018
respectively. She served as the general manager of the operating
management centre of the Guangxin Holdings group in 2021. Ms.
Xie obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the
Guangdong University of Foreign Studies in 2003. Ms. Xie is also a
director of (i) Guangdong Advertising Group Co., Limited* (B &R &
BEEERMD AR DR, a company established in the PRC whose
shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002400); (i) Guangdong Shengyi Technology Co., Ltd.* (ER Az R
DB R AR A, a company established in the PRC whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600183); and
(ili) SHENGY! ELECTRONICS CO., LTD.* (&= B FRHBRAR), a
company established in the PRC whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 688183).

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo (“Mr. Chen”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He
obtained the lawyer qualification certificate issued by the Guangdong
Provincial Department of Justice in June 1989. Mr. Chen has been a
practicing lawyer in the PRC since 1993 and has been a partner of (i)
Goldsun Law Firm (Bl{ZH# & @ZRIEFT) from 1998 to 2011; and (ii)
Guangdong King & Land Law Firm (& 3 & £ & #f = 7 ) from
2011 to March 2019. Mr. Chen was admitted as a lawyer by the
Department of Justice of Guangdong Province in June 1989 and
obtained = A ZANE #% (Third Grade Lawyer) from the Department
of Personnel of Guangdong Province in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated
from the Political Education Department of South China Normal
University (22 A5 A22) in 1986. He has been granted the (f2ff
WEFHFEEEBERFZSE) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities
Law Business) jointly by the Ministry of Justice and China Securities
Regulatory Commission in 1996, the (ATt FERERIH R EERR
TEREETSEREE) (Certificate of Engaging in Delimitation of
Property Rights of Collective Science and Technology Enterprises)
jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Science and
Technology of the PRC and the State-owned Asset supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council in 1998, and the
(EMRARIBIEFEI & EFE) (Certificate of Completion of
Training on Independent Directors of Listed Companies) by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission and the School of Management of
Fudan University jointly in 2001. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Lianyue Law Firm (S EBERNEHFT) in April 2019.

EERGREEAS
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EERGREEAS

Mr. Ho Kwan Yiu (“Mr. Ho"), aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He is a
Senior Partner of Messrs K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries where
he is the head of the Litigation and Commercial Department.

Having studied at Anglia Ruskin University in the United Kingdom
(formerly known as the Chelmer Institute of Higher Education), Mr.
Ho obtained his Bachelor of Laws in 1984. He then enrolled at the
University of Hong Kong to complete his Post-graduate Certificate in
Laws study. In 2019, Mr. Ho was awarded an Honorary Doctorate in
Law by the China University of Political Science and Law in
recognition of his “outstanding contribution and achievements in the
legal sector.”

Mr. Ho was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He was
subsequently admitted in Singapore, and England and Wales in 1995
and 1997, respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a China-
Appointed Attesting Officer. In 2022, he was also admitted as a
lawyer of the People’s Republic of China (Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area).

Over the 30 years of his career, Mr. Ho's commitment to serving the
community and contributing to the economic co-operation between
Hong Kong and Mainland China has never wavered. Furthermore,
other than serving as a legal practitioner, Mr. Ho also serves on
various government and public boards as follows:

1. Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (since 2016);

2. New Territories Justice of the Peace of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (since 2016);

3. Member of Legislative Council of HKSAR (since 2016);
4. Ex-officio Executive Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk (since 2016);

5. Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Village (2011-
2023);

6. Director and Chairman of Yan Oi Tong (1993-1997) and
Advisory Board Member of Yan Oi Tong (since 1997);
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Directors and Senior Management

Founder of Butterflyers Association Limited (a charitable
organization) (since 2010);

Founder and Chairman of International Probono Legal Services
Association Limited (“IPLSA") (since 2018); an organization in
Special Consultative Status with the Economic and Social
Council (since 2022);

Member of the 14th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (since 2023);

Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee (since 2022);

Spokesman of New Territories Concern Group (since 2013);
Arbitrator of China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission Hong Kong Arbitration Centre (2021
to 2026);

Arbitrator of Guangzhou Arbitration Commission (since 2021);
Arbitrator of Zhaoging Arbitration Committee (since 2021);
Arbitrator of South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (Shenzhen Court of International

Arbitration) (since 2012);

Special Adviser of “One Belt One Road” Legal Services Research
Centre of the Guangdong Lawyers Association (since 2017);

Expert of Compliance Expert Think Tank of Guangzhou
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Federation for
Enterprise Compliance and Anti-corruption (since 2022);

Trainer of National Security Education (Train the Trainers)
Course (since 2022);

Part-time Tutor of Master of Public Administration, China
University of Labor Relations (2018-2021);

Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
(2011-2019);

20.
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21. Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Huangpu District, Guangzhou (2013-2021);

22. Elected Member of Lok Tsui District of Tuen Mun District
Council (2016-2019);

23.  Member of the Council of Lingnan University of Hong Kong
(2015-2021);

24. Past President (2011-2012) and Council Member (1995-2017)
of the Law Society of Hong Kong; and

25. Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Obscene Articles
Tribunal (2013-2022).

Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy (“Mr. Lam”), aged 58, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 29 February 2008. He is
an associate member of various professional organisations, namely
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong
Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He obtained his master’s degree in
professional accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Lam has over 30 years of experience in the accounting, banking
and finance sectors and currently is the managing consultant of
Lontreprise Consulting Limited. Mr. Lam was also the president of
Dragon Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior
Chamber International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the
national vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong
Kong in 2005. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of each of Litu Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited) (stock code: 1008), Synertone
Communication Corporation (stock code: 1613) and Weiye Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1570), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wen Xianjun (“Mr. Wen"), aged 60, graduated from Central
South University (1 F KX 2) with a bachelor of engineering majoring
in metallic materials in July 1984 and Beijing Non-Ferrous Research
Institute* (1t ;XA & & B #ff 7t 2 P ) with a master of engineering
majoring in metallic materials in June 1990. Mr. Wen has
approximately over 37 years of experience in the industry of non-
ferrous metals. He successively served as an associate engineer of
Beijing Non-Ferrous Research Institute* (1t ;= & & & B i 78 42 f%)
from 1984 to 1987, an engineer of the technology department of
China National Non-ferrous Metals Industry Corporation* (FFEIZA
BT NF]) from 1990 to 1992, a deputy director and a senior
engineer of Development and Exchange Centre of China Nonferrous
Metals Industry Technology* (F Bl B €& & B MM+ D)
from 1992 to 1996, a deputy director of the investment and
operations department and a senior engineer of China National Non-
ferrous Metals Industry Corporation* (R Bl &% B T ¥ H8 Q7))
from 1996 to 1998, the deputy head, a director level consultant and
a senior engineer of Industry Administration Department of the State
Non-ferrous Metals Industry Administration of the People’s Republic
of China* (“PRC") (BXEEEBIXBITEEIA]) from 1998 to
2000, as well as the director of CPC Central Enterprise Working
Committee (R R {>% T %) from January 2001 to March 2001. He
also served as the chairman of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing
Industry Association* (FElA & B I T T 1<) from 2010 to
2017, and has successively served as the deputy head of industry
coordination department, head of the aluminium department, and
the vice chairman of China Non-ferrous Metals Industry Association*
(FEIEEESE TERHE) from April 2001 to April 2021. Mr. Wen is
currently an independent non-executive director of China Honggiao
Group Limited (stock code: 1378). From October 2008 to July 2021,
Mr. Wen served as an independent non-executive director of China
Zhongwong Holdings Limited (stock code: 1333). The shares of each
of China Honggiao Group Limited and China Zhongwong Holdings
Limited are listed on the Stock Exchange.

*  For identification purpose only
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Senior Management

Ms. Zheng Jianhua (“Ms. Zheng"”), aged 49, has been the chief
financial officer of the Company since 30 September 2022. Ms.
Zheng is also a director of Guangdong Xingfa. Ms. Zheng has
extensive experience in accounting, finance and business
management. Ms. Zheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
(majoring in accounting) from Sun Yat-Sen University in July 1999.
Prior to joining the Group, she worked in various departments and
subsidiaries of the group companies of Guangxin Holdings. From
May 1995 to January 2002, she was a deputy manager of the finance
department of EREEBREERIEBR A, a subsidiary of
Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd.* (EREINBFZERN
B]). In January 2002, she served as a deputy manager of the finance
department of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co., Ltd.* (&
BRAINERIZEAR]), and has been promoted to the manager of the
finance department of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp. Co.,
Ltd.* (BERAINEFIZ A F]) since December 2005. She then served
as the deputy head of the clearings department and the deputy head
of the capital management department of Guangxin Holdings from
March 2010 to June 2014. Later, she served as the deputy head of
the operating management department in June 2014 and was then
promoted to the head of the operating management department in
September 2018. Subsequently, she was appointed as the head of
the innovation and strategic management department in February
2019. She has been promoted to the general manager of the
information management department since February 2020. From
January 2021 to August 2022, she was promoted to the deputy
general manager of the strategic management department (Group
Director). Since August 2022, she has been the chief financial officer
of Guangdong Xingfa.

During her employment with Guangxin Holdings, Ms. Zheng also
took up the position of director in various companies invested by
Guangxin Holdings, namely Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. & Exp.
Co., Ltd.* (B A INEFE Q7)) (from June 2020 to June 2022),
GMG International Tendering Co., Ltd.* (EIZEBIZA ) and #H4E%
32 7] (from June 2020 to August 2022).

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lin Yan (“Mr. Lin"), aged 54, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium, Mr. Lin
worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals & Minerals
Import & Export Group Corporation (ERE Ae&EEE L OEEA
A]), with more than 20 years of experience in international trade. He
was awarded a certificate of Economist by Ministry of Human
Resources of the PRC in 1996. Mr. Lin held a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from Jinan University, the Degree of Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) at South China University of
Technology.

Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 54, is the deputy general manager of
Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Liu Yuntang joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group
in October 1993, Mr. Liu Yuntang worked at Nanhai Guangdong
Cable Factory Co., Ltd. from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu Yuntang was
granted a bachelor’s degree in engineering by the Guangdong
Mechanics Institute in 1991. He was certified as assistant engineer in
1993 by the Nanhai City Science Technology Committee and certified
as engineer in 2001 by the Foshan City Human Resources Bureau. He
was awarded as senior engineer by Guangdong Human Resources
and Social Security Department on 4 May 2015, and was granted a
senior Executive Master in Business Administration Degree by Sun
Yat-sen University on 29 December 2015. On 15 December 2020, he
was awarded as Intermediate Certified Safety Engineer by Human
Resources and Social Security Department of the PRC.
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Mr. Chen Wensi ("Mr. Chen”), aged 52, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Chen joined Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium Profiles Factory in 1997. Prior to joining the Group
in January 1997, Mr. Chen worked for Guangdong Chang’e Thermal
Insulation Container Factory (5 58 1% % 4% )& 23 M &) from 1995 to
1996. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangzhou Zhongkai Institute of
Agricultural Technology (E M 15 BT ERT) in 1995. He was
qualified as a senior engineer in mechanical engineering in 2018. He
is also a member of the Measurement Technology Committee of
China Nonferrous Metals Industry Association and an expert of the
Expert Committee of China Non-ferrous Metals Processing Industry
Association. Mr. Chen has participated in the development,
management and standardization of scientific research projects from
various national, provincial, municipal and district governments. He
has won 5 excellence awards in patents in China, 3 first prizes of the
excellence awards in technical standards by the National Non-ferrous
Metals Standardization Technical Committee, and 2 progress awards
in science and technology by Guangdong Province. On 4 November
2020, he was awarded as senior engineer in metal pressure
processing by Foshan Science and Technology Association ({311 1 %}
BRI e).

Mr. Guan Dubiao (“Mr. Guan”), aged 52, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group. Mr. Guan is a senior
Economist and is currently the council member of Foshan City CPA
Institute and Foshan City Association of Chief Financial Officers. His
education background is undergraduate, studying business
management (accounting) and economic management. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career in the
business department of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic Development
Company. Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as different important
financial positions, such as chief accountant, chief of finance, etc.,
within several group companies of Foshan Nanzhuang Economic
Development Company. Mr. Guan joined the Group in 1999 as
deputy head of finance department and chief accountant and
subsequently promoted as head of finance department. He was
further promoted as deputy general manager of Guangdong Xingfa
Group since September 2011.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wu Xi Kun (“Mr. Wu"), aged 51, is the deputy general
manager of Guangdong Xingfa Group since 12 May 2020. Mr. Wu
obtained Bachelor of Material Science and Engineering from
Guangdong Industrial University in the PRC and joined Guangdong
Xingfa Group in July 1994. Currently, Mr. Wu is a postgraduate
student of Master of Philosophy (Engineering) in Central South
University in the PRC.

Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in the production
management, quality control and research of manufacturing of
aluminium ingots and aluminium profiles. Mr. Wu participated in the
academic research and seminars in the industry. He published the
“Practical Handbook in the Processing Techniques of Aluminium
Profiles” in 2006. He also participated in the set up of various
national standards regarding aluminium profiles.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho (formerly known as Mr. Pang Wai Ching) (“Mr.
Pang"”), aged 34, joined our Group as the company secretary of the
Company since February 2021. Mr. Pang has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales since March 2015
and August 2022 respectively. He obtained the Bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2010. He has more than 10 years’ experience in
accounting, auditing and company secretarial matters. In addition,
Mr. Pang was the independent non-executive director of China
Shenghai Group Limited (stock code: 1676) from 19 October 2019 to
1 April 2021.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
("“Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of other members of the Group are set out
in note 14 in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2022.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 182 of
the annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.37 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: HKD0.80).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 25 May 2023, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22
May 2023 to Thursday, 25 May 2023 (both days inclusive). During
such period, no transfer of the shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for the attendance in the annual
general meeting, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 19 May 2023.
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For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the final dividend,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 7 June 2023 to Friday, 9 June 2023 (both days inclusive).
During such period, no transfer of the shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 June 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five years is set out on page 319 and page 320.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet

date are set out in note 24 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the

Group during the year are set out in note 11 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31

December 2022 are set out in note 29 in notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made donation of RMB102,000 (2021: RMB554,000) for
charitable or any other purposes during the Year.

Report of the Directors
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EEEHE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year
or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a new share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme”) on 29 December 2017. The Share Option
Scheme became effective for 10 years commencing from 5 January
2018.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include directors
and employees of the Group or any Invested Entity; any suppliers,
customers, advisers or consultants of the Group or any Invested
Entity; any persons or entities that provide research and development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity;
any holders of securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and any other groups or classes of
participants whom the Board considers have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

With effect from 1 January 2023, any grant of share options shall
comply with the new requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules which took effect on 1 January 2023.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group) to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
41,800,000 shares, being 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 29 December 2017. As at 1
January 2022, the total number of ordinary shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 37,791,533 shares. As at the date
of this report, the total number of ordinary shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 39,150,866 shares, which
represents approximately 9.3% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
eligible participant (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the
Company from time to time.

The subscription price for shares of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the directors of the
Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the
shares on the offer date, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Company has granted 4,180,000 share options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme on 15 October 2018. The exercise price per
share is HK$5.46. The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date of grant of share options was HK$5.39.
1,376,334 share options and 1,272,800 share options were vested
on 15 October 2020 and 15 October 2021 respectively and
1,359,333 share options were lapsed on 15 October 2022.

Report of the Directors

EEETHE

EITEMEIRIE AN S B BRI R EM
BRETEmMEHOBERE(REERBEER
EEERES B R HEMBBEREAZERE
KRB ) M Al B8 R BT 2 A A A R D
BEA H 5838 41,800,000 I% - AR E AR B
RZZE—+F+ A=+ NBRITHRELER
A L ERREREE XA QR BEITRG
#10% - R-_ZT-—F—H—H  RIFERE
FPEIAT TLAB T S BN L2 R37,791,533
B o RANERE B ER - IRIREEARMEST 817 T LAEE
1TH) L B AR 42 815 39,150,866 A% + HAAE A
NEIRAARTRE HEE TR EA9.3% °

PE 12 8 A AR IEEARE 8| A S EE
MEMBEREASXTEREERSHEEZRE
P (BHREREITR R RTTERBRE) BITEMD
BORBTETARABROZESHKE - TG
BEARATKEETRMZ1%

BREAZRE T ARARD 2 RBERKHAR
FEFREE  HTRERTIZESE ()X
RARONEBEEAR(WEAREER)R—FX
ZFEEBURSHNBRN T RERM
RZWHE: (VEREERHAAEZERAXR
RABRNEBE-—FREFEEEUIZHRER
P B MERMRZFHRHE - (i) A7
B EE -

PR L ERER - ARABRAARRR LN
1008 TIEREE 2 BHENRE -

ARARER-ZZT—N\F+A+RHBREERE
&1 8195 1 4,180,000 17 B A% 1 - F AR IR 15 91T
FEAR5468T - ARG BREREER L B
AT 2 PR U T (B & 5.3978 7T © 1,376,334 19 1%
BE AR AE 21,272,800 IR BB E D BIR =
—ZF+A+ABREN-_"ZT=_—Ft+A+H
B &1,359333MBEBREENR ST __F
+A+HEBERM -

------------------- Annual Report 2022 43k 41



Report of the Directors

EEEHE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share option has been HZE_Z__—F+_-_A=+—HIFE #im®

=

granted under the Share Option Scheme. IRIRFE A ST IR B ERIR -

Details of the outstanding share options and movements of the share REZ-_Z - —"F+_A=+—HIEFEHXEX

options during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: TR BB HE R E S B 1B T ¢
Weighted
average closing
share price
immediately
before the
Outstanding Vested/ Lapsed/  Outstanding dates on which
as at Exercised Cancelled Expired as at the options
Category 1 January during during during 31 December were exercised
of grantees Date of grant 2022 the Year the Year the Year 2022 (per share)
RO REE
BRERTRE
R-B-Zf R-Z2ZZ%  BHAZmME
-B—H rEER XFE t-A=t—-H FHRHE
RAEAER BB H MARTHE AEEETE BE/HEH EXARER i RAT B8 (BR)
Director
Ex
LIU Libin# 15.10.2018 76,333 - - (76,333) - N/A
Bl ¢ T iER
WANG Zhihua 15.10.2018 128,000 (64,000) - (64,000) - HK$7.27
FEE 7.2787T
Employees of the 15.10.2018 2,307,800 (1,088,800) - (1,219,000) - HK$8.92
Group 8.92/87T
r&EEES
Total 2,512,133 (1,152,800) - (1,359,333) -
23t
Note: Mt
The exercise period of the outstanding share options as at 1 January 2022 is from 15 RIE_—_F—A—BARTENERENTEHANR S
October 2018 to 15 October 2022. —N\FE+A+HRAZE=-E-_=F+A+HA
# resigned as director of the Company on 14 April 2022 tRZEZFNATNARTAREES

Further details of the options granted under the Share Option SRR HEEH2IIE T B PRI 2 i — S rEH N
Scheme are set out in Note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial 474 B fSER &R M 31 2 M5t 27 »
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PLEDGE OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's pledged deposits amounting
to approximately RMB224.7 million (31 December 2021: RMB208.9
million) and bills receivable with carrying value of approximately
RMB771.3 million (31 December 2021: RMB968.0 million) were
pledged as security for issuing bills.

As at 31 December 2022, certain plants with net book value of
RMB370.3 million (31 December 2021: RMB370.6 million) and land
use rights under right-of-use assets with carrying value of RMB217.2
million (31 December 2021: RMB270.1 million) were pledged as
security for bank loans and borrowings of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in note 29 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB585,605,000 (2021: RMB579,095,000).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 15.7% (2021: 16.0%) of the
Group's revenue where sales to the largest customer accounted for
6.6% (2021: 6.0%) of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 83.4% (2021: 81.6%) of the
Group's total cost of purchase whereas purchases from the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 71.7% (2021: 61.0%) of the
Group's total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule 5 to
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial key
performance indicators and performance indicators and performance
and indication of future development of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 can be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
report of the Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED
BY THE GROUP

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The effects
of such risks may vary over time. The following sets forth material
risks classified by the Group and the relevant alleviating measures for
each material risk for the management of such risks.
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Business risks

Firstly, most of the Group’s revenue was generated from customers
in the PRC. Should there be any material adverse change in the
political, economic, legal or social conditions in the PRC and the
Group is unable to divert sales to other markets outside of the PRC,
the turnover, profitability and prospects may be adversely affected.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will continue to put efforts
to expand overseas market and increase the proportion of overseas
sales. During the Year, we have export sales to Australia and
Vietnam. In addition, a joint venture project of the Group in Australia
is expected to complete equipment installation, commissioning and
trial production in 2023. The Group believes that setting up factories
overseas will help it to understand customer needs in the overseas
market and accelerate the overall overseas business development.
The Group will also continue to review competitive edges of the
Group in the industry and market trend.

Secondly, the Group's production activities of aluminium profiles rely
on, among other things, sufficient and uninterrupted supply of
aluminium ingots, being our principal raw materials. The Group
procures such principal raw materials from several major suppliers
and has not entered into any long-term purchase contracts with any
of our major suppliers of aluminium ingots for flexibility in purchasing
aluminium ingots at competitive prices at various times.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will conduct investigation
and assessment on suppliers periodically to ensure stable supply
source of raw materials.

Financial risks

Delayed payments of customers who were granted credit period by
the Group will increase the Group's exposure to financial risks and
have an impact on financial performance and operating cash flows of
the Group.

In order to alleviate such risk, the Group will review accounts
receivables due from major customers on a regular basis and control
over it to an appropriate level. The Group will also manage and
maintain strict control internally and put additional efforts to collect
trade receivables overdue.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

46

Employees

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to our success. The
Group is committed to providing our employees with a safe,
pleasant and healthy working environment. The Group rewards
and recognises employees by competitive remuneration
package and implements a key performance index scheme with
appropriate incentives, and promote career development and
progression by providing opportunities for career advancement
to employees.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible for
determining its training needs for employees in its department
and any suggested applicable training courses either arranged
internally or by external service providers shall be submitted to
the senior management of the Group for approval. Knowledge,
skills and capacities of employees are vital to continuous
business growth and success of the Group. The Group strives
to ensure that all employees can fulfill the relevant job
requirements in terms of education, training, technical and
work experience.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships with a number
of our vendors and take great care to ensure that they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. We carefully select our
suppliers and require them to satisfy certain assessment criteria
including track record, experience, financial strength,
reputation, ability to produce high-quality products and quality
control effectiveness.

Distributors and customers

We sell our products to distributors and customers. We require
our distributors and customers to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations and our sales and marketing policies, including
but not limited to selling price, promotional activities and usage
of our ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition and
repayment history of our distributors and customers, and their
sales performance.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

As a supporter of environmental protection and taking into account
of the national green manufacturing development plan and guided
by enterprise strategy, the Group formulated the Xingfa Aluminium
Protection System. The primary mission of the Group’s environmental
production policy is to govern production emissions by relying on
technology, comprehensive utilisation of production waste residue,
reduce environmental pollution and develop clean production.

The Group has been in compliance with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations in both PRC and Hong Kong.

A further discussion of the environmental policies of the Group is
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on business operation and
financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole is responsible
to ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company. During
the course of the business operations, the Group shall comply with
different laws and regulations, including i) laws regarding employee
recruitment and benefits, such as the “Labor Law of the PRC”, the
“Labor Contract Law of the PRC”, and the “Rulings of Implementing
the Labor Contract Law of the PRC"”; and ii) the PRC national and
local laws and regulations with respect to environmental protection,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group was in strict compliance with
the aforesaid laws and regulations.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman) (resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. WANG Li (Chairman) (appointed on 14 April 2022)

Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Lei

Mr. LAW Yung Koon

Mr. WANG Zhihua

Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the Company considered all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 24 to 37 of the annual report.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 33 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in paragraph headed “Connected transactions” in
this report, (i) there is no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the Year in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director is or was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly; (ii) no other contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with its controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (iii) no other contract of
significance in relation to provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO™)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (“Model
Code"), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long position

No. of
ordinary
shares of the
Name of directors Capacity Company
¥ /N
EEHE 54 ZERHAE
LIAO Yuging Founder of a discretionary 48,200,100
trust who can influence
how the trustee exercises
his discretion
BEE FREFTRINA - AIES
FEATEERBEE TR
LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,432,000
&R EnlEA
Interest of spouse 1,719,000
fe B e
WANG Zhihua Beneficial owner 128,000
FEE ERlEA
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underlying Percentage of
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Company Total Company
RRF EARRF
HERGHE B EEEO
- 48,200,100 11.46%
- 19,432,000 4.62%
- 1,719,000 0.41%
- 128,000 0.03%



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Other than the share options granted under the share option scheme
disclosed in note 27 in notes to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company,or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Director to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March
2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO DISCLOSE
THEIR INTERESTS PURSUANT TO PART XV OF
THE SFO

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons, other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position

BIER 5 R E RO EXVIEBER
BRECEBZTIERRREMA

H

R-ZE-—F+-F=+—H " TIAL(E
B ARNEITHRABRIN RARQRZ KRG
HERDPHEEBLERAARABEEALRE
1§01 3366 MIFE 2 BRI IA A ¢

Name of entities

EREE

GuangXin (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited (formerly known as Guangxin
Aluminium (HK) Limited)

BHBEBREBRAA (AIEAER
B inEBR AR

Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group
Ltd*
BREEFIERERER AR

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of The
People’s Government of Guangdong
Province*

BEREARBAEREEEEER

F3=

Lesso Group Holdings Limited
ARERZERER A A

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
B R 28 SR B AR B PR A F)

New Fortune Star Limited
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i)
Total number of Percentage of
ordinary shares interest in
Capacity of the Company the Company
AR Z EARAR
4 EERAH EmEIL
Beneficial owner 132,382,000 31.47%
BEEERA
Interest of controlled corporation 132,382,000 31.47%
REEHEEE R
Interest of controlled corporation 132,382,000 31.47%
RiEHEEE R
Beneficial owner 109,842,900 26.11%
EnEEA
Interest of controlled corporation 109,842,900 26.11%
REGEE R
Interest of controlled corporation 109,842,900 26.11%

RESEEE S



Name of entities

EEEE

Xi Xi Development Limited

PIRBRAR AT

UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited

WONG Luen Hei

S el
= E

Sure Keen Limited

BB R 2 7]

Glorious Joy Limited

TMF (Cayman) Limited

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations” above, as at 31 December 2022, no
other person had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO.

Capacity
54

Interest of controlled corporation
REHEEE R

Interest of controlled corporation
XEHDEEE R

Founder of a discretionary trust
who can influence how the
trustee exercises his discretion

2RETAIZA  AIZEXFTA

TTREEBBEZ N

Beneficial owner

EmEAA

Interest of controlled corporation
REEEE R

Trustee
ZEEA

=R
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Total number of
ordinary shares
of the Company
AT
BBERAR
109,842,900

109,842,900

109,842,900

48,200,100

48,200,100

48,200,100

EEETHE

Percentage of
interest in
the Company
EARRDF
EZES
26.11%
26.11%

26.11%

11.46%

11.46%

11.46%
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A.

54

The following entities are connected parties of the Company  A.
and had connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions with the Group during the year ended 31

December 2022:

Name of the entity
BEERE

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window
Co., Ltd. (“Xingfa Curtain Wall")

EREZEERFIEER AR ([HERE )

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (“China Lesso”)

BB R B AR AR ([ B ])

TAEREREREERR AR
(in English for identification only, Jiangxi Province
Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
“Jiangxi Jingxing”)

IHE SR EREERR AR (DIASKE])

BREETEREEER QA
(in English for identification only,
Guangdong Guangxin Holding Group Co., Ltd.
“Guangxin Holding”)
BREEFEREEBR AR ([EHEZER])

RS R B EREERR AR
(in English for identification only, Henan Province
Jingxing Aluminium Panel Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
“Henan Jingxing”)
AEAREEEREEAERAR (DIERE])

BEXZ

UTERBAEARAZHEALT  TREZE
CE - _F+_A=t—HILFERNSR
AEBETHEIGN  HIFEBHEL
5

Relationship with the Company
BAAR QR Z AR

Owned as to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuging and as to 46% by
Mr. LUO Su. Mr. LIAO Yuging is an executive Director and
Mr. LUO Su is the father-in-law of Mr. LIAO Yuging.

HEEERERE21% Em REMRTERES 46% 5 -
BEERERPTEZRERTERBIERENER -

A substantial shareholder of the Company, holding,
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, approximately
26.11% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this report.
ARAREFEZMRREB/BEZEWB LR N ARS AEFEA
ARAREBEITERMZ2426.11% °

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

HEEE(RRRN—BEERR) I EMBAT -
The controlling shareholder of the Company and is
indirectly interested in approximately 31.47% of the total

issued shares of the Company.

ARPEBRER  BEEERRFDETRNARD
31.47% °

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

PRI (RARARN—REERR) 22EWBAA -
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Name of the entity

BEREW

EREFIRIFM AR AT

(in English for identification only, Guangdong

Report of the Directors

BEAQR @R

Xingfa Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.
“Xingfa Environmental”)

EREFIRGR AR AR ([HEEIRE])

B.  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the following
continuing connected transactions were non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and are subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements. The
following is a brief description of the continuing connected
transactions:

1. Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement

(i)

Nature of transactions

Reference is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 September 2020 and 19
October 2021. Guangdong Xingfa, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into a master supply
agreement (“Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement”)
dated 30 September 2020 in relation to the supply
of aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain Wall by
Guangdong Xingfa and its subsidiaries
("Guangdong Xingfa Group”), for a term of one
year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
(both dates inclusive). The aluminium profiles
purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall were further
processed into windows and curtain walls and sold
1o its customers.

/.

X

EEETHE

Relationship with the Company

A non-wholly owned subsidiary of China Lesso, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.

PR (RARARN—REERR) ZE2EMBAA -
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1. BEBEBHES

(i)
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(ii) Annual Cap

(iii)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 22 f% 45 BR 2 7

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2022 of the continuing connected transactions set
out above was RMB164.0 million, and the actual
aggregate amount of sale transactions was
approximately RMB90.4 million for the Year.

Internal control procedures

The Group has complied with the following internal
control measures to monitor the pricing and terms
of the transactions in relation to the sale of
aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa
Curtain Wall and ensure that the prices and terms
offered by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain
Wall will be no more favourable than prices and
terms offered to independent customers and that
the annual cap is not exceeded:

(@  monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on the
Guangdong Nanhai Nonferrous Metals
Market and/or Shanghai Nonferrous Metals
Market on a daily basis;

(b)  comparing the price and terms of the supply
of aluminium profiles to Xingfa Curtain Wall
with the prices and terms of aluminium
profiles supplied by the Group in the PRC as
agreed with independent customers on a
regular basis;

(¢) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the price and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles offered
by Guangdong Xingfa Group to Xingfa
Curtain Wall to ensure that they shall be no
more favourable than those offered by the
Group to independent customers; and
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(d) periodic financial report which contains (d BEMEESRXRIHEH
information on all connected transactions RAEBETZMER
carried out by the Group including the ER S (BEEEESLR
continuing connected transactions under the HRET2RHERERS)
Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement was ZBRZ EHM B -

submitted to the Board.

2. 2022 Lesso Master Supply Agreement 2. “EC_FHMBAMEGRS
(i) Nature of transactions (i) XZMHE
On 31 December 2021, Guangdong Xingfa and RZE-_—F+-_A=+—
China Lesso entered into a master supply B EREEER BB
agreement (“2022 Lesso Master Supply R R A R — ey
Agreement”) pursuant to which Guangdong Xingfa BraEEREAL Bt E
Group, as suppliers, would supply and China Lesso REREB(EREER) B
and its subsidiaries (“China Lesso Group”), as L N rh B B 8 K EL BB A A
purchasers, would purchase aluminium profiles ([FEHBER]) ERER)
and/or panels supplied by Guangdong Xingfa BB REREEERKE N
Group members on an on-going basis for a term of AR EEEME 2 REM
one year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December /SR siiEik o BilRE —F
2022 (both dates inclusive). ToF—-A—BRE_T=—
F+ZRA=T—H(REER
GIEDE
(i) Annual Cap (i) FELER
The annual cap in respect of the transactions AEEBBE_TS-__FHE
contemplated under the 2022 Lesso Master Supply BEEREETIERHETZ
Agreement for the Year was RMB122.0 million, RHZFELRB/ARKE122
and the actual aggregate amount of sale BET REAFEIERHEE
transactions was approximately RMB82.2 million R BeBRHR/RARES22
for the Year. BET °
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions under the
2022 Lesso Master Supply Agreement and ensure
that the prices and terms offered by Guangdong
Xingfa Group to China Lesso Group were no more
favourable than prices and terms offered to
independent customers and that the annual cap
was not exceeded:

(@  monitoring the prevailing average price of
aluminium ingots as quoted on Guangdong
Nanhai Nonferrous Metals Market on a daily
basis;

(b)  comparing the prices and terms of the supply
of aluminium profiles and/or panels to China
Lesso Group with the prices and terms of
aluminium profiles and/or panels supplied by
the Group in the PRC as agreed with
independent customers on a regular basis;

() adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the prices and
terms of supply of aluminium profiles and/or
panels offered by Guangdong Xingfa Group
to China Lesso Group to ensure that they
would be no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent
customers; and

(d) periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under the
2022 Lesso Master Supply Agreement was
submitted to the Board.

Further details of the 2022 Lesso Master Supply
Agreement were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 31 December 2021.

(iii) ABBEREESF
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3. 2022 Tenancy Agreement A

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Nature of transaction

On 31 December 2021, ERFEIRZE (i) BR
2] (in English for identification only, Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Henan) Co., Ltd.) (“Xingfa
Henan”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as landlord, and Henan Jingxing, as
tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement (2022
Tenancy Agreement A") pursuant to which
Xingfa Henan would lease the property located at
FEDTEE ST TEEEE (in English for
identification only, Qinbei Industrial District,
Qinyang City, Henan Province, the PRC) to Henan
Jingxing for the welding, assembling, recycling and
maintenance of aluminium panels which were
applied as construction materials and the sale of
such aluminium panels for a fixed term of one year
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (both
dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Tenancy Agreement A for the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
was RMB2,976,504, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately RMB2,958,946.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
rent and terms of the transactions under the 2022
Tenancy Agreement A and to ensure that the rent
and terms offered by Xingfa Henan to Henan
Jingxing would be no more favourable than the
rent and terms offered to independent tenants and
that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(@ monitoring the prevailing market rent at
similar locations on a quarterly basis;

Report of the Directors
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3. TE__FHEWEA

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under the
2022 Tenancy Agreement A to ensure that
they were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent tenants;
and

(0 periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
2022 Tenancy Agreement A was submitted
to the Board.

Further details of the 2022 Tenancy Agreement A
were set out in the announcement of the Company

FERAEBEEBBEER
5 2 M N BB BT BUR
ER-ZT-_FHEW
EABRTZHEE  ®R
EBTERAERRB
SHEPATIRMEE R

EMEECRRHEH
RAEBETZHER
ERG(BEZ
HEMEAET 2HE
FERH) 2 ER 2 EH
BIFEHRE o

—E - FHEREANE—
SHBHNALRBSHA-T

dated 31 December 2021.

4. 2022 Tenancy Agreement B

(i) Nature of transactions

——F+=A=+—A22
ffm o

4., —E-—EHEHEB
(i) XZME

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 22 f% 45 BR 2 7

On 31 December 2021, ERHEEIR % (1) AR
2 7] (in English for identification only, Guangdong
Xingfa Aluminium (Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.) (“Xingfa
Jiangxi”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as landlord, and Jiangxi Jingxing, as
tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement (“2022
Tenancy Agreement B”) pursuant to which
Xingfa Jiangxi would lease the property located at
BT P& B A A Bl 5 35 (2 AR 35 K38 21 5% (in
English for identification only, No. 21, Jingfa Road,
Yichun Economic Development Zone, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC) to Jiangxi Jingxing for the
manufacturing of aluminum panels for a fixed term
of one year from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022 (both dates inclusive).
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(ii)

(iii)

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Tenancy Agreement B for the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
was RMB4,296,528, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately RMB4,296,528.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
rent and terms of the transactions under the 2022
Tenancy Agreement B and to ensure that the rent
and terms offered by Xingfa Jiangxi to Jiangxi
Jingxing would be no more favourable than the
rent and terms offered to independent tenants and
that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(@ monitoring the prevailing market rent at
similar locations on a quarterly basis;

(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under the
2022 Tenancy Agreement B to ensure that
they were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent tenants;
and

() periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
2022 Tenancy Agreement B was submitted to
the Board.

Further details of the 2022 Tenancy Agreement B
were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021.
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5.

2022 Tenancy Agreement C

0]

(ii)

(iii)

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 22 f% 45 BR 2 7

Nature of transactions

On 31 December 2021, EREEFZREERR A
Al (in English for identification only, Guangdong
Xingfa Precision Manufacturing Co., Ltd.) (“Xingfa
Precision”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as landlord, and Xingfa
Environmental, as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement (“2022 Tenancy Agreement C”,
together with 2022 Tenancy Agreement A and
2022 Tenancy Agreement B as the “2022 Tenancy
Agreements”) pursuant to which Xingfa Precision
would lease the property located at 71 B0 & 5 & 5
Wm&FiEh OB TZEEDE 1258 (in English
for identification only, No. 12 Central Science and
Technology Industrial Zone D, Leping Town, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the PRC to Xingfa
Precision for the processing and recycling of waste
resources for a fixed term of three years from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2024 (both dates
inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Tenancy Agreement C for the
period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
was RMB4,221,024, and the actual aggregate
amount of rent was approximately RMB4,221,024.

Internal control procedures

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
rent and terms of the transactions under the 2022
Tenancy Agreement C and to ensure that the rent
and terms offered by Xingfa Precision to Xingfa
Environmental would be no more favourable than
the rent and terms offered to independent tenants
and that the annual cap was not exceeded:

(@ monitoring the prevailing market rent at
similar locations on a quarterly basis;
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(b) adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the rent under
2022 Tenancy Agreement C to ensure that
they were no more favourable than those
offered by the Group to independent tenants;
and

() periodic financial report containing
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group including the
continuing connected transactions under
2022 Tenancy Agreement C was submitted
to the Board.

Further details of the 2022 Tenancy Agreement C
were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2021.

6. 2022 Engineering Service Agreement

(i)

(ii)

Nature of transactions

On 31 December 2021, Guangdong Xingfa and
Xingfa Curtain Wall entered into a service
agreement (“2022 Engineering Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which Xingfa Curtain
Wall agreed to provide the certain engineering
services, including but not limited to the installation
of windows, doors and curtain walls (“Engineering
Services"), to Guangdong Xingfa Group members
for a fixed term of one year from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Annual Cap

The annual cap for the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Engineering Service Agreement for
the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022 was RMB15 million and the actual aggregate
amount of service fee was approximately RMB6.3
million for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022.
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(iii) Internal control procedures

During the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022, the Group has complied with the
following internal control measures to monitor the
pricing and terms of the transactions contemplated
under the 2022 Engineering Service Agreement
and to ensure that the service fees and terms
offered by Xingfa Curtain Wall to Guangdong
Xingfa Group will be no less favourable than service
fees and terms offered to Guangdong Xingfa
Group by independent suppliers and that the
proposed annual cap was not exceeded:

(@) monitoring the prevailing average market
service fee of the engineering service which is
identical to or comparable to the Engineering
Services;

(b)  comparing the service fees and terms of the
provision of Engineering Services by Xingfa
Curtain Wall with the service fees and terms
of the provision of engineering services in
the PRC as agreed with or quoted by
independent suppliers on a regular basis;

() adhering to the relevant internal control
policy of the Group on connected
transactions in monitoring the service fees
and terms of provision of Engineering Services
by Xingfa Curtain Wall to Guangdong Xingfa
Group to ensure that they shall be no less
favourable than those offered by independent
suppliers; and

(d) periodic financial report which contains
information on all connected transactions
carried out by the Group, including the
continuing connected transactions under the
2022 Engineering Service Agreement, was
submitted to the Board.

Further details of the 2022 Engineering Service
Agreement were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 31 December 2021.
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Views of the independent non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions carried out
pursuant to Xingfa Curtain Wall Agreement, 2022 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement, 2022 Tenancy Agreement A,
2022 Tenancy Agreement B, 2022 Tenancy Agreement C
and 2022 Engineering Service Agreement, and have
considered the information on internal control procedures
referred to in sections B.1(iii), B.2(ii), B.3(iii), B4(iii), B5(iii)
and B6(iii) above, and confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i) on normal commercial terms or terms no less
favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.
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Review by the auditors

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
"Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued its letter to the Board containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions as set out in this sections “B1" to “B6" above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
which stated that:

() nothing has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
attention of the auditor that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(i) nothing has come to the attention of the auditor
that causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;

(iv) with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to the attention of the auditor that causes
the auditor to believe the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual
cap as set by the Company.
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9. The 2023 Lesso Master Supply Agreement,
2022 Tenancy Agreement A, 2023 Tenancy
Agreement B and the 2023 Engineering Service
Agreement (collectively as the “2023 CCT
Agreements”)

Given that the parties to each of the 2022 Lesso Master
Supply Agreement, 2022 Tenancy Agreement A, 2022
Tenancy Agreement B and the 2022 Engineering Service
Agreement expected that the continuing connected
transactions contemplated thereunder would continue on
an on-going basis, on 30 December 2022:

() Guangdong Xingfa and China Lesso entered into a
new master supply agreement (2023 Lesso Master
Supply Agreement”) for a term of one year from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both dates
inclusive);

(i)~ Xingfa Henan and Henan Jingxing entered into a
new tenancy agreement (“2023 Tenancy
Agreement A") for a fixed term of one year from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both dates
inclusive);

(i)  Xingfa Jiangxi and Jiangxi Jingxing entered into a
new tenancy agreement (“2023 Tenancy
Agreement B") for a fixed term of one year from 1
January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (both dates
inclusive); and

(iv) Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa Curtain Wall
entered into a new service agreement (“2023
Engineering Service Agreement”) for a term of one
year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.
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10.

The terms and conditions of each of the 2023 Lesso
Master Supply Agreement, 2023 Tenancy Agreement,
2023 Tenancy Agreement B and the 2023 Engineering
Service Agreement (including the pricing policies) are
substantially similar to those of the 2022 Master Supply
Agreement, 2022 Tenancy Agreement A, 2022 Tenancy
Agreement B and the Engineering Service Agreement
respectively. Further details of the 2023 CCT Agreements
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 December 2022.

2023 Hazardous Waste Processing Service
Agreement

On 30 December 2022, Guangdong Xingfa and Xingfa
Environmental entered into a service agreement (2023
Hazardous Waste Processing Service Agreement”)
pursuant to which Xingfa Environmental agreed to
provide certain hazardous waste processing and disposal
services to Guangdong Xingfa Group members for a fixed
term of one year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December
2023. Further details of the 2023 Hazardous Waste
Processing Service Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the following
connected transaction was non-exempt connected transactions
and was subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements. The following is a brief description of the
connected transaction:
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Acquisition of 4% equity interest in Guangdong
Trading

On 21 December 2022, Guangdong Xingfa, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”) with
Guangxin Holding pursuant to which Guangxin Holding agreed
to sell and transfer and Guangdong Xingfa agreed to acquire
and accept the transfer of 4% equity interest in Guangdong
Trading at a consideration of approximately RMB27.52 million
("Acquisition”). As at the date of the Equity Transfer
Agreement, Guangdong Trading is wholly-owned by Guangxin
Holding. The transfer of equity interest in Guangdong Trading
and the relevant change in business registration for the
Acquisition was completed on 30 December 2022. According
to the public record immediately after the change in business
registration in respect of the Acquisition, Guangdong Trading
was owned as to 91% by Guangxin Holding, 5% by ER % E
EEERMDABRAF (in English for identification only,
Guangdong Advertising Group Co., Ltd.) and 4% by
Guangdong Xingfa since the date of change of business
registration for the Acquisition.

D. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
the code provisions of the prevailing Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for year ended 31
December 2022.
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MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct (“Code of
Conduct”) regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After having
made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company has received
confirmations from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of
Conduct for the Year.

The Company has also adopted procedures on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code in respect of the securities transactions of the
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

No significant event has occurred after the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the date of this report.
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EEETHE

AUDITORS ZEED

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall retire B f8S X EHEE RSt SBME - ME
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the  FEi &t EEMBRENERET ZRERAE X
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution will be proposed & 43R - WS B B S EERET - AJE
at the forthcoming annual general meeting to reappoint KPMG as ERRBAFAE FEIEE —TEASEEINEEE
auditors of the Company. SR EBAT AR A FZEED -

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the 7K/ &) F 8 4 = {[ B B 4F i 3 4 4 58 A AT -
preceding three financial years.

On behalf of the Board of Directors RREES

WANG Li E3

Chairman EShva

Foshan China, 15 March 2023 hEfL —E-=F=F+HA
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code as set AN AF DA R BI R 14FE 2 BE-S
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“Corporate Governance Z——_HF+_A=+—HILFEZLEERTE|
Code") during the year ended 31 December 2022. In the opinion of ([ EATAI]) - EER A RNARREZE
the Directors, the Company had complied with all the code provisions —ZE-—F+_-_A=+—HIFERN—EET
of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the  _FMRBIMI$E 14 Frdk > & A7 A2 2 &
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022. BIMESC

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate governance EEHNHEFARRIZEER  BREAL
of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures = K ELiERRE T2 P IREE M AR AE SR & AR -
are in place to protect and maximise the interests of the

Shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance TXHAW ARG REBEEZE T __F+=A4
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the =4+—BIIBEFERNRRARETZLES
year ended 31 December 2022. SEEMR R o

A. DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS A. EBEETZRSZRS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities ARG BERM EMRAMER10TEH =W
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in BITABEFETESFR ZHEESTR (12
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as its own EFRDIEREBHITELRR G ZRT
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. STHl e R RERELAESHE &
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors REERRABEENHE-_TE-__F+=
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards AR=T—HIEFERZEFEZEEFAM
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding B HTEENERETELESH 2
directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31 SFFAN e

December 2022.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

0]

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of executive
Directors and non-executive Directors. As at the date of
this report, the Board consisted of the following
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)
(resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Lei
Mr. LAW Yung Koon
Mr. WANG Zhihua
Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun

The executive Directors, with the assistance from the
senior management, form the core management team of
the Company. The executive Directors have the overall
responsibility for formulating the business strategies and
development plan of the Group and the senior
management are responsible for supervising and
executing such plans of the Group.
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(ii) Board meetings

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 22 f% 45 BR 2 7

During the Year, four full board meetings were held, at
which, among other matters:

the Directors approved the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
reviewed the related results announcement, annual
report and the circular to the Shareholders in
relation, amongst others, to the general mandate
proposal and re-election of the Directors retiring by
rotation;

the Directors approved the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and
reviewed the related results announcement; and

the Directors approved the annual caps of
continued connected transactions for the year
ending 31 December 2023.

During the Year, the Board also discussed and approved
the Group’s affairs by way of circulation of written
resolutions.

Prior notices convening the Board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters to be
discussed. At the Board meetings, the Directors were
provided with the relevant documents to be discussed
and approved. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for keeping minutes of the Board meetings.
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(iii) Attendance record

The following is the attendance record of the board
meetings held by the Board and general meeting held
during the year ended 31 December 2022:

Executive Directors:
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)
(resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 April 2022)
Mr. LIAO Yuging (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WANG Lei
Mr. LAW Yung Koon
Mr. WANG Zhihua
Mr. LUO Jianfeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. ZUO Manlun
Ms. XIE Jingyun

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy
Mr. WEN Xianjun
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(iv) Independent non-executive Directors

(v)

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed four independent non-executive
Directors. The Board considers that all independent non-
executive Directors have the appropriate and sufficient
industry or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests of
shareholders of the Company. One of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAM Ying Hung,
Andy, has over 30 years of experience in the accounting,
banking and finance sectors and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received the annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive Directors
are independent. Particular consideration is paid in
assessing the independence of those independent non-
executive Directors who have been serving on the Board
for more than 9 years and seeking re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting. When appropriate,
reasons will be given in the annual general meeting
circular to explain why the Board believes those
independent non-executive Directors are still independent
and should be re-elected.

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yuging, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company, is the son-in-law of
Mr. LUO Su, the Honourable Adviser of the Group. Save
as aforesaid, there is no other family relationship between
any of the Directors, the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company. All of the Directors are free to
exercise their independent judgement.
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(vi) Continuous professional development

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has provided regular updates to Directors on material
changes to regulatory requirements applicable to the
Directors and the Company and on the latest business
development of the Company. The Directors confirmed
that they have complied with code provision C.1.4 of the
Corporate Governance Code on directors’ training.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors,
namely Mr. LIU Libin (resigned on 14 April 2022), Mr.
WANG Li (appointed on 14 April 2022), Mr. LIAO Yuging,
Mr. WANG Lei, Mr. LAW Yung Koon, Mr. WANG Zhihua,
Mr. LUO Jianfeng, Mr. ZUO Manlun, Ms. XIE Jingyun, Mr.
CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy,
and Mr. WEN Xianjun, have participated in continuous
professional development by reading materials to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills in areas related to
their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance, regulatory updates and topics
related to aluminium industry, and provided their
respective record of training to the Company.

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
segregated. Mr. LIU Libin was the chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”) before his resignation on 14 April 2022.
Immediately after the resignation of Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. WANG
Li became the chairman of the Board. The Chairman is chiefly
responsible for managing the Board. Mr. LIAO Yuging is the
chief executive officer of the Company who takes charge of
the supervision of the execution of the policies determined by
the Board. The Chairman also chairs the Board meetings and
briefs the Board members on the issues discussed at the Board
meetings.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu and Mr. LAM Ying
Hung Andy has been appointed for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2020 and Mr. WEN Xianjun has been
appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing from 4
August 2021.

Each of Mr. ZUO Manlun and Ms. XIE Jingyun has been
appointed for a fixed term of three years commencing from 1
April 2020.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgement on the
issues discussed thereat.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the remuneration committee comprised Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
(Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. LIU
Libin (resigned on 14 April 2022) and Mr. WANG Li (appointed
on 14 April 2022) and Mr. LIAO Yuging. The primary duties of
the remuneration committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management. The remuneration
committee shall also be responsible for review and/or approve
matters relating to share option scheme of the Company. No
share option has been granted by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED B Z54R 2 22 fR AR AT weevees

BUFHITESRFHUITES

BREAGE A ~ B ZEAERMEBAERH
CEAETEEFHH_E_EFMA—H
Fn AE=F mMXEBELEZETE
FEHYH - -—FN\ANBRE - A
H=% -

A tEMSEELXLTRAZEFEE
TFEHE - -_ZFMA—HFK - BH
=4 o

BUFATEECHFEEE S - A5
BRI RS 2 BRI HIBL A -

EE=HM

KRG ETFTREE AT - KLEFHE
Bg WAEMRTEBESE - REZE
—E-—F+-A=+—HIFE - Fll
ZESRAERELE(ER)  BBMEE -
MEDESEA - B EE(R=ZFE ==
MAtMHAFEE) ATV RE(RF
—FNATNHEZRE) REEEXE
K - FNZ B s X ERE AR &t
FAS TANEMESESESRE
BE/ e ERRESSRBES - H
MEEEMAE TR NS EEBAR
AEREFENEE -HE-_T =
FTZA=+T—HIEFE ARRBERD
EfrTBE AR AE o



Corporate Governance Report

It is the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of
each Director and senior management shall be determined by
reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
qualifications of each candidate.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration
committee has held one meeting, at which the remuneration
committee members have reviewed and made
recommendations to Board on the remuneration package of
the new executive Director who is also the chairman of the
Board.

The following sets out the attendance record of the meeting
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meeting
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Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fAIBZ=SRE 1

Mr. LIU Libin (resigned on 14 April 2022) BINOR A (RZF = Z4F P A+ HEFHE) 171

Mr. WANG Li (appointed on 14 April 2022) Tkt (R=ZFEZZFNA+HAEZ(F) n

Mr. CHEN Mo PRER A 1

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MBS n

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the nomination committee comprised Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)
(resigned on 14 April 2022), Mr. WANG Li (Chairman)
(appointed on 14 April 2022), Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN
Mo, Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy and Mr. ZUO Manlun. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as Directors and senior management of the
Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the nomination
committee has held one meeting, at which the nomination
committee members have reviewed and made
recommendations to Board on the appointment of an executive
Director.

The following sets out the attendance record of the meeting

held by the nomination committee during the year ended 31
December 2022:

Mr. LIU Libin (resigned on 14 April 2022)

Mr. WANG Li (appointed on 14 April 2022) E7E (R
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu ABE=LEE
Mr. CHEN Mo PRERSE &
Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy MEB A
Mr. ZUO Manlun EmmitE

According to the articles of association of the Company, one-
third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from
the office and offer themselves for re-election. The Directors to
be retired by rotation shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last appointment. At a full Board meeting held
on 25 March 2022, the Directors have reviewed the
performance of the Directors who would retire at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2022 and
approved the recommendation of re-electing such Directors at
the aforesaid annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizes and embraces the
benefits of diversity in the Board. The Board has adopted a
Board Diversity Policy (“Board Diversity Policy”) to comply with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code which
was effective from 1 September 2013. The Company believes
that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors including, but not limited
to, skills, regional and industry experience, cultural and
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educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The composition, experience
and balance of skills on the Board retains core members with
longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The Board
considers that gender diversity is vital in order to achieve a
diverse Board composition. To achieve gender diversity within
the Board, the Board'’s objective is to have at least 1 female
director in its composition. At present, out of the 12 Board
members, 11 of them are male and 1 of them is a female.

The process for the nomination of Directors is led by the
nomination committee, which has been made on a merit basis.
A nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) was adopted on 31
December 2018 and became effective on 1 January 2019,
which serves to improve the transparency of the process and
criteria in selecting and recommending candidates as directors
of the Company for the Board’s approval from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The Directors
and the nomination committee will consider and nominate
candidates according to the Nomination Policy based on
objective criteria with due regard to the benefits of diversity as
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, to the Board for approval.
In identifying individuals and making recommendations for
nominations, the nomination committee considers whether
such individuals have the appropriate qualifications, ability and
perspectives that would enable them to effectively fulfill their
roles and responsibilities as directors of the Company. The
Board will review the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy on a regular basis to ensure their continued effectiveness.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the nomination
committee was satisfied with the diversity of the existing Board
composition and did not, for the time being, set up any
measurable objective regarding board diversity.
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The following sets out the gender distribution in the workforce
of the Group (including senior management):

Employment by gender

BRI E D NER

Male S
Female pegid

Total number of employees EEBAZ

POLICY IN RELATION TO INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AVAILABLE TO THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board adopted
the Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board which aims to ensure independent views and input are
available to the Board.

The Policy in relation to Independent Views Available to the
Board served as a guideline on the requirements in relation to
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-
executive Directors shall satisfy the independence criteria under
the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. In this connection, each
independent non-executive Director is required to confirm in
writing to the Company and the Stock Exchange his/her
independence upon his/her appointment as a director of the
Company with reference to the independence criteria in the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director is also
required to inform the Company and the Stock Exchange as
soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect his/her independence and
must provide an annual confirmation of his/her independence
to the Company. An annual review shall be conducted by the
Company to assess the continuing independence of
independent non-executive Directors, with attention to
ensuring that they remain independent in character and
judgement, and continue to present an objective and
constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management and the Board.
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The implementation and the effectiveness of the Policy in
relation to Independent Views Available to the Board are
subject to review by the Board on an annual basis.

H. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION H.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, KPMG, the Group’s
external auditors, provided annual audit services and other
non-audit services to the Company. A breakdown of the
remuneration of the Group's external auditors is as follows:
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For the year ended
31 December 2022

BE-Z—-C
+=ZA=+-—H
IEFE
(RMB’000)
(ARKTFT)
Audit service B R
Annual audit services FEEZRTE 1,395
Other non-audit services E i IEEZ RS
(among others, for reviewing the interim (BIEFEMAEBE G HTKER)

financial information of the Group)

. AUDIT COMMITTEE l.

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the code provisions and
recommended practices of the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
systems of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2022, members of the audit committee comprised Mr. LAM
Ying Hung, Andy (Chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu, being the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms.
XIE Jingyun being the non-executive Director.
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EXRELRHRS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the audit committee
has held three meetings, at which:

— the audit committee members have reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors of the Company the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, who is of the opinion that
such statements complied with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements, and
that adequate disclosures have been made;

— the audit committee have reviewed the reasonableness
and fairness of the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021; and

— the audit committee members have reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors of the Company the
Group's unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2022.

The following is the attendance record of the meetings held by
the audit committee during the year ended 31 December 2022:

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy PRI 5 A
Mr. CHEN Mo B B 45 A

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu (A B
Ms. XIE Jingyun HE=iL+

J. DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The Board has not established a risk management
committee. Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing
the risk management function, including establishing and
approving the overall risk management strategies of the Group
form time to time, overseeing senior management’s
implementation of those strategies to align with the Company’s
risk profile, overseeing risk management framework structure,
reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies and ensuring risk
management effectiveness.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a
holistic risk management process. The bottom-up approach is
supported by key business units to identify and prioritise risks
while the top-down approach reviews and assesses if risks are
comprehensively identified, prioritised, and properly addressed
by key business units to accomplish the Group'’s objectives. The
management team is regularly monitoring emerging risks for
continuous risk assessment purpose and for building the risk-
management based internal audit plan and periodically assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and
internal controls for ongoing risk assurance purposes. This
enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control
framework.

The Group'’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained
and applicable legislation and regulations are complied with.
During the year under review, through discussions with the
management, the internal audit team and external auditors and
with reference to a report submitted by the internal audit team
and a risk assessment report prepared by a professional audit
firm, the Board has conducted assessments and reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system in various perspectives, including, among others,
financial control, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The risk management and internal control
systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each review
covers a whole financial year.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated
to the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group
based on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow
analysis, risk assessment and performance evaluation and the
self-inspection mechanism with comprehensive risk
management functions under the authority of the Board and
the guidance of the audit committee. It regularly reports to the
audit committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and
in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

During the year under review, the internal audit unit of the
Company continuously optimized job responsibilities and
functions of different departments according to the annual
audit plan approved by the Board. Such audit work covered
financial, operation, statutory compliance and connected
transactions, etc., of the Group. During the year under review,
the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and material internal controls system. Based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
Board is satisfied with the present risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considers them
effective and adequate. During the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report, nothing has been found
which requires substantial improvement.

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure
and regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly
comply with relevant policies on inside information while
notifying the Directors (who are also the senior management of
the Group) and employees the latest guidance announced by
the regulatory body on such information disclosure from time
to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest information.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has taken up the corporate governance functions in
accordance with code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code and has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and compliance; has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Company; has reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; reviewed and monitored the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees of
the Company and the Directors; and has reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
during the Year as well as the disclosures in this Corporate
Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Pang Wai Ho (formerly known as Pang Wai Ching) was the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”). In
delivering his service as Company Secretary, Mr. Pang directly
reported to the Chairman. Mr. Pang has confirmed that for the
year under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 64 of the Company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself(themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business, which is presently situated at Unit 605, 6/F, Wing On
Plaza, 62 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. Any shareholder enquiry may be directed to the Board
through the Company Secretary by sending to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meeting under the Company’s articles
of association or under the Companies Act (As Revised) of the
Cayman lIslands. Shareholders may follow the procedures set
out above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.
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O. INVESTOR RELATIONS

1

(2)

Constitutional documents

During the Year, the Company amended its
memorandum and articles of association and, as
approved by the Shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 27 May 2022, adopted an amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association in order
to, among other matters, bring its memorandum and
articles of association in line with the latest legal and
regulatory requirements, including the amendments
made to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which took
effect on 1 January 2022.

Shareholders’ communication policy

During the Year, the Company first established and
adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
("Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) which sets out
the provisions with the objective of providing
shareholders of the Company with ready, equal and
timely information on the Company for them to make
informed assessments of the Company’s strategy,
operations and financial performance, and enabling them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner. The Board
reviewed and considered the Shareholders’
Communication Policy was effective during the Year. The
Shareholders” Communication Policy is available on the
website of the Company at http://www.xingfa.com.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors

WANG Li
Chairman

Foshan China, 15 March 2023
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

1.1

1.2

Basis of Preparation

This 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa
Aluminium”, the “Group”, or “we") is prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”), covering the reporting period from 1 January
2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Year” or “Reporting
Period”). This Report is prepared in Chinese and the
English version is the translation version. If there is any
discrepancy between Chinese and English, the Chinese
version shall prevail. Unless otherwise stated, the
denominated currency in the report is in Renminbi. For
the content of corporate governance, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report in the 2022 Annual Report
of the Group.

Reporting Principle

This Report is prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(hereinafter referred to as the ”"Guide”) set out in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. It complies
with the reporting principles regarding “materiality”,
“quantitative”, “consistency” and “balance” and
discloses in detail the concept, practice and performance
of Xingfa Aluminium in terms of ESG. In order to enhance
the completeness and comparability of this Report, some
previous or recent related activity reports are also
included.
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1.4
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Scope of the Report

The subject of this Report covers the core business of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries,
including the manufacture and sale of construction
aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium profiles. This
Report focuses on reporting the environment and social
policies relating to the Group’s core business during the
Reporting Period. The board of directors (the “Board”) of
Xingfa Aluminium is fully responsible for the Group's
sustainable development strategy, its reporting and risk
management. During the Reporting Period, we disclosed
key performance indicators (KPIs) on important
environmental and social issues and the KPIs of
environmental issues only cover four subsidiaries located
in Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi and Henan of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") and the Precision
Manufacturing Company.

Information and Feedback

We value your suggestions or opinions in seeking
constant improvement. If you have any comments about
this Report, please contact us in the following ways:

Postal Address: No. 5, Zone D, Central Science and
Technology Industrial Park, Sanshui
District, Foshan City, Guangdong

Province

Tel.: 0757-85332727
Email address: xingfazhb@126.com

1.3

1.4
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2 SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 2 AEFERRER
MANAGEMENT
2.1 Sustainable Development Strategy 21 AUEHEREREK

The United Nations (UN) adopted the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development in 2015, announcing 17
Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs), which cover
the global challenges facing society today, including
those related to poverty, inequality, climate,
environmental degradation, prosperity and peace and
justice. With these goals, the UN hopes that companies
can achieve their own sustainable development while
promoting the sustainable development of society. As a

A B 2015 F BB (2030 F Al 5
BERZE) EMI7EBSHY
HEEREBIE(UNSDGs) METE
SHemERNSERkE - BIFHEE
CAEE AR RBERE
B RATFEIFEBRBAOKE -
Al%ﬁ%m%l{f‘%ﬁ@%‘uﬂ*
J= B[R B RE S m A 4B B
AEATERAR  AEEFRHZ

corporate citizen, the Group fully understands the EjiT%,ié’é)?éE‘]E % —HER
importance of global sustainability and endeavours to ZEFEUN SDGs * RETE K& A
respond to the UN SDGs. It is committed to creating HEEE REIERERE BXRE

value in four major aspects, that is, “Striving for
Perfection and Pursuit of Excellence”, “Protecting the
Environment, Co-existing and Co-prosperity”, “Human-

M TRERE HEHEK] T
AN B J«‘/(%/iZHXFJ&WiE%
| OHRSZE] BT EdE

£ T’E@J—f FEERE - &ﬁ'ﬁ&%%

oriented, Sincerity and Trustworthy” and “Community
Participation and Sharing”. By doing so, we fulfill IESEY-IN EI Ly Y-t AR
corporate social responsibilities (CSRs) and make progress LEHEE - tbElE T ol EE R
towards sustainable development. While adhering to the BEREE  MELNTAR -

corporate mission of “letting the aluminium industry

bring excellence for better human life”, the Group has

also formulated a sustainable development strategy,

which covers the following:

Sustainable
Development
Strategy Strategic Objectives UN SDGs
AFERRRR BRER FrFE () UN SDGs B 1%
Striving for Perfection Adhering to the vision of “creating Goal 3: Good Health and Wellbeing 3 Zg_ﬁﬁm
and Pursuit of excellence in Xingfa as a century- Goal 12: Responsible Consumption and
Excellence old brand”, strengthening Production /M /
technological innovation,
developing high-tech products
gnd acsel.eraltlng the 1 nnss
industrialisation of patented HEAER
products
B ki FABEHEE 2RFmE] Bi%3: RIFEEEMBL m
BREM WERR - RCRMEF  AEs BR12: BETHENLEE
RHREm - MREFERERL
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Sustainable

Development

Strategy Strategic Objectives
AHERRRR B A&

Protecting the While consolidating Xingfa products,

Environment, Co-
existing and Co-

we are committed to protecting
the environment and leading

prosperity green production in the industry
RERE EZEEEEMNRR - BNTE
HAHE RERE S| RITEGEER

Human-oriented,
Sincerity and
Trustworthy

Adhering to the talent concept of
“Human-oriented, Sincerity and
Trustworthy”, we are constantly
optimising the talent management
model and building an excellent
management team

FENAARBRUAMIE] AT
B TEEAT EERES -
TEBEENERER

IANBAE
LABER {5

Community Participation  In the critical period of fighting

and Sharing against COVID-19, we are actively
ensuring the safety of staff, giving
back to the community and
working with all parties to achieve
growth and a win-win situation
HmaE ERRN AR HERRRES T
HRANZE M%e BELER BFEHE

BRELR

RIE - HEREAHRS

UN SDGs
Fr& FERI UN SDGs B 2

Goal 7: Affordable and Clean Energy
Goal 13: Climate Action

BR7 : EEERNBZER
BiR13: RIx1TH

13 SIRITE

Goal 1: No Poverty

Goal 8: Decent Work and Economic
Growth

Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities

AEI{EH
ZFK

BfR1:EEE
BiE8 : BEILEFLEER

BIZ10  BOTES fi/"

-m RORFE

V'
(=)

v

Goal 3: Good Health and Wellbeing
Goal 11: Sustainable Cities and
Communities

3 Gnsnn
/e

| s

BiZ3: RIFfEFEEAL
BiZ 11 : Al SN AL ®

N7
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2.2

In terms of ESG governance, the Board of the Company
plays a key role in promoting sustainable development,
assuming full responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy
and reporting, as well as overseeing the Group's ESG-
related policies, initiatives and performance. The Board
actively fulfils its ESG governance responsibilities and is
responsible for assessing and determining our ESG-
related issues and risks, as well as ensuring that the
Company has an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control system in place. At the
same time, the Board requires the management of the
Company to report regularly on the implementation of
ESG initiatives and the target progress of the subsidiaries,
and to make timely decisions on important ESG issues,
including reviewing and approving ESG reports, so as to
understand the ESG performance of the Company’s
business.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining good relations
with stakeholders, as it regards them as the bedrock of
its business development. By actively identifying
stakeholders, we establish and constantly improve various
communication mechanisms. Through active and
effective communication, we gain an in-depth
understanding of the expectations and requirements of
stakeholders. We highly respect and safeguard the
legitimate rights and interests of stakeholders. By well
balancing the relations with shareholders, employees and
various sectors of society, we work with them to attain
sustainable, sound and steady development. To answer
the expectations and requirements of stakeholders, the
Group incorporates their concerns and requirements into
its sustainable development issues and actively responds
with practical actions to strive for the common growth
with stakeholders.

During the Year, we continued to engage regularly with
key stakeholder groups in a variety of formats to ensure
we could communicate effectively on topics of
stakeholder concern.

2.2

EESGERAHE ' ARRIEZGHE
EHABESERIAEEEENA
B %R BB ESG 5 IS N FE 3R
E2HET UNEEAEEY
ESGHEEAEREE - aiE R KRB - EEF
CEBETESGEARE a&F
i N F T FIM ESG MR RE s E A A
& ARERAARRIAENE
HVESGRBR S TR N A SPBEHE 24 o
AR EFgZ2RKARaEEETE
HAFE 3R & T A Al M ESG TIESE &M
BIREES  WHEHEEEZAESG
EEBETRE BREEAREH
ESGHREZERR - THARRIER
HIESGEERK »

NEBEGRE

ARBEMEAERE T REHERD
A —ERHEN S8R T R
REFEREE - AT ERAIE N
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Stakeholder category
M5 ER

Staff

i
H

Governments and
regulatory institutions

DR MESE 8

Investment institutions/
shareholders

RERE /IR

Suppliers/outsourced
producers

HER, ML EER

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Main expectations

IEHE

Equal opportunities

Salary and benefits
Occupational health and safety
Employee development
TERE

oA

BREFRREZE

BEI%R

Compliance operation
Tax compliance
Job creation

Promote local economic development

ARER
BB
BlERL
RE T EERR

Corporate governance
Shareholders’ equity
Information disclosure

Risk management and control

ARRE
B
LERE
ARER

Integrity

Mutual benefit for win-win results

BEEH
ERHE

RIE - HEREAHRS

Main communication methods

FEREAR

Intranet

Training and employee activities
Trade union and workers' congress
Various seminars

NGl

EIRELES
IgkBIREARS

* PN
BHEEHE

Regular reporting
Supervision and inspection

B Al
I 45

s8>
i

Company announcements

General meetings

Roadshow and reverse roadshow

Strategy meeting

Email, telephone, WeChat and corporate website
NSIUN=

BEAE
PR M R AR
RHE

5 - 5 - MIERATER

Bidding and tender

Review and evaluation meeting

Regular communication

Email, telephone, WeChat and corporate website
BERE

BEEFLE

EHIRIAR

EH - B MERATEH
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Stakeholder category
M EE 5 ER

Customers

=P

Industry

1%

Media

R

Local community

Bt
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Main expectations

IEHE

Brand influence
Product quality
Service standard
Customer opinion
Mg EN
EmEE

MR 7KF
BEFER

Comply with industry regulations
Promote industry development
Industrial innovation
BTITRRED

RETRER

E XA

Information disclosure
Social contributions

oS>

o 31

PF TiF
) cm

Support public welfare

Create a harmonious community
FRSYNCE S

LEME R

Main communication methods

FEREAR

Customer opinion survey
Customer centre and hotline
Customer visits

Exhibition fairs
EFERAE

B RO AR

RFHEH

Hd

)?‘ZEE

Industry forums and exchanges
Site visits

Research

TEREBENZRE

EIH LT

FEH

Result announcement conference
Media open day

Special reports

xEnme

BRI A

sEmE

Community activities

HEREE
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2.3 Materiality Assessment 23 EEMEENMG

In the previous Reporting Period, we examined and ELFE—3EFE  BARERTN
updated the materiality issues based on the latest industry THEBE REQAFER  AIFHE
trends, peer company practices, Sustainability Accounting ST ERZEECASB)ITEZER
Standards Board (SASB) industry topics and the focus of ESGHERRT RN ERFTAE -
ESG-related rating criteria. To ensure the expectations HEZMHRBETRRNEF - &
and requirements of stakeholders can be answered in a THRA AR S A B R
timely manner, we in 2022 conducted another online B RERERE  BRPRAFEERE
questionnaire survey of key ESG issues with the assistance EBEYE=ZFTHRENHDTHET
of an independent third-party institution to identify the ESCEZEZBERBEHE - #hl
important ESG issues that have a great impact on both HECEMAZHEIHIEBRAY
the Group and shareholders. The process consists of the ZMBEEURE ABBREUTY
following steps: 5

Identification of ESG issues Initially identifying 18 ESG issues related to Xingfa’s operations in addition to the

materiality issues updated in 2021 by combining the ESG Reporting Guide of the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange, issues of peer companies and sustainable development trends;
ESG & e s 7l 221 FEEFNEEUZENER - HeBXA(ESGImEIES!)  AERFE

RELAR AT FFE R RBE - Y h b s 2 AR A 18 THESG 2

Prioritisation of ESG issues Inviting internal (including directors, senior management, middle and junior
management and other positions of the Group) and external stakeholders (including
investors/shareholders, customers, suppliers, distributors and others) to fill in online
questionnaires and collect their scores regarding the materiality of ESG issues;

ESG AT BREAR(BREEESE SMERAE hEREEBEREAE - HUERIAR) KN
BRRBES (BEREE/RR TP - #HEN  LHEAS) EFERASHS - K
EHYWESGHEZZMMETS

Analysis and review of Analyzing the 67 scoring results collected and by reference to the “materiality” reporting

materiality issues principle of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s ESG report, determining the priority of
various ESG issues from two dimensions: “Importance to Xingfa's business and
sustainable development” and “Importance to stakeholders and the environment and
society” and obtaining the ultimate confirmation of the priority from the management.

BEMREN T RER AITRER TR ER - BEBRAESGMEESII EZ2 M ERRE - SR ¥
EEEB LA HEERNEEN IRMENREMRT RN ENEEN MELE -
HEE B IAESG AR B SR P I B 1R B R AR HERR ©
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The following sets out the degree of importance of AEFEE  AEEEEHFTHEEFESN
various issues identified from the Group’s materiality R B MAARNT

assessment during the Year:

Materiality matrix

o EEMER

2

)

T = Supplier ) . Occupational health

environmental & Anti-corruption and safety

Pl social risk k&S BT e
9 assessment and B

] management °

wv m g 7 51 A ©

Q Li‘{ﬂ;ﬁiiéﬁfﬁi;g;ig - Exhaust emissions Waste Management
< ZRET B BZYE

+ and management BRMEE )
'g RESm e ER i ° e Wastewater discharge
gl ° 9 and management
1 Use of water FEIRHERER & 12

o i Human rights and e resources 2 Product quality

g 2 labour rights - KBRER e control

S 4 AER&SBE  Community ) ¢ EQREREHE

S

£ H participation an GHG emissions g Enirgy usage
2 contribution e S BEJR {2 A
S HE W E 2 % B A B RS HERR

[T O

R o Employee

-1 I poricpatinand | feonete

@ " - TIEHS @meig Environmental

g g BT RETER FEST R ARE L Compliance

= =X Etﬁ
S Land resources and LA
poys im Employee
g pact on [}

E E biodiversity developmgnt and

g AR R ) L.

o™ SR E SR

g Employee

s compensation and

v _ bgneflts\i

9 8 TRAEN KAg A - Envir%nmental issues
£ RIGHB

> Social issues
HEEeE

Importance to Xingfa’s business and sustainable development Highest

HERXBERIHRBRNERM &&
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Environmental issues
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The following are the nine high-materiality issues of the

Group identified from the above materiality matrix:

High-materiality issues
EEERSRE

Wastewater Discharge and Management

FE7K RN LR IR

Use of Energy

BEIR{E

Waste Management

EEMER

Exhaust Emissions and Management

FERPEDL R I

RIE - HEREAHRS

WA LERMIERES  NEEHER
HIOERESZZEMT ¢

Overview

B

The impact of water pollutants (e.g. heavy metals,
ammonia, nitrogen, organic matter, etc.)
discharged during our operations on the
surrounding water bodies and ecology and the
mitigation measures taken to reduce the impact
S ERRET YRR (I - 54
B 24 AHYE)HREKBREENTE
A B2 R RUAR L 57 28 T BRER B R R HE

Energy management measures taken to reduce
energy consumption and enhance energy efficiency
in our operations (e.g. reducing the use of dyes,
electricity, heating, steam, etc.)

IR EERIETD BB RRBRE - IRTTBEIRE
Rz m A e IR E R (20 - A E AR
BB BR - EAF)

The methods of handling hazardous and non-
hazardous waste during our operations and the
waste reduction measures taken to minimise the
impact on the ecology and human health

MR ERRETRIEAENEEEEMNT L
AR R AR T A REER IR M AR BRIE R B T AR
HR B Rl & 5 e

The impact of air pollutants (e.g. nitrogen oxides,
sulphur oxides, particulates, volatile organic
compounds, etc.) emitted during our operations on
the ecological environment and human health and
the mitigation measures taken to reduce their
impact

S ERETIERNZER SR (HI - &
a1y - ey - By - BREEEYE) Y
ARRENABRENZE  UMRREERZE
M EREX R BEE e

99
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Social issues

S A s
HEHE
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High-materiality issues

BEEEERE

Environmental Compliance

RIREMR

Use of Water Resources

IKERE

Occupational Health and Safety

BERERELZE

Anti-corruption

Product Quality Control

7

T

EmEEEE

Overview

R

Environmental compliance in our operations and
identification of areas for improvement (e.g.
whether all environmental permits required by laws
and regulations are in place and in compliance with
the relevant legal and regulatory requirements)
HEFLERRPAERRAENEGRER  LE
BRI AT ABCE R ZE 8 (140 - BRERFBIAER
ERPTRENRERFAI B LA BRERER X
RENE)

Water conservation measures taken to consume
water reasonably and enhance water efficiency
during our operations
ERELERETAGEERKER  IRIAK
R T ERER B 8 7K $8 B

To protect the occupational safety of our
employees, provide a suitable working environment
and promote their physical and mental health
HESREEINRELRS  RESENITIER
5 AREER S DRE

Policies and controls in place to prevent bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering (e.g. anti-
corruption training, effective awareness and
whistle-blowing mechanisms, etc.) in our daily
operations and procurement processes
WENAEEENMRBEREEETNN LA
B8R MFERARES T EBR LR (FI
W BITREBE - B R R S R
GRS

Policies and measures adopted to improve our
product quality and ensure our products could
meet related standards

BEELANEEREE BRERTSEBEEMR
HETTEVBCR K FE it
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3 STRIVING FOR PERFECTION AND PURSUIT 3
OF EXCELLENCE

BERBEREW

3.1 Smart Manufacturing with Craftsman’s Spirit 3.1 EOEE

The Group takes smart manufacturing with craftsman’s
spirit as one of its missions, by fully implementing the
State Council’s “Quality Development Outline (2011-
2020)" and the “National 13th Five-Year Plan for Safe
Production” and strictly abiding by the I1SO 9001 quality
management system, the government recognized
laboratory management system, measurement and
certification management system, military certification
system and other systems. Our requirements for product
quality are higher than the industry average. We
introduced world-advanced production equipment to
optimise the physical and chemical properties of our
products, a prerequisite for realising lean production.
Since the introduction, we have not only improved
productivity, but also reduced the number of workers,
staff workload and operational costs. This is a step
further toward the benefit maximisation for the Group.

The following is the progress made by the companies in
performing lean production during the Year:

Sanshui Company

o Issues found in relation to blanks, paint quality, etc.
were monitored by daily statistical analysis of
repainting and rework pass rate and continuously
oversaw the field time yield (FTY) to reduce the
fluorocarbon paint and spraying powder consumed,
thus avoiding resource waste;

o The vertical fluorocarbon production line was
strengthened and renovated, which improved the
output while upgrading from manual feeding to
automated feeding. As a result, both the
fluorocarbon packaging line and the aluminium
extrusion line enhanced their production efficiency;

AEERFELEEACHE  2EE
BHATBEER(EEREME
(2011-2020) & ) R«A & & £ E
[+=FR]HE) BEIKEFISO
901 HEEEER  HXRAER
EEERR FERFETERRE
FEIRFEEZZHEEZE  Aan
TEIFHEENEREEERAH
B - Rf@BESIEHEREELE
BB BEEROMIBEERE RS
MEEEBM - HREBREE - AIHE
TR BRATEES TEER
BRI THIAS BEKTE
TEEhRE - WHER TRASH
FH AN EBMEREERE

AEE  UTARATEHRTHE
LS ERMT -

=kaF

o BEBXREFOMERIEEN
RTERE - WIEFFERE -
REESHEETER T
—REREBERETHER
7 e ERBORE - B2
Wit @BRERRE

o WYREREEGETT NG
Bk RAEENFBEA
TERFARBEDL  BiRS
TRBEES  EEEERN
HRERE
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Furnaces were upgraded to save natural gas
consumption, for the purpose of emission reduction
and energy conservation;

Casting slag recovery machines were replaced with
grinders, which could increase the processing
capacity while reducing the noise produced thereof.

Jiangxi Company

The "“Proposal on Improving Employee Innovation”
was implemented, in which incentives would be
rolled out to encourage employee innovation. A
total of 158 innovation proposals were collected
from staff in the Year, with collective wisdom
pooled together to enhance the performance of
the company;

Five lean production projects were rolled out to
reduce energy consumption and cost in the
production process, which included the “Project for
Reducing Natural Gas Consumption of Extrusion
Furnace 1800T2#", the "Project for Reducing the
Burnout Rate in the Casting Workshop” and the
“Project for Improving the Pass Rate of One-time
Mould Testing in the Mould Workshop”;

A 7S demonstration site was set out in each
workshop and visualised and functional zoning
management was introduced to workshops. The
company cooperated with the lean management
team of the Group to collect and quantify data of
each workshop on production, energy consumption,
etc. every month, analyse the causes of changes
identified thereof and actively discussed with
workshop managers how to apply lean improvements
to actual production.

FERBEERETTE - B T BELE
VABB#ISRAE

1A B K1 RR M R A I
o RREERS MR AIE
IEREE -

PN T |

HTCETRIFIRERE)
BIBEEFIE - HEE IREE
BlFT - AFEHWEE TR
RE158  EEREH AR
AIRETE

i) 7F (PR K 15 R 1800T24# 5 1
KR (RERIBEEMEBE)
(BERBERIREF—AMERAES
BE)SSHBERER B
PRK A ERE B A

EEEREYRILISERRE
B WHEBEMBSRMAER
£ REENEE  EeA%
EiEmEE/ e FAKRE
BLRERLE  ERZFH
R pTEHREA - BHRES
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Henan Company JHE A E]

An automatic conveyer track of finished broken
bridge aluminium that could work with empty
forklifts was designed and produced to achieve a
production flow, where the frequency of crane use,
operational risks and workers’ labour intensity
could all be reduced and the production process
and logistics/transportation would become more
efficient;

The vertical spray chamber was renovated to
further improve the comprehensive utilisation
efficiency of the production line and reduce the
powder consumption in the spraying process with
more efficient use. Meanwhile, related production
equipment was upgraded to extend the service life
and reduce the risk of failure, two prerequisites for
operating at full capacity;

Rod heads of extrusion machines (small and
medium-sized) were transformed, fine grinding was
introduced to the main machine line and parts such
as the main machine, container and clamp copper
plate were changed. Accurate adjustments were
made to ensure the stable operation of the
equipment. Automation could reduce the labour
intensity of workers, while reducing equipment
damage;

The sealant injection room in the surface workshop
was relocated and transformed. Material transfer
vehicles were designed, produced and installed,
along with the “U-shaped” entry and exit track, so
as to transport raw materials efficiently throughout
the process. This is a great move to make better
use of production capacity, thus reducing cost and
increasing efficiency;

New techniques were explored for the extrusion
workshop to reduce equipment damage and
improve the daily output of large equipment.

FEXRMEETE T st & Em
ENE - o B BExsE
BRI—@xR] £E B m
BE IR - BRIRIEERR X
TABHAE ReEEEBRE
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IEEEE
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Precision Manufacturing Company

o The porous extrusion mould technology was
improved to reduce energy loss in the production
process.

The Group exercises rigid quality control throughout the
entire process. We have quality control points in every
segment from casting, extrusion, moulds and surface
treatment to ex-warehouse delivery, preventing defective
products from flowing into the next process. Meanwhile,
we regulate quality inspection and evaluation measures
for engineering projects, as a move to raise project
management standards. For example, the Jiangxi
Company formulated new quality inspection
specifications for solar profiles to reduce quality and
safety risks and improve production conditions
continuously. We also strictly control every detail of the
operation process, carefully check whether there are
quality problems such as grooves, rough lines and
scratches on the profile surface and measure the profile
angle and flatness through a square ruler to strive
towards the goal of perfection. We fully implement the
“Product Quality Management Manual”, “Quality
Department Management Plan”, “QUASCAP Pearlescent
Electrophoresis Profile Inspection Regulations” and
“Internal Control Standards”, emphasize product quality
management and strive to provide customers with
satisfactory products, protect the ecological environment
and maintain staff safety and health. The general
manager of the Group holds a dealer meeting every year
and visits key customers on an ad hoc basis every month
to solicit opinions from customers on product
improvement. In order to manage the recycling and
processing of faulty products, we implement the “Control
Procedure on Faulty Products” and the “Bad Quality
Behaviour, Process Specification Supervision and
Deduction Treatment System”. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not violate any laws and
regulations related to product liability.
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3.2 Research and Development (R&D) and 3.2 WFREERIF

Innovation

The Group has all along been committed to building core
enterprise competitiveness by enhancing its technological
innovation capabilities. Since its inception, the Group has
obtained more than 1,800 domestic and foreign patents
and provided aluminium products and engineering
solutions that cover over 200,000 product specifications
and models in all major areas of aluminium alloys, such
as door, window and curtain wall systems in construction,
electronic equipment, mechanical equipment, rail
transportation, aerospace and ships. With our strong
R&D capabilities and persistent pursuit of excellent
quality, a wide and stable sales network has been
established in China and beyond in the past over 30
years, so as to meet the needs of global customers for
high-quality products. During the Year, Xingfa Aluminium
obtained 169 patents, including nine invention patents,
59 utility new models and 101 appearance patents.

Furthermore, the Group actively conducts industry-
university-research collaboration with universities and
research institutes. The Jiangxi Company teamed up with
the South China University of Technology and Hunan
University in the “Key Technology Research on Producing
Ultra-lightweight and Highly Profiled Extruded Aluminium
Alloy Auto Parts and Materials” project. To improve
ourselves, we got actively involved in peer exchanges,
such as the “Advanced Seminar on Lightweight Materials
and Manufacturing” held by Nanchang University.

The Group highly values intellectual property rights (IPR)
management. In accordance with the requirements of
the “Enterprise Intellectual Property Management” (GB/T
29490-2013) issued by the National Intellectual Property
Administration (CNIPA), we have passed the certification
of the "Enterprise Intellectual Property Management”
system. We have formulated rules and regulations,
including the “Intellectual Property Rights Management
System”, “Patent Management System”, “Trademark
Management System”, “Intellectual Property Rights
Training Measures”, “Scientific Research Project
Management System” and “Intellectual Property Rights
Strategic Planning Programme”, so as to strengthen the
promotion of patent laws and regulations, the
popularisation of patent knowledge, patent training,
patent application and protection, etc.
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3.3 Products and Services

The Group always puts customers and their satisfaction in
the first place. Apart from satisfying customers’ demands
for high-quality products, we also focus on providing
them with timely and effective service solutions. The
Group's sales network extends all over China and we are
committed to building a customer service management
mechanism through various customer service channels,
including customer opinion surveys, customer service
centres and hotlines, customer visits, exhibitions and
large-scale reception activities such as super factories. For
the convenience of customers, we have also established
an enquiry method enabling a quick search on sales
outlet locations on our website and providing online
messages, dealer portal website, anti-counterfeiting
enquiry and other options.

In order to standardise customer service management
and improve customer service quality, we provide the
following after-sales service undertakings in our tender
contracts:

o After receiving a customer’s quality feedback,
Xingfa Aluminium will respond within 24 hours or
dispatch service staff to the site as soon as possible
for after-sales service until the customer is satisfied;

o Xingfa Aluminium will send technicians to the site
to provide technical guidance services when
needed;

o If there is any damage caused by the quality of the
materials provided by Xingfa Aluminium, such
materials will be replaced free of charge;
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o Xingfa Aluminium will actively participate in
engineering coordination meetings organised by
customers, strictly implement meeting minutes or
signed agreements between the two parties and
pay return visits regularly to understand the use of
materials;

. After a contract is fulfilled, Xingfa Aluminium
undertakes to continue providing users with the
relevant technical services and answer users’
inquiries at any time;

o Xingfa Aluminium will further improve its services
and implement timely service, advanced service,
full-process service and high-quality service
throughout the entire product manufacturing and
installation process.

3.4 Information Security and Privacy Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information
security and customer privacy protection in strict
compliance with relevant national and local laws/
regulations. The Group is the first enterprise in the
industry to apply the “ERP modern management
information network project” and passed the
“Integration of Informatisation and Industrialisation
Management System Assessment” in 2017.

The Group also works hard to keep customers’
information and privacy confidential and regulates the
collection and preservation of customer information. For
software that may contain customer information,
customers’ private information will be encrypted and
relevant records will be kept for customer information
operation purposes only.
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Given our informatisation, automation and digitalisation
standards, we utilised multiple information systems,
adopted cloud computing, big data, Internet of Things,
mobile 5G and other new technologies and integrated
smart profile WMS, automated material three-
dimensional warehouse, automated mould three-
dimensional warehouse, energy information integrated
management platform, production equipment data
acquisition platform and comprehensive performance
analysis platform. Now, we are also accelerating the
construction of industrial Internet platforms, to ensure
the continuous improvement of our operational efficiency
and overall management standard.

The Group is committed to protecting customers’
personal privacy and attaches great importance to
information security. In strict compliance with the
relevant national and local laws and regulations, we
ensure that customer information is used properly and
prevent customer privacy leakage. We strengthen the
“digital centre” multi-level information security protection
as well as the network centre and industrial control
security. We believe that information security system
construction is a comprehensive, three-dimensional
project. In addition to strengthening the introduction of
security equipment, we also need to carry out
information security knowledge training for all staff
members, to reduce the security risks caused by
unnecessary user operation behaviour. In 2021, we
completed the security equivalence assessment of two
digital centres and one network centre and hardened the
security of user terminals. In the future, we will continue
to accelerate the process of enhancing the security of
industrial control networks to ensure that security risks
could be reduced to a minimum.
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3.5 Sustainable Supply Chain 3.5 TIFEMERE

3.5.1Supply Chain Environmental Risk 3.5. 11 fE DR IR 15 [ e B

Management

While developing, we join hands with upstream
and downstream partners in the industry chain to
promote a responsible supply chain, constantly
improve service quality and facilitate the healthy
and sustainable development of the industry. We
conduct a qualification review when bidding and
stipulate that the bidder must meet the related
requirements to become our supplier. For example,
the bidder must be a registered enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China, meet the relevant
requirements as a legal person and possess a
business licence and tax registration certificate. The
bidder must provide product specifications, quality
certificate, quality system certification (including
environmental management system), credit
certificate, etc. At the same time, we also require
the bidder to meet CSR requirements in three
different dimensions, that is, economic
sustainability, environmental sustainability and
social sustainability. The raw materials used in
product manufacturing of the Group are mainly
aluminium ingots and aluminium rods. Most of its
upstream suppliers are highly-polluted and high
energy-consumption enterprises. We require our
supply chain partners to strictly comply with the
specific requirements of the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and other relevant
laws and regulations. Meanwhile, we have also
issued related internal provisions. Our
environmental risk management policy for the
supply chain includes the following:

° The policy requires suppliers to satisfy the
requirements of regulatory, reporting and
operational measures. For chemical materials
purchases, general safety will be enhanced
through strengthening environmental
management, preventing environmental
pollution incidents and integrating supplier
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environmental risk management and supply
chain management to achieve “overall
safety”;

o Supplier assessment covers the assessment of
risks associated with the supplier, in which
aspects relating to product quality and
hazardous material control, supplier
environment. and safety control account for
40% of the overall risk assessment;

o Letters of guarantee are to be entered
into with suppliers on the exclusion of
environmentally hazardous substances. All
of these materials and parts are required to
pass the tests conducted by professional
testing organisations and testing reports with
official seals shall be provided.

Based on such policy, the companies formulate and
implement supply chain environmental risk
management measures in light of their actual
production and operation conditions. For example,
when the Chengdu Company organises its supplier
files every year, it requires suppliers to confirm that
they are not accountable for any safety and
environmental incidents in the previous year.
Whether the suppliers passed the environmental
impact and safety evaluation is the key inspection
item of the company in evaluating such suppliers. If
any supplier fails to pass the evaluation, the
supplier may be unable to fully guarantee the
supply of products. As such, the Group will not sign
any procurement contract with such suppliers, to
avoid related security risks. During the Year, the
Sanshui Company implemented a supplier
management system, which set out the
management organisational framework, post
duties, evaluation and supplier performance
management and other aspects of content related
to the procurement centre.

fERIRE R B E i A
EREEMES BR
[BERE]:

o HEMmTEREEMHE
R E R AR
HEBEREENEE
MEE  HERRER
ZE2EE OGS
BEEETHERZER
b sF D ER 40% ¢

e HHEBMBIRERE
METERRES B
KRR R B
e ERHLAERBE
EimBEEROR - IR

RINEREARBIRE

FBATHTLLBORAER L - 1B
BERAEBLRNGTLE
ML FE 2 MY IR SRR B B IR A
B o R - ER R B EERE
BHEEERE - A ERERE
BHERE E—FPEL2RR
EWEML HEBEEBRAR
ML 2 HER A REREZE
JERE R EMIER IR
RAE BIEREZHERET
BEEPREFEERENER
Hit - AREBBIGREZEMH
EREIHEER - LERR
2EK - AFE - ZKARE
T HEREREGE  BERE
B OB IRARAE R i
BE - HERA T EMERE
BEo



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HENRERERSE

3.5.2Supply Chain Social Risk Management 352t fEGEM B E fr B

The Group has established supplier evaluation
control procedures, major raw and auxiliary
materials inspection and procurement procedures,
quality objectives management and statistical
regulations for the specification and control of
supplier evaluation processes and procurement. The
Group's tender purchasing team is led by the senior
management, comprising the sourcing director and
heads of companies and departments. The main
method of purchasing raw materials is by tender
invitation.

In order to reduce social risks in the supply chain,
our social risk management policy for the supply
chain includes the following aspects of content:

° Investigation on bidder’s qualifications: The
policy states that the bidder must be an entity
incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China, meets the legal person capacity
required by the bidding unit and possesses an
enterprise business licence and tax registration
certificate. The bidder must provide product
specifications, quality certificate, quality
system certification (including environmental
management system), credit certificate, etc;

° Corporate Social Responsibility Management:
The policy requires the suppliers of the Group
to satisfy social sustainability.
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EXISTING AND CO-PROSPERITY

4.1 Environmental Compliance

Through integrating with the national green
manufacturing development plan, the Group has
formulated a comprehensive environmental protection
system, constantly improved the environmental
management standard and successfully obtained the 1ISO
14000 environmental management system certification
and the ISO 50001 energy management system
certification. All subsidiaries strictly abide by the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the "Environmental Impact Assessment Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the “Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution
Caused by Solid Waste Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the “Environmental Noise Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant national laws and regulations,
persist in conducting environmental emergency drills and
improve staff's awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection and work capabilities. The
Group has set up a safety and environment office to lead
and be accountable for its environmental protection
work. We implement the reward and penalty system for
environmental protection to reward environmental
protection staff with outstanding performance or penalise
those who have violated the regulations in respect of
environmental protection.

REBBBRECHRGOUEEE
RE - BIT2EMIRBRENE
THIRAIRIEEEKFE - WK IHER
13150 14000%R 3% & 12 88 R IS0
50001 B RERERRAE - T2
RSB F(REAREMBIIRIR
REE) (PEAREMBEIRIZS
BHEEE) (PEARLFMBKF
REaE) (PEARZME AR
EARMAEY  (REAREMEE
BEREW S RIRERRVE) ~ (REA
RAEFMBIRE RS L0 AE)E
MEBEZEERER  BERRBRE
JE2CEAR IR B LEREIRIRE
MIERE N - REERBTHRUL
ERENAZTEETEESENIR
RIVE WETREREBEZEEMT
fl HERRAEARARHIER
BRENBTL - 45T HEEISES -

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED FEZ% 3R 250 JG AR /X F] eevecocseeccccccccccccncccscccccsscccccsccsscsnssscssssccsssnnsscns



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

During the Year, the Group invested a total of
RMB22,456,000 in environmental protection, which was
mainly used for the preparation of the corporate
environmental emergency plan, environmental facilities
renovation, replacement of environmental protection
equipment parts and hazardous waste disposal. The
Chengdu Company organised training courses on
environmental protection management, hazardous waste
management and other topics. The Jiangxi Company
conducted self-monitoring of emissions and initiated the
clean production process in accordance with the
requirements of the “Self-monitoring Technical
Guidelines for Pollution Sources — Metal Foundry
Industry”. Meanwhile, it started the construction of a
solar photovoltaic project in the second half of 2022,
which could increase its use of renewable energy in the
future. The Henan Company thoroughly self-checked and
eliminated environmental risks, prevented environmental
pollution incidents and environmental impact incidents
and maintained its corporate environmental credit rating
at the level of “integrity”. In addition, it also intensified
the maintenance of environmental protection equipment
and managed such equipment as the main means of
production, thus ensuring the stable operation of various
environmental protection facilities. In addition to training
on hazardous waste knowledge and drills against
environmental emergencies such as sulfuric acid and
liguid ammonia leakage, the Sanshui Company also
updated its “Production Wastewater Management
System” and “Environmental Protection Management
System” and established the environmental protection
leading group that would consist of its main persons-in-
charge, heads of departments and other relevant
personnel. The Precision Manufacturing Company
established a number of systems such as the “Hearing
Protection Plan for Employees”, “EHS Duty Management
System” and “Operation Specifications for Wastewater
Discharge and Exhaust Emission”.
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The Group strives to implement its environmental
management initiatives and achieved all of the following
targets during the Year:

Sanshui Company

=KAF]

Jiangxi Company
ANiT/NG]

Chengdu Company

D% I/NS]

Henan Company

A E AR

Precision Manufacturing
Company
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No environmental pollution incidents throughout the Year
EFEERTISLAER

Enterprise with excellent credit rating in environmental protection

BRREMFERNFEE

Reduction of wastewater discharge by 3%

Reduction of organic gas emissions by 5%

No environmental pollution incidents throughout the Year

Wastewater discharge, exhaust emission, and noise production in compliance with
the national and local standards

Compliance disposal of solid waste
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No environmental pollution incidents and environmental impact incidents
Wastewater discharge, exhaust emission, and noise production in compliance with
the national and local standards

Compliance disposal of solid waste

Steady operation of environmental protection facilities
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Wastewater discharge and noise production in compliance with the national and
local standards

All hazardous waste handed over to qualified entities for disposal
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During the Reporting Period, there was no breach of any
laws and regulations relating to environmental emissions
by the Group nor did the Group receive any notice of
violation from the government environmental protection
department.

4.2 Emissions Management 42 HHYER

4.2.1Exhaust Gas Emissions

4.2. 1R HEH

Exhaust gas emissions generated during the
production and operation of the Group include
nitrogen oxide, particulates, sulphur dioxide and
organic waste gas. We strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations, such as the
“ Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China”. In our
environmental policy, the Group requires a
stringent restriction of exhaust gas and particulates
emitted into the atmosphere. Prior to emissions,
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exhaust gas must undergo purification treatment
and shall not exceed the specified standard
prescribed by the national or local environmental
protection bureau.
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Nitrogen oxide and particulates are mainly
generated from the casting workshop. The Group
has purchased natural gas energy transforming
equipment and used natural gas as production
energy to effectively reduce exhaust gas emissions
in workshops. During the Year, the companies
strengthened the exhaust gas purification
management:

Sanshui Company

] A cyclone paint removal tower was added to
the horizontal fluorocarbon production line
for front-end treatment of exhaust gas;

o The regenerative thermal oxidation (RTO)
process was used in the vertical fluorocarbon
production line for volatile organic compound
(VOCs) exhaust treatment;

J Activated carbon adsorption technology was
adopted to reduce electrophoresis exhaust
emissions and enhance the treatment
efficiency of VOC exhaust;

o The online monitoring device for nickel water
flow and process monitoring device for VOC
exhaust were installed to ensure the normal
operation of the exhaust treatment
equipment.

Jiangxi Company

o The bag-type dust collectors were renovated
or updated in the casting workshop and the
RTO exhaust treatment facilities were added
to the PVDF coating line in the coating
workshop, which reduced the emissions of
soot and organic gases,

° Dust removal facilities were newly put into
use in the casting workshop.
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Henan Company

° The rooftop solar photovoltaic system was
installed and put into use, as part of the
efforts for energy saving and carbon
reduction;

° The environmental protection equipment in
the aluminium bar workshop was renovated
or upgraded to avoid fugitive exhaust
emissions;

o Seasonal environmental protection measures
were taken to reduce the impact of exhaust
on the environment, such as the control of
processes involving volatile organic
compounds in summer and emergency
control in case of heavy pollution weather
conditions in the heating supply season.

During the Year, the Precision Manufacturing
Company took the following measures to reduce
the environmental impact of the construction site
in the process of plant expansion:

o formulating a science-based construction plan
during construction, which included
enhancing construction management and
advocating civilised construction;
strengthening transportation management
and prevention of material loss and leakage
measures on material transportation and
usage;

° the construction waste should be reasonably
piled up and cleaned in time and dry
construction waste should be sprinkled to
reduce dust pollution during loading,
unloading and transportation;
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o watering the ground and roads in the
operation area, regularly clearing road soil
and covering the ground with dust-proof film
to reduce the impact of floating dust
pollution on the environment and minimise
the impact on ambient air.

4.2.2Wastewater Discharge

Industrial wastewater generated by the Group's
production lines mainly consists of acidic and
alkaline wastewater, chromium wastewater and
nickel wastewater. We strictly abide by the
“Emission Standards of Pollutants for Inorganic
Chemical Industry”, the “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other relevant laws and
regulations and the takeover standard for sewage
treatment plants. The annual qualification rate of
wastewater discharge was 100%.

In addition, our environmental policy requires
strengthening wastewater treatment to reduce its
discharge volume. The policy also requires good
maintenance of the closed-circuit circulation and
integrated treatment of production wastewater,
including:

o Operating and upgrading wastewater
treatment and purification facilities;

o Oily, acidic, alkaline and highly toxic
wastewater is prohibited from discharging
into the water body. Discharging pollutants
into the water system is strictly restricted to
prevent pollution;

° Cleaning of vehicles and containers that
contain greasy or poisonous substances in the
water body is prohibited;
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Adding a new defluorination process to the
wastewater treatment station, adding a
dosing tank and maintaining the wastewater
sedimentation tank;

Reducing fluorinated wastewater discharges
through the use of wastewater recycling
agents and related retrofits;

The testing centre is responsible for
conducting daily wastewater inspection,
installing online wastewater monitoring
facilities, strictly controlling wastewater
discharge within standards and preparing
inspection records and reports;

The safety and environment office of the
Group as well as the environmental
protection management personnel in
production workshops shall cooperate with
and accept inspections by the environmental
protection agency on wastewater discharge
from time to time;

Using a new process for online recovery of
water resources from nickel wastewater and
extraction of nickel metal resources to realise
efficient recycling of resources and a water
reuse rate of over 95%;

Retrofitting the nickel wastewater treatment
system to realise separate treatment and
starting to monitor nickel wastewater flow;

Introducing the pot mould lye resource
utilisation system to realise the recycling of

lye.
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4.2.3Hazardous Waste Management

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations such as the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste”
and the “Measures on the Management of
Hazardous Waste Manifests” and specifies the
management requirements for hazardous waste in
the environmental policy. The hazardous waste
generated by our production and operation mainly
includes waste corrosive liquid, waste washing
liquid, waste tank liquid, tank slag, wastewater
treatment sludge, waste engine oil, etc. The Jiangxi
Company included aluminium ash and paint drums
in the 2022 Hazardous Waste Management List
and standardised their management as hazardous
waste as per the pertinent national provisions.

We strictly follow the “National Directory of
Hazardous Wastes” and other relevant regulations
and all hazardous wastes are entrusted to qualified
third-party bodies for proper recycling and
treatment. When pollution incidents may occur or
have occurred, emergency measures must be taken
immediately to prevent pollution from spreading
out and alleviate and even eliminate the impact of
incidents. Major incidents or emergent events
should be reported to the safety and environment
office of the Group for investigation within two
hours after the occurrence.
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During the Year, the Group continued to propel the
process of hazardous waste recycling, reduction
and non-hazardous treatment. The companies of
the Group continued to expand the use of the pot
mould lye resource utilisation system to realise the
recycling of lye. The Jiangxi Company used alkali
recycling technology for pot mould lye, which not
only reduced the generation of waste lye, but also
produced aluminium hydroxide as a by-product.
The Henan Company carried out anti-seepage
works on the ground of the hazardous waste room
and installed additional waste gas collection and
treatment facilities in the room to prevent the
pollution of hazardous substances. The Sanshui
Company reused paint slag, which could cut
production costs, while reducing the amount of
hazardous waste. At the same time, the companies
conducted training on hazardous waste knowledge
and emergency drills against emergency
environmental incidents such as sulphuric acid and
liguid ammonia leaks.

4.2.4Non-hazardous Waste Management

The non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group's production and operation mainly includes
aluminium slag, scrap steel, construction waste,
office and domestic waste, etc. The Group also
attaches great importance to non-hazardous waste
treatment, especially the recycling of waste
materials and non-hazardous waste residue. Some
of the waste materials can be directly used for
production after being processed. For example, the
product scraps can be used as raw materials after
recycling to the furnace. Other waste materials
such as mould steel can be handed over to the steel
plant for processing and reuse. The main
components of non-hazardous waste slag such as
aluminium slag in the casting workshop are
alumina powder, aluminium powder and refractory
particles, which can be used as raw materials for
high-aluminium cement production after being
handed over to the cement plant for treatment.
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During the plant construction process, we strictly
abide by national and local environmental
protection laws and regulations and control
construction waste through a series of
environmental protection measures. During the
Year, when expanding its plant, the Precision
Manufacturing Company collected construction
waste and domestic waste and strictly prohibited
mixing them for transportation. The generated
construction waste, which came in a small amount,
was collected in time for the relevant departments
to handle and disposal at will was strictly forbidden
to reduce the environmental impact from
construction waste. The reusable construction
waste was reused on the construction site to
reduce waste. For the non-reusable construction
waste, the construction unit was asked to contact a
third party for cleanup. All unavoidable
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construction waste was collected in a timely
manner and disposed of by the relevant
department.

REE - BRREEMFAE

During the Year, the waste materials and non-

hazardous waste residues recycled by each EEBLRERNT
company are as follows:

Company Amount recycled

AFE] B2

Sanshui Company e About 2,000 tons of scrap steel

=K o RE472,000 %A

Jiangxi Company e About 524 tons of aluminium hydroxide

e About 322 tons of scrap mould steel

e About 252 tons of scrap paper

e About 326 tons of scrap iron
PANGYNG] o [EALIRK) 524 M

o REREMMA 3220

o FEMLAI252MW

o FEEAI326ME

Henan Company e About 726 tons of scrap mould steel
e About 44 tons of scrap steel straps
e About 114 tons of scrap shavings
AR o RBEERAMAT726W
o BRI BRI 44ME
o EEQIERK114W8
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4.3 Use of Resources 43 BREH

4.3.1Use of Energy 4.3.185REH

The Group has an energy management centre
system to collect statistics and analyse the
consumption amount and trend of water,
electricity, gas and other resources, enabling each
production base to monitor resource consumption
in real time and timely debug and repair controlling
equipment to improve efficiency.

In order to increase the utilisation efficiency of
electricity, we have taken effective measures
including using LED lamps and energy-efficient
equipment, replacing electrical machines with new
and highly efficient motors, reclaiming waste heat
of boilers and installing solar PV power generation
equipment on plant rooftops. In addition, the
Group also made full use of the energy generated
during the production process, such as applying the
heat generated from the operation of the workshop
air compressors in heating the technology groove
in the oxidation workshop and also providing hot
water supply for staff for daily use, to effectively
reduce the use of electricity and natural gas and
reduce safety problems caused by the use of
liquefied natural gas facilities.
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During the Year, the companies continued to
strengthen staff’'s energy conservation awareness
training and supervision and use lean production
activities to reduce process waste and improve
operating efficiency, thereby reducing energy
consumption per unit of product. The Jiangxi
Company set up an energy management system to
provide timely detection of abnormal energy
consumption in order to reduce on-site management
loopholes and technical errors. The Precision
Manufacturing Company also upgraded its porous
extrusion mould technology to reduce energy loss.
In addition, the Sanshui Company took the
following energy management and conservation
measures:

o Adopting energy-saving motors and rod
furnaces, which could save electricity
consumption by 12% and 25%, respectively;

o Energy-saving torches were changed for the
aging furnaces to save electricity consumption
by 18%;

o The reduced pressure design was adopted for
moulds to reduce electricity consumption;

o Air duct of the surface curing furnace was
modified to reduce natural gas consumption.
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4.3.2Use of Water Resources 4.3.2kE R & FH

Water resources are of vital importance to our
production process as it is indispensable in every
process such as extrusion and casting. The Group
uses both municipal water and water from its own
well, so as to ensure there is no suspension in
production due to water supply shortage. The
Group does not face any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose. The ratio of municipal water
use to well water use is approximately 8:2. In order
to enhance water resources management
capabilities and improve usage efficiency, the
Group continues to implement the water reclaim
system and reuse reclaimed water for daily life
activities such as watering, toileting and cooling
water production in facilities through water towers
and water tanks. During the Year, the Jiangxi
Company had the reclaimed water reuse
equipment in its casting and electrophoresis
workshops, with 80% of reclaimed water reused.
The Henan Company used recycled water for
flushing toilets and workshops, with more than
50% of reclaimed water reused. The Sanshui
Company reused about 100,000 cubic meters of
reclaimed water, which mainly went to front-end
treatment in the surface workshop.

4.3.3Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials of the Group are mainly
packaging tapes, labels, stick bands, lumps of
wood and sealing glue. We source from packaging
materials suppliers that meet the requirements of
relevant national laws and regulations. For sourcing
product packaging materials, we have formulated
the group-wide sourcing management plan as its
principal policy. Packaging material suppliers are
selected by tender, with which the Group has
already established long-term cooperative
partnerships.
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4.3.4Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions and

Management

Climate change is one of the most pressing
challenges facing humanity in the global
community. As a leading enterprise in the Chinese
aluminium industry, the Group has actively
responded to the call by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of the People’s
Republic of China (PRC) to construct a green
manufacturing system. While seeking business
development, we are also committed to protecting
the environment and creating a green home
together with all sectors of society. In 2017, we
were included in the first list of exemplary green
manufacturers by the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, becoming one of the first
201 "green factories” in China. Our “Aluminium
Profile Production Line Air Pollutant Emission
Reduction Technology Reform” project was rated
one of the “National Industrial Clean Production
Demonstration Projects” by the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, making Xingfa
Aluminium the only company in Guangdong
Province that won such title of honour. Meanwhile,
we were also recognized as the “Clean Production
Enterprise in Guangdong Province” and one of the
“First Resource-saving and Environmental-friendly
Enterprises in Guangdong Province on A Pilot
Basis”.
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In order to reduce direct and indirect GHG
emissions in production operations, the companies
not only implemented green production, but also
promoted green office practices and raised eco-
friendly awareness among staff. The Group
continued to use natural gas as one of the energy
supplies for production operations during the Year,
because the carbon emissions of natural gas are
lower than coal. So the use of natural gas could
reduce GHG emissions correspondingly. In addition,
the companies adopted the OA system, promoted
the video conferencing system and paperless office
and regulated the use of official vehicles and travel
management to reduce energy consumption, use
of papers and travel carbon emissions while
ensuring office efficiency. The recycling of domestic
and office water was also encouraged at the
companies. The Group plans to:

° Retrofit or install the solar photovoltaic power
generation system at all bases where possible
(including new infrastructure projects);

o Gradually promote intelligent and digital
transformation in existing bases and gradually
replace motorised logistics with rail logistics;
and

. Scientifically arrange production lines for all
new and renovated projects based on the
lean manufacturing concept, thus further
reducing duplication of processes and
achieving high energy efficiency.
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In the future, the Group will continue to identify
climate risks that have a material impact on our
business and develop measures to mitigate the
impact of various climate risks. At the same time,
we will further optimise the management system
related to green factories, continuously improve the
environment and energy management system and
leverage fully our corporate technology, resources
and external partners to make Xingfa Aluminium
an advanced and smart green factory with high
energy efficiency, low pollution and low emission,
contributing to the nation’s green and low-carbon
transformation and development.

HUMAN-ORIENTED, SINCERITY AND
TRUSTWORTHY

5.1 Employment Practice

Being people-oriented, sincere and trustworthy is the
foundation for a company to perform CSRs internally. To
recruit a highly qualified workforce, the Group strives to
provide a multicultural and equal workplace for
employees, create comfortable and safe working
conditions and implement dynamic management for
ensuring the physical and mental health of staff.

We strictly comply with national and local labour
regulations such as the “Labour Law”, the “Labour
Contract Law”, the “Law on the Protection of Minors”
and the “Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour” to
protect the legitimate rights and interests of staff. We
follow the principle of equal employment, namely
“fairness, openness and impartiality” and focus on job
applicants’ business abilities, personal qualities and
development potential during the recruitment process
and none of them will be treated differently for reasons
such as age, gender, ethnicity, nationality, marriage and
family status, health condition and religion. We
emphasise communication and participation among staff
and disseminate policy and information through posting
announcements on bulletin boards, e-mails, employee
manuals, or training. Staff can put forward their opinions
and questions to management through interviews,
functional e-mail, or group discussion, so as to provide
input for our operations and developments.
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At the same time, the Group’s internal trade union
organisation strictly abides by the relevant requirements
of the “Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, protects the rights and interests of staff in
accordance with the law, performs democratic
procedures and gives full play to the role of staff in
democratic management. In addition, we help employees
enrich their after-work life by carrying out activities such
as birthday gift distribution, supply of summer necessities,
open-air barbecue for team building and festival
celebration, while offering assistance for employees in
difficulty through the trade union organisation, so as to
enhance employees’ sense of belonging and happiness
from various perspectives.
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Supply of summer necessities provided for employees by the Precision

Manufacturing Company
BEREN A BB THEE BXERED

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with
the laws and regulations in relation to employment and
labour in all material respects, including equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and welfare.

The 8th of March Women's Day celebration held by

AR

the Henan Company
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5.2 Labour Standard

The Group attaches high importance to fairness and
incorporates it into all aspects of its labour standard. We
issue policies relating to employee compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare in the
employee handbook, to create an open and transparent
environment. In doing so, we offer a competitive
remuneration and benefit package for staff to ensure
good performers get paid well.

Instead of taking the one-sided narrative, we adopt a
series of comparative evaluation measures to complement
our employee management system, which include
reviewing regularly the remuneration at all levels
internally, collecting industry information on
remuneration from the labour market and adjusting the
remuneration and benefits with reference to position,
work capability, work performance, skills and profitability
of the Group. While adopting the performance-based
incentive system, we also fully consider internal fairness.
For example, the monthly salary of production line staff is
calculated given the comprehensive piecework on a team
or group basis, so as to ensure that staff who works more
will be paid more. At the same time, varying employee
performance appraisal processes are implemented for
different positions according to the performance
appraisal measures of the departments in which
employees work. In addition, we adopt a policy whereby
management personnel shall abstain from any human
resource matter relating to their family members and
relatives, which requires such family members and
relatives of management personnel not allowed to work
in the same departments with them.
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The Group strictly abides by the minimum age of
employment requirements stipulated by the PRC and the
location where it operates. Our CSR policy expressly
stipulates the prohibition of recruiting child labour under
16 years old. For minors between 16 to 18 years old, we
carry out special protection in accordance with the laws
of the PRC. Moreover, we illustrate the policy of
preventing forced labour in the employee handbook and
adopt an order-oriented production model to prevent
forced labour. If child labour and forced labour are
found, the Group will immediately terminate their
employment and hold the relevant departments and
personnel accountable.

Pursuant to the approval from local labour department,
we implement a work system with integrated
computation of working hours to ensure staff’s rights to
rest and leave are protected and production and other
work can be completed through collective working,
collective rest, shift replacement, time off in lieu (TOIL),
flexible working hours, etc.

Apart from prohibiting employment discrimination and
forced labour exploitation and ensuring that child labour
is eradicated, we also adopt a zero-tolerance approach to
any form of discrimination or harassment and bring
violations under rigid prevention and control. During the
Reporting Period, there was no misconduct nor regulatory
non-compliance related to employment of child labour or
forced labour in the Group.
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5.3 Occupational Health and Safety

The Group resolutely regards protecting the life safety
and occupational health of its staff as its paramount
mission. We adhere to the policy of “Safety First, Focus
on Prevention and Comprehensive Treatment” and the
principle that “Production Management must Encompass
Safety Management and Person-in-charge is the
Responsible Person”. We have prepared a safe production
management system, which emphasises that “all activities
are based on the life and health of staff”. Besides, the
safe production committee, headed by Chairman, has
been set up to be responsible for our overall safe
production management of the Group. For
implementation, every production department has
established its own safe production leading group,
responsible for staff’s work safety in the department. We
strictly follow the relevant regulations of the Group’s
safety and quality control, actively carry out the
promotion of safe production and regularly organise
safety experts to conduct safety evaluations on every
segment of production process and all equipment and
facilities, including the evaluation of performance and
risk factors. At the same time, we update equipment and
technology with the approach that deals with both
symptoms and root causes to reduce the safety risks from
the source. Below is the progress made by the companies
during the Year:
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The Sanshui Company renovated the gas floor of
the extrusion workshop and the bar furnace rack
and installed exhaust pipes to the bar furnace and
aging furnace in the extrusion workshop;

The Jiangxi Company built a deep well-casting
interlock emergency response system, installed the
gas leak alarm and automatic cut-off device,
mounted the flameless explosion relief device in the
vertical spraying chamber, added automatic fire
sprinklers to fire-prone parts and built a new bag-
type pulse dust removal tower in the casting
workshop;

The Henan Company installed additional exhaust
collection and treatment facilities in the hazardous
waste room to effectively curb dust pollution;

The Precision Manufacturing Company intensified
labour protection for employees, enhanced their
awareness of occupational health protection
through training, adopted noise reduction measures
for posts exposed to loud noise and made
improvements in dust absorption and ventilation
for posts exposed to dust in excessive amounts.
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As a production and construction-oriented enterprise, we
attach great importance to staff’s occupational health
and resolutely comply with the “Law on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases of the PRC" to
ensure employees’ occupational health. We set up safety
facilities on construction sites, ensure timely provision of
safety helmets, gloves and other labour protection
supplies and make investments in safe production.
Besides, the environmental measures adopted during
production could reduce hazardous exhaust, waste and
wastewater, which greatly protects the health of staff
who long works in workshops. We are committed to
instilling the environmental protection concept into staff.
The companies achieved the following safety targets set
for them during the Year:

Target
BE

Sanshui Company’ e General and major fire incidents: Nil
e Work injury incidents: 14 at most
¢ Incidence of occupational diseases: Nil
e Percentage of staff holding necessary
certificates for special jobs: 100%
e Percentage of staff passing security training
in the Year: 100%
e Rectification rate of hidden dangers in the
Year: 100%
=IKAR] o —MREREBRNKFMH :F
o IBHEH: THBEI14R
o WREMEXERE LEZE100%
o BIFEZRZHEIAME EME100%
o FERERBENEI100%

The Sanshui Company failed to achieve the target of “zero major safety incident” by 1
the end of the Reporting Period, for it triggered one major safety incident during the
Year. The incident occurred because the employee concerned carried out an improper
operation due to non-compliance of the rules. Immediately after the incident, an
emergency rescue team and an investigation team were set up for remedial
responses. Besides, intensified staff training was given, and plant-wide safety hazard
screening was conducted, so as to prevent the recurrence of similar incidents.
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Target Status
B EXRER

Jiangxi Company

pANiEYNG]

Chengdu Company

D% (YN

Henan Company

EIPNG

Work-related fatalities: Nil

Serious work injury incidents: Nil

Fire incidents: Nil

Rectification rate of hidden dangers: 100%
AIRTER:Z

RAIEGER: T

NKEBEW T
BB ENE100%

Major fire, explosion and equipment
incidents: Nil

Class C/minor incidents: <8%

Compliance on pollution discharge/emission
and hazardous waste disposal: 100%
Administrative penalties for environmental
and safety violations from governments: Nil
Incidence of occupational diseases: Nil
Percentage of new employees taking three-
tier security training: 100%

Rectification rate of hidden dangers before
the prescribed time limit: 100%

BRNK - BIFEN  EXRBEHN T
CHl/EHMEERE RN <8%
RRERPFHBUAREEAREE 100%
REBNORRELZ D ERTRES : T
BEmELExR T

MBI =ML EHE 100%

FE 22 B HARE B K : 100%

Major and general safety incidents
(Category A): Nil

General safety incidents (Category C): 3
Minor injury incidents: 9

No occupational diseases

Rectification rate of hidden danger: 100%
BRRZEEMR—RLE2ER(ALE)  Z
—RZE2EH(CH) : 3R
HMBER 9R

T BER

2 2B EEHE100%

Accomplished
Accomplished
Accomplished
Accomplished
BEEK
BEEK
BEEK
BEEX

Accomplished

Accomplished
Accomplished

Accomplished

Accomplished
Accomplished

Accomplished

2IERK
EIERK
EEMK
EERK
B
B
B

Accomplished

Accomplished (0 incident in the Year)
Accomplished (1 incident in the Year)

Accomplished
Accomplished
EEK

BEEXR (AFERBTRER)
EER (FRFERBIRER

B
B
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RIE -

Precision Manufacturing

HERERESE
Target
B

Company e General safety incidents: 3
e Minor injury incidents: 3
BEREAT o« BIEA BARREH T

136
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In addition, we provide comprehensive safety awareness
and skills training for employees, which disseminates laws
and regulations, occupational safety-related knowledge,
job skills, occupational hazards and other information,
offer special training courses for employees on
occupational health and safety in light of actual needs of
the companies (such as return-to-work training for
employees after holidays, hands-on training for key posts
and training on procedures for high-risk operations) and
arrange daily routine safety inspections, occupational
health checkup before employment for new workers and
on-the-job health checkup for employees who have
joined us for more than one year. At the beginning of
each year, an annual training programme is prepared
according to the training needs of each production
workshop and the entire process is tracked and
implemented as scheduled.

Extremely major and major safety incidents: Nil

Status

Accomplished

Accomplished (0 incident in the Year)
Accomplished (2 incidents in the Year)
EEX

EEK (REEREEREN)
BEK(RFEHBF2RER)

Bt zsh HAAETIREZEN
REBBHNREEI  RMETEH
ERER  BEZ2ERAE - H
MEERREESEL  TRIES
REERBR  BETLHBEE
B2 BIEHE HI(F I £ R
MEBTETE  EXELRES
Al - REBIERRIEREEIE) -
ARERZEMTR2RENEH
ABE TH#ETABBEERERR
HABB—FALETHETREPE
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BT Kb E F R TR
Wink B 22 R B -

A safe operation and skills training course organised by the Chengdu Company

FLADA R T2 2RI A5

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED HEZ% R SR AR AR A T] cevererees



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HENRERERSE

Work Safety Month ZEHEHR

June 2022 was the 21st national “Work Safety Month”. 2022F6 ARE2NEA2E L2454
The Chengdu Company, Henan Company and Jiangxi EA| BKE O BT R B
Company launched a series of activities for the HRZEEERZRMES - HEE
nationwide campaign. Relevant activities and training FNEIEER  REIRIERREL
sessions mainly included crane skills competition, safe B REAETHEERELE T2
production-themed speech contest and safety knowledge HNERES - TBEBEA - T
competition. The main persons in charge, departmental BAE - MEEMBEIHRIEIKE
managers, team leaders and employees signed the 2EASE) VEESLEEERS
“Safety Responsibility Letter” to clarify and confirm their MEB AR MEELEEESR
responsibilities and obligations for safe production, ERHTF

inaugurating a better implementation of safe production
responsibilities.

Crane Skill Competition Safe Production-themed Speech Contest
PEIRIERBELL T ZEEETEERELE

Safety Knowledge Competition
REABHRE

—@O REQYI NOTE 8 PRO
QO AIQUAD CAMERA 2022/6/26 09:46
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We organise regular safety and fire drills, provide
employees with training on fire prevention and place fire-
fighting equipment in our workshops and office
buildings. We require staff, whether working in
workshops or in administrative offices, must possess
firefighting knowledge and can use firefighting
equipment properly, so as to get prepared for fire
emergencies.

Full Participation in Fire Safety Awareness
Month

November 9, 2022 was the national “Fire Prevention
Day”. The companies actively carried out a series of
activities as part of the Fire Safety Awareness Month
campaign.

B EHABLEERER BT
SEFIHE A0 - FEERE R A KE
BRI - RIPIERERE

MAER—RET  BERRAKE
WH B THMBATBBHAE - &
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RARE 2EB2HEHEE
AED

202211 AOBR_RER[HEKAE] -
SRPYRBIBEREEEA - H
B—ZR5))EE) -

The Jiangxi Company participated in the fire emergency skills hands-on training & competition in the development zone
and held a fire fighting skills competition.

TARAZNARE BN ESREBREII LR RERSE  WRIVEHRELE
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The Precision Manufacturing Company organised fire drill training, emergency rescue drills and first aid knowledge
training such as CPR and self-rescue.

BERRIFRRBIERIE - BESRIRIRR - DI ER Rk 4d B ESRANEE

The Chengdu Company conducted a fire safety drill.
PR R R RITHI R 2R AR

We allocate different types of labour protection gear to
staff according to the national regulations on the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases and
conduct awareness-raising training for staff in respect of
occupational hazards factors that exist in production
environment. The safe production leading group in each
department conducts inspection on the actual compliance
of staff safety management. For any staff who does not
wear safety equipment properly, warning will be given
for the first time of non-compliance discovery and upon
the second time of non-compliance discovery, a fine will
be imposed on the responsible leader in strict adherence
to the principle that “Person-in-charge is the Responsible
Person”. At the same time, each company invites the
local occupational disease prevention and control centre
to conduct occupational health examination for front-line
workers every year.
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To improve, renovate, retrofit and maintain safety
protection equipment continuously, the Jiangxi Company
invested a total of about RMB10.29 million in safety,
mainly for the provision of personal labour protection
equipment for all staff members, equipment renovation
for safety protection, construction of a deep well casting
interlock emergency system, installation of natural gas
leakage alarm and automatic cut-off devices, safety
awareness training and other projects. Meanwhile, a safe
production liability insurance was in force in compliance
with the law, passed the re-certification as a level-3
enterprise for standardised safe production and
submitted its contingency plan for filing purposes again.
In addition, the Sanshui Company invested a total of
about RMB7.73 million in safety, which was mainly used
for safety training, purchase of labour protection supplies
and fire-fighting facilities & equipment, occupational
health monitoring, emergency rescue equipment, incident
prevention facilities fees, etc. The Precision
Manufacturing Company invested about RMB7 million,
which mainly went to safety training, purchase of fire-
fighting equipment and facilities, safety incident
prevention, emergency rescue equipment and drills,
occupational hazard protection, work done by safety
personnel, smart manufacturing and installation of
natural gas leak detection equipment, etc. The Chengdu
Company invested a total of about RMB3.99 million,
which was mainly used for safety training, purchase of
labour protection supplies, purchase of firefighting
facilities and equipment, safety testing and evaluation,
safety and incident prevention facilities, emergency
rescue equipment and drills, occupational hazard
protection, etc. The Henan Company invested a total of
about RMB3.15 million, which mainly went to safety
training, purchase of labour protection supplies, purchase
of firefighting facilities and equipment, safety testing and
evaluation, safety and incident prevention facilities,
emergency rescue equipment and drills, occupational
hazard protection, etc.
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Sanshui Chengdu
Company
=K
Safety inspections (times) T &% () 126
Incident emergency drills ~ EHEZESL(X) 124

5.4

Safety training session

Attendance
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate
any law and regulation on health and safety nor were
there any work-related employee fatality incidents. In
response to work injury incidents that occurred during
the Year, we promptly and properly treated injured staff,
reviewed and investigated the causes of incidents and
adopted measures to strengthen safe production
awareness among employees and improve workplace
protection conditions, with a view to preventing incidents
from happening again.

Development and Training

We firmly believe that staff development and training is
an important part of our efforts to achieve business
objectives, improve performance and attain sustainable
development. We are committed to attracting and
retaining high-quality talents by rendering them with
sustainable development and training opportunities. The
staff development and training policies are set out in the
employee handbook and staff training is guided in
accordance with the “Staff Training Management
System” and “Measures for the Management of Staff
Career Development”. We carry out diversified training
programmes, which are conducted through classroom
training and online learning, to help employees grow and
improve themselves quickly to the greatest extent. During
the Year, the companies were active in providing safety,
environmental protection and occupational health
training.

Sanshui Chengdu
Company
=%k
Z2EIR) 477
ZEAR 25,568

Company

Company
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Precision

Jiangxi Henan Manufacturing
Company Company Company
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Precision

Jiangxi Henan Manufacturing
Company Company Company
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348 185 124
15,241 14,043 2,529
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We made the following achievements during the Year in
respect of safety training:

o rate of occupational health checkup after
employment: 100%

o safety training rate of newly recruited/transferred/
reinstated staff: 100%

o percentage of staff holding necessary certificates
for special jobs: 100%

o percentage of principal persons-in-charge and
safety management personnel receiving training:
100%

We develop an annual training implementation plan
based on the results of the survey on employee training
needs and with reference to our training resources and
arrangements for human resources activities. Our training
work adheres to the principle of “comprehensive
coverage and key development”, mainly covering the
following aspects:

New Staff Training

Through various forms of training, new staff is able to
fully understand the Group’s development status,
organisational structure, rules and regulations, process
flows, etc., enhance their recognition of and confidence
in corporate culture and give full play to their initiative
and enthusiasm.
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Management Training EEHIE

General management training courses are available to all ERZEEIMERAREEHE
staff members, including management skills S INEIRIREEIRA  BSEE
improvement, business etiquette, emotional [EHEEIE . 228 BB -
management, safety training, communication skills WABEBL EAEERNBERE A
improvement, office automation, laws and regulations L£RE R BT EEMGRAREE -

and policy presentations, to improve staff quality and
comprehensive skills.

Xingfa Aluminium Talent Innovation Conference for 2022:
Drive Development with Talent and Innovation as Two Engines

AT EIEBREIZBAINEBEERE — 2022 FEBEXATRIFTAS

To continuously optimise its talent policy and form an attractive and competitive hierarchy of talent management, the
Group held a talent innovation conference on 12 December 2022, at which it released the “11 Initiatives for the Talent
Development Strategy of Xingfa Aluminium”™ and interpreted three core documents, that is, the “Talent Echelon
Formation Programme of Xingfa Aluminium”, “Regulations on Remuneration Adjustment Management” and “Post
Management System” and stated the priority of team building would go to young personnel training.
RFEEICREEOASTEE - WEREBRSI NMBEFHOATGIERER - NEBER2022F12 12 HBR AL &IF
ARG - AEBERNGZE LB T(HRERZEATAPEB+—F)  THC(EBREATHEERBEAR) (FHERE
RE) RCELEREIE) R OATEITRE  WRHAEAT RKOERT ERMEHRFTFASTKOOER -
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Professional Training HEE

We offer a wide range of professional training for staff, BE TIRMSEEEE - flungy
such as trainings on sales skills, financial operations skills, BRI MBRIEREE - ANER
human resources management and specific projects. The B - LARSTEFTIEB BT
purpose of such training sessions is to improve the know- A AR EE A B A A A
how and skills of professional staff, thereby improving e IEEITEMX - FAE - BES
work efficiency. At the same time, we hire highly skilled HEEETARRNE#HA =T
staff as internal lecturers to share their work experience TR B N E R - WAL A2
and professional skills with other staff members and use ZRAFEFSAS  HE =
this as an opportunity to explore outstanding talents, B A ERIE IIGERT (R - AR FI
recruit a contingent of efficient internal trainers and pass b~ FpeanE

on our corporate culture, skills and know-how.

Staff skills training held by the Precision

Life skills training held by the Chengdu Company Manufacturing Company
BE D B TR BRI BEHELTE THRAEEI

- -

Product quality training held by the Sanshui Company Security training held by the Jiangxi Company
KD RERET TIHEARRZE
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On-line Training

We integrate with intelligent and Internet platform-based
learning methods and collaborate with third-party
training agencies to develop an on-line training platform.
The platform devised different training programmes for
staff at each stage and incorporate training attendance
into the annual appraisal to ensure training effectiveness
and timeliness and improve the pro-activeness of staff in
learning.

Anti-corruption

The Group attaches great importance to the integrity of
its team, requires managers at all levels to set examples
for others to follow suit and maintains a “zero-tolerance”
approach to fraud and corruption through advancing
good practice. We have been continuously improving the
internal control mechanism and whistle-blowing
mechanisms to eradicate various form of corruptive and
fraudulent behaviour, including bribery, extortion and
money laundering. The Group arms employees with the
bottom-line mindset to strengthen internal education and
intensifies the supervision of corruption-prone aspects
and post holders. Meanwhile, we also conduct the Party
discipline month activities for Party branches and hold
meetings on Party conduct and government integrity and
anti-corruption to develop the awareness of integrity
among Party members and cadres, a prerequisite for
achieving the strategic goal of “no one daring, being
able, or wanting to be corrupt”. We strictly implement
the code of conduct for anti-corruption and anti-bribery
in accordance with the relevant national policies, laws,
rules and regulations. The above code of conduct clearly
specifies that staff must abide by strict code of ethics and
must not engage in malpractices such as corruption or
bribery, receiving secret profits and gifts from customers,
or misappropriation of funds. It is applicable to material
procurement, outsourced processing, facility projects,
business sales, equipment procurement and maintenance,
quality supervision, other economic activities and the
process of management of individuals, properties and

5.5
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belongings. At the same time, all customers, suppliers,
service providers and underwriters who have business
relationships with the Group are also covered by the
code, which contains the following aspects:

o Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct for procurement and sales staff;

o Requirements of capital management involving
anti-corruption and anti-bribery conduct during the

procuring and selling processes;

o Requirements of anti-corruption and anti-bribery
conduct for accounting cashiers;

o Regular check on the evaluation system;

Whistle-blowing registration system.

The whistle-blowing registration system implemented by
the Group allows employees to report violations of code
of conduct to the Group. Every reported case is handled
in a confidential manner and followed up according to
the relevant policies and procedures. Anyone who
violates the code of conduct shall be given a warning,
demotion or dismissal depending on the severity of the
matter. The Group will never tolerate any form of
corruption. If an employee is found to be involved in
corruption or other criminal offences, we will transfer the
case to the disciplinary inspection and supervisory bodies,
judicial authorities or other related government
departments for handling.

During the Reporting Period, there was no misconduct or
regulatory non-compliance related to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in the Group.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Group nor any
of our employees was involved in any corruption legal
case that had already been filed and concluded.
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A Party Day Activity Carried out by the Party Branch of the Henan Company
to Be Role Models through Self-revolution

AMEARRXHMARBERERED  XRLAEMAR | TEEAEY

In the afternoon of 22 August 2022, all Party members and departmental heads attended the Party day activity themed
“Being Role Models through Self-revolution™ under the leadership of Comrade Xian Mingwei of the Supervision and
Audit Department of the Group. The typical corruption cases and the highlights of the “2022 Work Plan of the Xingfa
Aluminium Party Committee for the Discipline Learning Month Campaign” were explained at the event.

2022F8 A2 AT HAKEERFELARRENTED AR RESNMBPIZERRE [BEREHF® © K
BEEMR] TEERRSY  USEHERBRARFREN - ARCQ022FERBEBREFRAFNEZRRLEH
EEBERAEHITEAR)NERAR °
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BE

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION AND
SHARING

As a socially responsible and grateful corporate citizen, Xingfa
Aluminium has been actively assuming social responsibilities
and undertaking many community development and social
assistance programmes over the years. Through a variety of
ways and initiatives to care for vulnerable groups, participate in
environmental public welfare activities, make charitable
donations and facilitate poverty alleviation and education
development, we conduct practical actions to unify corporate
development goals with CSRs and create value in communities
related to our business operations.

While seeking continuous development, we always keep giving
back to society. We have set up a dedicated charitable fund
and have actively participated in social charitable donations in
the name of companies and individuals and donated funds to
socially disadvantaged groups or charitable associations,
proactively assuming CSRs. During the Year, the Group
donated RMB101,900, including the money used to purchase
agricultural products from rural areas, support rural
revitalisation projects and finance COVID-19 response.
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The Henan Company Visited the Pandemic Control
Personnel in Qinyang City

Amid the COVID-19 response, the Henan Company visited the
pandemic control checkpoint at the highway entrance of
Qingyang City in late March 2022. Representatives of the
company sent various types of daily necessities to the staff on
duty at the front line of pandemic prevention and control,
expressing gratitude to them for their hard work and
contribution.

RIE - HEREAHRS

AEARMBDEmRBHRETLE
AB

BWNITRZBHIEEES - R AaR
02F3A TAFEMLETEROKZE
friEigavh - A ARRERRABEZE — &
NEETAEX EESHETEAR - B
MERBHEIERONSEERRR

Donations from the Henan Company

The Henan Company actively participated in the “99 Giving
Day” fundraising activity initiated by Changping Township
People’s Government, by donating RMB10,000 to Qinyang
Charity Association, which would be used in consolidating the
achievements in poverty eradication, facilitating the rural
revitalisation drive, assisting children left behind in difficult
situations and helping people in need.

AEAREOER

AE R RIERE R FHARBTH [99
Rm A BRES  FIVBETEERSIR
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APPENDIX I: MAJOR AWARDS AND HONOURS

DURING THE YEAR

Since its establishment, Xingfa Aluminium has always been firmly the
leader of construction aluminium profiles in China. The Group won
the following major national awards and honours during the Year:

Award sponsors
TEBEN

Institute of Industrial Economics of
Jinan University, Guangdong
Manufacturers Association,
Guangdong Provincial Development
and Reform Institute

BEMAZEXLERRR BRA
REXHE  BEREEENNRE

e

Foshan Entrepreneurs Association,
Foshan Enterprise Confederation

FLTAEHEBRLTEERBE

Foshan Entrepreneurs Association,
Foshan Enterprise Confederation
LT EEBESSHUTEERBS

Foshan Entrepreneurs Association,
Foshan Enterprise Confederation
BT EEBRASHLUTEERDBE

Zhitongcaijing, Royal Flush Finance

2RI R ETENRR A

CPC Committee of Shuangliu District
and Shuangliu District People’s
Government, Chengdu

REKEHERME - KEHERR
ABRBT
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FTERBEREENT :
Awardees Honours
BT RERRE

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd

FEREZEREBR QA

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd
R AR E AR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd

EREEREFRAT

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd

BREEREFR AR

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd

EREEREFRAT

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu)

Co., Ltd.

iR (RE) BRAT]

2022 Guangdong Top 500
Manufacturing Enterprises (36th)

202 FEREBEEDES00540E
3617

2022 Foshan Top 100 Enterprises
(23rd)
2022 FHEIUEE 100585 231

2022 Foshan Top 100 Manufacturing
Enterprises (12th)
2022 F I BHEZE 1005858 1217

2022 Foshan Top 20 Enterprises in
Technological Innovation
2022 F 1L (D ERHZ AT TOP20

Most Valuable Industrial
Manufacturing Company of the
Seventh Zhitongcaijing Listed
Companies Election

FHEERME LT ARTE(RA
BEIXRERT)

Model Groups in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu to Build the Capital of
Aviation Economy

PR T 7 & 1T A A 2 AR B < #D ST
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Award sponsors

BBEM

Sichuan Provincial Quality Supervision
Association
MIEEEEEHE

Chengdu Enterprise Federation
AR A g

Sichuan Enterprise Confederation,
Sichuan Enterprise Directors
Association and Sichuan Economic
Daily

A RS S - P0)lE bR
=« PY)IAE 7 B Rt

CPC Committee of Yichun
Municipality and Yichun Municipal
People’s Government

P HAEEMZEEDARBRA

Bureau of Industry and Information
Technology of Foshan City
BEILT IEMERLE

Sanshui District Safe Production
Association in Foshan

LT = KBELEEERE

Awardees

ERTE

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co.,

Ltd.
iRk (BED) AR A A

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co.,

Ltd.
BEE IR (D) BER A A

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) Co.,

Ltd.
B 2% 5 25 (BED) BIR A A
Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd.
BREEEE L) BRAR
Guangdong Xingfa Precision

Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
EREIERRE AR AT

Guangdong Xingfa Precision
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

EREZBERERRAF

RIE - HEREAHRS

Honours

KELH

Exemplary Enterprises in Quality and
Integrity
HEREFREE

Top 100 Manufacturing Enterprises in
Chengdu
PR EBELE (23 10058

Top 100 Enterprises in Technological
Innovation and Development across
Sichuan

)b BT AR R 100 58 1 5%

2021 Top 50 Manufacturing
Enterprises

202 FEEMRERS0BER

Digitalised and Smart Demonstration
Factories in Foshan for 2022

2022 FHIITEF LB RE
TR

Vice President Units of Sanshui District
Safe Production Association in
Foshan

UM =KEZr2EERERIgR
B
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APPENDIX II: ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL [Ki#— BERHTSBRENIEE
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key performance indicators Unit 2022 2021

BRENER B

Total aluminium output? Ten thousand tonnes 66.5 62.8

FEMBES? B

Environment aspect

RIGEE

GHG emissions

BERBHEK
Scope 1° Tonne 133,248.7 Undisclosed
&F—> i AR
Scope 2* Tonne 192,261.8 Undisclosed
&E— A AN
Total GHG emissions Tonne 325,510.5 Undisclosed
RERBHRAS I RIKEE
GHG emission density Tonne/ten thousand tonnes 4,892.1 Undisclosed
RERBHRETE WA, & WA AIRER

Emissions

B
Total non-hazardous waste Tonne 22.9° 1,012.2
EEEEVRS 07}
Intensity of non-hazardous waste Tonne/ten thousand tonnes 0.3 16.1
BEERVTE WA, & WA
Total hazardous waste Tonne 10,923.0° 3,554.17
BEEREMES 7
Intensity of hazardous waste Tonne/ten thousand tonnes 164.2 56.6
BERENEE e, A

Total output of the self-made products of four companies located in Sanshui, Chengdu,
Jiangxi, Henan and the Precision Manufacturing Company.

Scope 1 emissions are direct emissions resulting from the Group’s consumption of
natural gas and diesel, calculated with reference to the “Guidelines on the Calculation
Method and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by Other Industries”.

Scope 2 emissions are indirect emissions resulting from the Group’s purchased
electricity, calculated with reference to the “Guidelines on the Calculation Method and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by Other Industries”.

Recycling food waste after draining the water by the Chengdu Company in 2022
resulted in a decrease in the figure. Meanwhile, the Henan Company raised the
awareness of saving food among employees, resulting in a significant decrease in the
quantity of food waste.

The inclusion of aluminium ash and paint drums in the list of hazardous waste in 2022,
as well as the addition of new production lines by the Precision Manufacturing
Company, led to an increase in the amount of hazardous waste generated.

Aluminium ash and dedusting ash were included in the list of hazardous waste in 2021.
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Key performance indicators Unit 2022 2021
BREARER By
Air pollution emissions
KRB R
Total nitrogen oxide Kg 22,201.0 22,993.0
mElYiEE TR
Total sulphur dioxide Kg 11,063.7 12,369.3
—EeaE T
Total VOCs Kg 11,089.3 15,503.6
AVOCs & T
Total fluoride Kg 2,681.3 1,145.7
ALY BE T
Total general dust Kg 2,385.3 2,513.2
—MRIEWERE T
Wastewater discharge
BE K BER
Total chemical oxygen demand Kg 67,404.0 44,4611
tEFasHE T
Total ammonia Kg 2,685.4 3,703.38
aREE Fr
Exceedance or other non-compliance Times 0 0
situations
8 H PR B S B A N & AR 1B R IRER
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity Times 0 0
with environmental laws and regulations
E AT & RIRAR AR 4% 51 S AL IRER
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Key performance indicators

BEAMIER

Use of Resources
ERER

Total energy consumption®

BUREFREEE®

Energy consumption intensity

RERHFERE

Total purchase of electricity

BEE RS

Electricity consumption intensity

RERE

Total natural gas usage volume

RARBRAE

Intensity of natural gas usage

RARAERE

Total water consumption

Akies

Water intensity

RK®E

Usage of packaging materials (carton, kraft
paper, etc.)

BEMHBE (KA FHREE)

Intensity of packaging materials (carton,
kraft paper, etc.)

BEMBETE (K8 - FRES)

Usage of packaging materials (Others,
including polyethylene wool, protective
membrane, condensed membrane and
self-adhesive tape)

BEMHAE (HM - BEDKR - RE
iR~ WHER - B

Intensity of packaging materials (Others,
including polyethylene wool, protective
membrane, condensed membrane and
self-adhesive tape)

BEMHBAERE (Kt - BREBDHMR -
RAEME -~ iR - aHa8)

Unit
By

kWh
F R
kWh/ten thousand tonnes
TR &
kWh
FRE
kWh/ten thousand tonnes
TR, B
m3
AV N
m>/ten thousand tonnes
TR EME
Tonne
07}
Tonne/ten thousand tonnes
g, &R

Tonne

48
Tonne/ten thousand tonnes

WA, & WA

Tonne

148

Tonne/ten thousand tonnes

W& A

2022

1,017,619,188.4

15,293,743.0

344,830,897.5

5,182,444.7

62,213,413.0

935,002.0

3,135,270.9

47,119.8

20,098.1

302.1

6,244.2

93.8

2021

958,082,655.2

15,267,395.5

318,939,504.8

5,082,417.0

59,102,212.9

941,815.3

3,116,614.0

49,664.4

21,311.0

339.6

6,550.6

104.4

8 Energy includes electricity and natural gas, among which, the calculation of natural 8 RRBEENNRAR  Hb - RARKHSE T(TEHMT

gas is made by reference to the conversion factor in the “Guidelines on the

Calculation Method and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emission by Other Industries”.
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Key performance indicators Unit 2022 2021
BREARER By
Social Aspect®
HEEE
Employment
&%
Total employees Number 8,308 7,944
BIEEAH N
By gender
RIERIBI 5
Male Number 6,605 6,252
Fit A
Female Number 1,703 1,692
pogia N
By age
RFERE D
16-30 Number 1,520 1,504
16-30 5% AR
31-50 Number 6,038 5,757
31-505% A
>50 Number 749 683
>505% N
By employment type
REREREIS
Full-time employees Number 8,308 7,944
IEVES ABL
Contracted or part-time employees Number 0 0
R IFIEXIER N -

°  Employees for the five companies: Sanshui, Chengdu, Jiangxi, Henan and Precision 9 A=,k « K& - JT7 - A B REREE R ATNES
Manufacturing. All employees came from the Chinese mainland. 150 o EEH R EFRBAM o

............................................................................................................. Annual Report 2022 4 1§ 155



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIE - tERERHRE

Key performance indicators Unit 2022 2021
BRENIER By
Turnover rate
EBERKE
Overall turnover rate % 513 46.2
BEEMAE
By gender
ZMERIEN S
Male % 52.6 48.5
it
Female % 46.2 37.9
pogia
By age
RERE S
16-30 % 98.9 86.0
16-30 5%
371-50 % 43.4 39.8
31-505%
>50 % 19.0 12.9
>50 5%

Health and Safety

BEEZE

Number of work-related fatality Number 1 3

SRR CIARIN -t N

Number of work-related injuries Number 18 25

EITERBAR AR

Number of working days lost due to work Days 903 2,103
related-injuries

EIBEEAATIERR =

Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity Times 0 0
with laws and regulations related to health
and safety

B &R ERELR 2 HEAR MRS RE IREL
R
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Key performance indicators Unit 2022 2021
BRANER By

Development and Training
B R IEH
Average training hours

TR I

By employment type

RERELED
Senior management Hours 21.8 25.4
BREEE /N
General management Hours 12.7 33.1
—REEE AN
Non-management Hours 24.1 20.2
FEEE N

By gender

IR B9
Male Hours 23.7 20.6
Fit 1N B
Female Hours 22.9 20.4
Z4 N

The percentage of employees trained
XillEEADL
By employment type
RERELED
Senior management % 80.6 96.6
BRELRE
General management % 771 100
—REEE
Non-management % 98.2 100
FEEE
By gender
RIERIE 5
Male % 99.4 100
Ft
Female % 91.3 94.4
it
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Key performance indicators Unit 2022 2021
BRARER B

Suppliers

e

Number of suppliers by region

mimEI DR EREA

Chinese mainland Number 1,002 1,007
o [ (A Ed=
Hong Kong Number 0 1
) A
Overseas Number 0 1
AP #A

Labour standard

BT AR

Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity Cases 0 5

with laws and regulations related to
labour standard

B A AR TR MRS e 3 REX
Product responsibility
EmEE
Fines and prosecutions due to inconformity Cases 0 0

with laws and regulations related to
product responsibility

B & B an AR RRVA R A AR T4 51 KSR 3F IR
New products and technical patents acquired Number 177 174
during the Year
FRNESHINEmEEITHER &
Anti-corruption
RESS
Legal cases regarding corrupt practices Cases 0 0

brought against the issuer or staff

HBETASEEERHTEEENETH =
DR
Community investment
HERE
Total community investment by the Group RMB10,000 10.19 55.41
HERERENEES BARE
10 The 2021 data has been restated after integrating a more accurate dataset. 0 R —ENHERELESEMAEERNBIRTE

5l -
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APPENDIX lll: INDEX OF HKEX ESG REPORTING Migg= BEBBMIM(RE 2
GUIDE RERBEESI)REI
Aspects Section Remarks
g =4 B
A. Environmental
ARREE
Aspect A1: Emissions General disclosure 4
Information relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
BHEA1 - BERD —RE
BREERIORERBIN - mKE
THEEES BEREZTEEDN
EEEH
(@) BUR: M
(b) BTHBETABEATENN
AR KROINE R
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and APPENDIX II:
respective emissions data ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
BB BUIEIR A1 HEm Y TE 2R AR R B R figE— : IRIRRAH G H
BB REIR
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and indirect (Scope APPENDIX II:
2) GHG emissions (in tonnes) and, ENVIRONMENTAL AND
where applicable, intensity (e.g. per SOCIAL KEY
unit of production volume, per PERFORMANCE
facility) INDICATORS
ARG IEIRAL2 Hix (8EN) ReeRMEE (BE2) figE— : IRIRRAH G H
REREBHNE (MR E) & (40 RABERUER

EA)BRE(MABESEN - B8
uX}J—TE n-l—
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Aspects
Eol

KPI'A1.3

RASAE IR IRAL3

KPI'A1.4

RASAR IR R A1.4

KPI'A1.5

RSB IRIRALS

KPI'A1.6

RASRAE IR IR A6

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility)

FTEEBEREEYESE (LANETE
R nEm) = E (A BES BN -
BHERETE

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g., per unit of production
volume, per facility)

L REBE NS E AN E
R (R0 ) B (A A 9 7 R AL -
SER G E

Description of the emission target(s)
and steps taken to achieve them
RAFTET R E B R R RES
B B AR PTERER ) 22 B

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled
and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them
HIEEFENBEEREEDN A
& RIIETET SRR E B R A
EDE L B R EA 5 5

160 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5552 542 i3 A5 5. A ]

Section

-]

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifs— - IRE R
RIABIER

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr— - RE R B
SRAERUERR

4.1

4.2

Remarks

(S



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HENRERERSE

Aspects Section Remarks
il E=4:0] s
Aspect A2: General disclosure 4
Use of Resources Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials
BEA2 : BERERA — R E
BRERER(BIEER - KRE
b R BB R
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy APPENDIX II:
consumption by type (e.g. electricity, ~ ENVIRONMENTAL AND
gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) SOCIAL KEY
and intensity (e.g. per unit of PERFORMANCE
production volume, per facility) INDICATORS
RS EIEIR A2.1 RERESNEER SHEEER W RERMEH
(E - Reom) @FEE A TET BRERIER
RRAE) RBE (WAGEESE
iz ~ FIEARMAH)
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and APPENDIX II:
intensity (e.g. per unit of production ENVIRONMENTAL AND
volume, per facility) SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
FARERIEIRA2.2 BREKERTE(WAGESSEN - HMHEZ - RERTEH
BIERMETH) R MIEE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency 4.1
target(s) set and steps taken to 4.3

RS A IER A2.3

achieve them
W] LB REA M= B ER
BIEREL MR SRE
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Aspects Section Remarks
Eol ] (- F
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any 4.1

issue in sourcing water that is fit for 4.3

purpose, water efficiency target(s)

set and steps taken to achieve them
BRAEMIEIRA2.4 Fil SR E @ A 7KOIR = AT AT

78 AR PRRISZ B K B 1R

REDE L B IR R B

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for APPENDIX II:
finished products (in tonnes) and, if ENVIRONMENTAL AND
applicable, with reference to per unit ~ SOCIAL KEY

produced PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
RSB IR A2.5 R mATABEM R AE (AN figE— : RIRRAH G
AE)R(ER) BEERMGE RAERUER
Aspect A3: The General disclosure 4
Environment and Natural Policies on minimising the issuer’s
Resources significant impact on the

environment and natural resources
EBEA3 : RREERAER —REE

AR 1T N IRIR R KRR EIRIERK

BEREERECR

KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts 4
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the action
taken to manage them

RSB IBIR A3 R EBEIRIZT R RAB IR
ERENECENEEFHETEN
178
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RIE - HEREAHRS

Aspects Section Remarks
Eol -] B
Aspect A4: General disclosure 4.3
Climate Change Policies on identification and

mitigation of significant climate-

related issues which have impacted

and those which may impact, the

issuer
BHEA4 - RIRE L —REE

Bl R e B A8 K AT e ¥ BT AEE

TENERNRRIEBEENBER

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant 4.3 This performance

RASR AR IR IR A4

climate-related issues which have
impacted and those which may
impact, the issuer and the actions
taken to manage them

RN HRITAELRY
ENEARKHEREE - MEHTT
E2)

indicator is not the most
material aspect of the
Group during the Year,
we will update it
according to relevant
regulations in future.
ANFE IR AR I FEAR
SESEENEHE - &
PIEE R0 2R E R
BEE -
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BRI - HERE

Aspects
Eol

B. Social
B EERE
Aspect B1: Employment

EmB1 : EfE

KPIB1.1

RASAR AR 1R B1.1

KPIB1.2

RASR AR IEIZEB1.2

164

alRE

General disclosure

Information relating to

compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination and other benefits

and welfare:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

—MRiRE

ERF Mk RE  BEREAR T

ERE - RE - TEHE 2T

b~ RIRAR DA R H 15738 SR AR Y

(@ BE: &

(b) BFHEITABEATEMNAE
AR KRN E R

Total workforce by gender,
employment type (for example,
full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region

ZIER - EFEEE (2GR
B - FRER RRESHIESS
2

Employee turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region

RIER -~ FEAE R Kt S o B e
B xR

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% $2 2 22 f% 45 BR 2 7

Section

-]

5.1

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr— « RE R B
SRR

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr = IRE Rt
SAEUETR

Remarks
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Aspects Section Remarks
Eol E=4:0] s
Aspect B2: General disclosure 5.3

Health and Safety Information relating to providing a

safe working environment and

protecting employees from

occupational hazards:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

[EMB2 : iEREL 2 —REE
ERRER2THERERRERE
WEBEMEEN
(@) BE: &

(b) WFHETAEEAL LM
B RATI AR

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related APPENDIX II:
fatalities occurred in each of the past ~ ENVIRONMENTAL AND
three years including the reporting SOCIAL KEY

year PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
RS AE R 1R B2.1 BEZF (PEERFE)BFRI M- BERHEH
T ABUR R REBIER
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
RSB UIE1R B2.2 HITBEETIERR figE— - IRIR R G
BB RER
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health 5.3

and safety measures adopted and
how they are implemented and
monitored

RSB RIEIRB2.3 HE IR PR AN A BB R R B 2 2 4
B A RABRERIT REER A
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Aspects
Eol

Aspect B3: Development
and Training

[ETE B3 : BE H553

KPI'B3.1

RASR AR IR 1R B3.1

KPI B3.2

R4S ISR B3.2

166

alRE

General disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work Description of training
activities

—REE
BRRAREBITIIER B AH
MEREHIBUR © fLIEFIE S

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management)

BRI MEEER (NS RERE -
TREEREE)SSNZIERERD
l5d

The average training hours
completed per employee by gender
and employee category

RERNREEERE D - BRESR
SER B 0 T 15 B B
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Section

-]

54

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

fifsr— « RE R B
SRABRUERR

APPENDIX II:
ENVIRONMENTAL AND
SOCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
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Aspects Section Remarks
Eol E=4:0] s
Aspect B4: General disclosure 5.2

Labour Standard Information relating to preventing

child and forced labour:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

[ET B4 : & T %8| —BEE
BRI IEE TS84 TH
(@ BUGE: &

(b) BTHEHETABEATZENME
RER RPN ER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review 52
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour

RASRAE IEIR B4 Ha g ET R EL B Bl R pE LA S
T Reogl4 T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to 5.2
eliminate such practices when
discovered

FASRAEIEIR BA.2 HIMERIRERIENF R EAE
SUPERER Y 22 5%
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Aspects
Eol

Aspect B5: Supply Chain
Management

[BMHEBS5 : ffLrEGEE IR

KPI B5.1

RASEAE 517 B5.1

KPI'B5.2

RASE 4B 515 B5.2

KPI B5.3

R AE IEIE B5.3

alRE

General disclosure

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain
—REE

B EENRE M G RERBER

Number of suppliers by geographical
region

iR E D e RS E

Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented and how they
are implemented and monitored
fit A NS Bt ER AV 1B B - [ E
WMITERREPIMHERERE - AR
HERITRERT A

Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain and how
they are implemented and
monitored

B BRI e S ERE AR
B R eRBAIEN - A KRB
TRERAE
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND
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PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
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RIE - HEREAHRS

Aspects Section Remarks
il E=4:0] s
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to 3.5

promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting
suppliers and how they are
implemented and monitored

RSB IR B5 .4 i REHEEREEZ ARR
Emm MRFHED] - LARMBRETT
NEEE A
Aspect B6: General disclosure 3
Product Responsibility Information relating to health and

safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods

of redress:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

EHB6 - EmEIE —RIRE
BRFRMEER RGN ERER
2 EE BERLBEEURE
RTER
(@) BR : &
(b) BFHEITABERTZENME
BERERROINER
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or - During the Reporting
shipped subject to recalls for safety Period, there was no
and health reasons product recalled due to
safety and health
reasons.
RASRAE IEIRB6.1 EENEEREmESTD .ﬁfE\‘EE: WEBMAN - REEER
2R m AR RS B 5 TR EEFERmMAR
WHER °
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Aspects
Eol

KPI B6.2

RASE 45 515 B6.2

KPI' B6.3

RASE 45 515 B6.3

KPI B6.4

FASE 45 K515 B6.4

KPI' B6.5

FASE 45 515 B6.5

Number of product and service-
related complaints received and how
they are dealt with

BB E m MARF R R 2 E A
K EE T3

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

el BB S ARIE A B E R A Y
Bl

Description of quality assurance
process and recall procedures
S S 0F IR R EmBIAR 7

Description of consumer data
protection and privacy policies, how
they are implemented and
monitored

iR B E BIRRE MALRBOR
AN ABREFIT M BRI

170 XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 15552 8 725 45 [ /2 ]

Section Remarks
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3.1 During the Reporting
3.3 Period, there was no

product and service-
related complaints
received.
BEHRN - REDREE
BN E M RIRB IR

3.2

3.1

3.4
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Aspects Section Remarks
il E=4:0] s
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption General disclosure 5.5

Information relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money

laundering:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

[EMEB7 : RE)S —MRiRE

BREPIERRES - BR - MGFROER

B

(@) BUR: M

(b) BFHETABEATENN
AR RROINE R

KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases 55
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases

RS A R 1R BT RERAANE T A HESRRH
WEBEENETHRARMEHEE &
FANER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures 5.5
and whistle-blowing procedures and
how they are implemented and
monitored

R E 5 1R B7.2 i By S 45 e S R RAR T 0 DA KA
BT RERT X

KPIB7.3 Description of the anti-corruption 5.5
training provided to directors and
employees

BB A IEIR BT 3 HmMEERETRHORESE

Bl
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Aspects Section Remarks
Eol ] (- F
Aspect B8: Community General disclosure 6

Investment Policies on community engagement

to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the
communities” interests

[EHBS : i E —RIEE
B RSER T L BT
@ EMBEREEBETHEE BT
= M2 FY R

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. 6
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)

AR AR BT BS. 1 BFEREE(HE REEH
BIFRK - @ Xt - 85)

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money 6
or time) to the focus area

RSB RIEIRB8.2 EFETEHBAEBAER (e
RFFE)
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRR 2BIUZUAMRE

KPMG

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 182 to 318 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

................... Annual Report 2022 4

KPMG

B AR E
BERERERERATAKRR
(REASHEZME L BRAA)

=R

TAZEED (AR [ M)) E B IERE
182 £ 318 B M B IR TR AR A7) (LA
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MEEWBRE WU ERRBEENR T ==
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FEMBHRR 2BIUZUAMRS

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

REESEE

FRETFHASRBERFNERHE - oY
ARG AU BRENBARREENEH &
LEREERMBAEBG VBRI LBE
HEABREETREN - BHATSHELER
RHEEBNER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page from 227 to 231.

The Key Audit Matter

BRENSEE

Revenue mainly comprises sales of aluminium profiles to
distributors and other customers in a variety of end-user
markets.
WaTrEXREMSER TS D HEREMEFIHE
Fiapk v

Sales to distributors accounted for approximately 36% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. Each year, the Group
enters into a framework distribution agreement with each
distributor and sells its products in accordance with the
terms of separate purchase orders. Once the products are
delivered to the location designated by the distributor, the
control of the goods are considered to have been
transferred to the distributor and revenue is recognised.

MoHEBHENE BEEEFAKELN36% - BHEE
BFEEDHEBAIVERDHBARBRESREITEL
GREEER - —BEERINEDHEEEHMHE - A
B miiE AR R B T IR W RE R HE R A o

174

TR DHEE R
AR BRI TSR L3 227 2231 B R AR °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNETEEZER

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from distributor arrangements included the

following:
BPIRUNF D HR R 2 RS ERANEAEFERE
IATNEIE

e assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
which govern revenue recognition;

o FMAERBRWRHER EREBHERANMBEIE RS
Bt LETRN ¢

e reading distribution agreements entered into with
distributors, on a sample basis, and considering
whether any agreements contain terms permitting
the distributors to make sales returns;

o MEBIBESHEEI L 2D H R RERERE
BEAHEBEE T HPEERE 2K
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Key audit matters (Continued)

Revenue recognition: distributor arrangements

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on page from 227 to 231.

The Key Audit Matter

BRESEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from distributor
arrangements a key audit matter because revenue is one
of the key performance indicators of the Group and
therefore there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management to meet
specific targets or expectations.

&ﬁ%“%ﬁﬁﬁzw SHER BRI REAREITEE - R
ARz BESEERIBAERZ— WHEERER
R = kwhﬂuiﬁﬂ B IRk R FEE A A
fix o

n‘l'.R

TR

R

AR Z 2%

M BRR 2B AR S

FEREETEE )

D DR
Bitr B B R R M3 227 2231 E S 51 7R »

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWETNAEEZER

for a sample of revenue transactions recorded just
before and after the year end, inspecting the
related goods delivery notes, which had been
signed and dated by the distributors as evidence of
their receipt of the goods, to assess if the related
revenue had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period on the basis of the terms of sale as
set out in the distribution agreements and the
terms of the purchase orders; and
ARFRABLHE WA RGEAME @ RER
AR EE(HE A HEHE MR R BN ERE
BEE) - ArHh AR T B EREB D R ZAE
Zﬁﬁ’ﬂ%?ﬁ&ﬁéﬁ%ﬂimlﬁxﬁ WM BEE T
J/\/\ﬁﬁiu\ )

inspecting significant manual adjustments to
revenue raised during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for such
adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
EEREHABREMENERTHRAE AF
BEARAEARNRE  WHABRNFIEER
B EITHLR ©
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BHMBHRR2BIUZUEANRE

nv'.R

Key audit matters (Continued)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

Refer to Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on page from 206
to 216.

The Key Audit Matter

HRENSEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross trade
receivables amounted to RMB3,517,544,000, against
which an allowance of RMB776,561,000 for expected
credit losses (ECLs) was recorded.
WZE_—_F+=-A=+—8"
A ARM3,517,544,000 7T
B AR 776,561,000 7T °

EEEX 5 EWIALR
H S aflEaEEE

Management measures the ECL allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ERERBEERZHEREEFENSETERIE
WRRIRR TR B E B R 1R 54 -

Management measures the ECL allowance for credit-
impaired trade receivables individually based on the future
cash flows expected to be derived from the collaterialised
assets.
EEEREEHSEEMAEEELNAKRESRE B
BirBEERERSREFENRREEEEEE -

For trade receivables that are not credit-impaired, the ECL
allowance is measured using a provision matrix, which
involves the use of estimated loss rates for each category
of trade receivables which are grouped according to shared
credit risk characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade receivable balances, the
payment history of the Group’s customers, current market
conditions and forward-looking information. Such
assessment involves significant management judgement
and estimation.

IS ERENRZ ZRWKIET S @ SRARGRER
ERHEEEERE S MERRARNGEERRE
BAOEN BB ZEBFIAN G EBEEX - A5HEEX
ZR TR ZERERBESRNORER - AEEEFONRE
£ BRI ISIARRATIE L ER - ZEIRPREANER
& # B R k5t -
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R 5 EWE

FEREETTEE %)

RENRAEEHRRE

FE &7,%?9 BI IR AR M 2F30(a) 2 206 2216 HAIE 5

B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRAWETNAEEZSEE

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade receivables included the following:

BPIRNFHER RS

AR BHEEERBENE

ARFEEATEE

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% 42 2422 i A5 PR 2\ 7

obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and estimating the ECL allowance;
TEHETEEBEEERRE  GEHKE kA5 EH
EEEEREB AR AIMEE R BB RE
T80

evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating the
ECL allowance with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standard;

BRI SR EMMRTE - FHE

HHEEEERENRE

N

Em.1§g—:

obtaining an understanding of the key judgements,
parameters and assumptions that management
uses in its implementation of the ECL model,
including the identification of credit-impaired trade
receivables, the basis of segmentation of the
trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics of customers, the historical credit
loss data used in management’s estimated loss
rates;
THREEECEREREEFEERARERNE
BHE - 2EARR - 2EANEERERZE
H&*”IE BEEFHEAREERBREHR S EK

FIEMDHKE  BEEEMGEEXREERANE
Eﬁ%%ﬂa%ﬂ% ;
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Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Refer to Note 30(a) to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on page from 206
to 216.

The Key Audit Matter

BEETEE

We identified the ECL allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the gross carrying amount of the
trade receivables and the related ECL allowance are
material to the Group and determining the level of the ECL
allowance requires the exercise of significant management
judgement, which is inherently subjective.
BMBERGEBRBENEREEEERESN REARE
SEIE - REAZRSEKKIANRERERE@EREIRE
EEERGY BESREEEZE BEETRHGEERE
BHOKTEERBELEANAE  SFEANETETE
M o
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REEWHENEREEEERE
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BR °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNAEEZSEE

e for credit-impaired trade receivables, evaluating the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
collateralised assets with reference to market
information;

s BEEREXRSFEKREMNS  K2EMHELS
LTS EEREEESERRRRESNE

e assessing, whether items in the trade receivables
ageing reports were categorised in the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items
therein with relevant underlying sales invoices, on a
sample basis;

s BRHEWFIARKREKNIEIIAR LEMIBMIEE
SEETHELE  SHEEERRERSAEAR
BOREEENRKER

e testing the accuracy of the historical credit loss data
and evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current market
conditions and forward-looking information; and

o AIFBAEEEBBEENERE LT HBESRE
EREHR B AITSAR KA EREY) R E
54

e re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2022 based on the Group’s ECL
allowance policies.

e RiEF BESENTHEHEERERBEE  EEMA
BERZT-_—F+A=+—HHEBEEHE -
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FEMBHRR 2BIUZUAMRS

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EMRZIE AR S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHRR 2BIUZUAMRS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

e EMRZIE AR S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 T -+ _A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AARFIR)

Revenue —F 20
Cost of sales FHE KA
Gross profit E
Other income E bz
Distribution costs 2K A
Administrative expenses TR

Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables

R 5 K Bt UG IR R (B
B8R

Profit from operations reERR
Finance costs B RS R

Share of loss of an associate
Gain on disposal of an associate
Gain on loss of control on a subsidiary

D5 —HEE A RER
HE— B E R Rz s
REAH—FHMBARZ

72 |7 2 W e
Profit before taxation BB AT A
Income tax PS5t
Profit for the year FERF
Attributable to: BT ARG :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR R ERIR
Non-controlling interests SEERE R
Profit for the year FEEF
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (RMB yuan) BEXR(ARET)
Diluted (RMB yuan) #E(ARYT)

The notes on pages 189 to 318 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note
29(b).
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2022 2021
2022 & 20214

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARB¥Fx ARBTFT
3 16,933,064 15,432,900
(15,158,361) (13,621,056)

1,774,703 1,811,844

4 132,138 132,983
(288,446) (314,575)
(410,523) (401,076)
19 & 30(3) (552,098) (79,455)
655,774 1,149,721
5(a) (138,874) (101,063)
15 (5,016) (581)
- 3,460

- 3,664

5 511,884 1,055,201
6 (50,575) (168,084)
461,309 887,117

457,774 887,800
3,535 (683)

461,309 887,117

10

1.09 2.12

1.09 2.11

F19AREIBAZMERZENBHRERN —
#BD o AR RERBIREIEF BN 2 B

B IRE M FE29(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEREREMEENER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2 — T - —F+_-_F=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AARKEFIR)

2022 2021

2022 20214

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat ARET ARKETFT

Profit for the year FERF 461,309 887,117

Other comprehensive income for the FEH 2 mE Uz (FIRRBIE

year (after tax): %) : 9
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEF TR

profit or loss: HH -
Equity investments at FVOCl — net BN ER AR EE WS

movement in fair value reserve — AT EREEEFE

(non-recycling) (] Sl ) 2,298 -
Items that are or may be reclassified BASAE A EN

subsequently to profit or loss: Bz s IHA -
Exchange differences on translation of & B K fE LAINETS 2 BT 75

financial statements of operations WK EN ZERE

outside the Mainland China 1,455 (1,287)
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the IR&RE Y : YHmEEEE S

hedging reserve R (70,846) 110,217

Other comprehensive income for the FE H th & mEU
year (67,093) 108,930

Total comprehensive income for the F£EZ2HEUKZ AT

year 394,216 996,047
Attributable to: BT ALHELG :

Equity shareholders of the Company KRB EEIEE 390,681 996,730

Non-controlling interests IEPERR = 3,535 (683)

Total comprehensive income for the F£EZ2HE KA
year 394,216 996,047

The notes on pages 189 to 318 form part of these financial 25189E £318 8 v MizE AZE MG HRFH —
statements. Bhin o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Fa M BRR R

At 31 December 2022 R—_E-_—F+=-F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#5I7R)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Interest in an associate

Equity securities designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

(FVOCl)
Derivative financial instruments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Derivative financial instruments
Inventories and other contract costs
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Lease liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Current taxation |

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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2022 2021

2022 F 20214

12A31H 12A318

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt AR¥Fir ARBF T
11 2,845,925 2,534,160
11 199,052 169,427
3,044,977 2,703,587

12 401,813 330,465
13 2,998 3,410
15 3,959 8,975
16 32,847 11,183
17 8,556 =
28(b) 145,621 68,434
3,640,771 3,126,054

17 3,402 15,289
18 1,453,525 1,481,803
19(a) 4,751,383 4,667,569
19(b) 172,381 199,421
20 224,736 208,919
21 1,849,773 1,643,133
8,455,200 8,216,134

22 4,420,769 4,725,224
23 378,517 228,274
24 550,452 492,617
25 2,427 2,005
17 - 5,908
28(@a) 70,885 89,057
5,423,050 5,543,085

3,032,150 2,673,049

6,672,921 5,799,103




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FaMBRRR

At 31 December 2022 RZZE-__F+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AAR¥%IR)

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

2022 20214

12A31H 12 A31H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

et AR FT ARETFIT

Non-current liabilities FnBEE
Loans and borrowings ERREE 24 1,948,554 1,258,742
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 5,624 5,447
Deferred income PRIEUT A 26 41,579 25,566
Deferred tax liabilities EIEF B A& 28(b) 21,700 29,948
2,017,457 1,319,703
Net assets EEFEE 4,655,464 4,479,400
Capital and reserves R f#E
Share capital R 29 3,753 3,744
Reserves ] 4,648,118 4,475,598
Total equity attributable to equity ZAQTEFRREGERSAE
shareholders of the Company 4,651,871 4,479,342
Non-controlling interests IR R 3,593 58
Total equity AR 4,655,464 4,479,400

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 4202343 A 15 BEE E &b L IXHETEE -
March 2023.

Wang Li Liao Yuging
VA BExE

Chairman Executive Director
FE HITEF

The notes on pages 189 to 318 form part of these financial £ 189EE318H v Mt AL EMEHER —
statements. =[5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

.:. el B E
REREREER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2 T -+ _A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREFIR)

Balance at 1 January 2021

Changes in equity for 2021:
— Profit/ (loss) for the year
— Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Shares issued due to exercise of
share option scheme

Amounts transferred from
hedging reserve to initial
carying amount of hedged
items

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Recognition of employees’ share &7

option scheme
Appropriation to reserves
Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year

Balance at 31 December 2021
and 1 January 2022

Changes in equity for 2022:
— Profit for the year
— Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Shares issued due to exercise of
share option scheme

Amounts transferred from
hedging reserve to initial
carrying amount of hedged
items

Recognition of employees' share
option scheme

Appropriation to reserves

Dividend approved in fespect of
the previous year

Balance at 31 December 2022

The notes on
statements.
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KRARERRES
Fair value Non-
Share Share Capital Other ~ Statutory  Exchange  Hedging reserve  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  reserves reserve reserve (non-recyding)  earnings Total interests equity
AYERE
B4 BRGEE EARE  HbRE  iERE  ENRE  WMEE (FTEE) REEA it FERES BER
Notes  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wit ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETrn AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREfI
Note 29(c) ~ Note 29(d)() Note 29(ci)ii) Note 29(c)ii) Note 29(c)(iv) Note 29(a)(¥) Note 29(a)(vi) Note 29(c)vii)
Hi290) M2 ME290i) HE2900) 29 K290 29 K29
R0 E1 1R 288 3732 179,985 10,778 209,822 362,440 1,891 (4,830) - 2933374 3,697,192 741 3,697,933
WNFRERD
—FEEH - - - - - - - - 887800 887,800 (683) 887,117
—Et2ERE = - - - - (1.287) 10217 - - 108,930 - 108,930
2ENEEE = = = - - (128) 110217 - 887800 99,730 (683) 996,047
Sty BETE G
HRA 290) 12 8,063 (1,991) - - - = - - 6,084 - 6,084
EHREEEREAE
HHEENREER
300e) - - - - - - (97,660) - - (97,660) - (97,660)
BREEERET
27(b) - - 627 - - - - - - 627 - 627
EREER - - - - 35,240 - - - (350 - - =
BEFEAMENRE
29(b) - - - - - - - - (123631)  (123631) - (123,631)
R0 F128318R
W F1R182E8
3,744 188,048 9414 209,822 397,680 604 1121 - 3662303 4,479,342 58 4,479,400
AN FRERT
— EEEH - - - - - - - - 457,774 457,774 3,535 461,309
—Efp2ENRE - - - - - 1455 (70,846) 2,298 - (67.09) - (6709)
- - - - - 1455 (70,846) 2298 457774 390,681 3535 394216
R BRETEIMES
Bt 29(¢) 9 7,199 (1370) - - - - - - 5838 - 5838
EHARECRERR
HHEEMREEE
30() - - - - - - 63,119 - - 63,119 - 63,119
e R EREE
y 27(b) - - (1,690) - - - - - - (1,690) - (1,690)
ER2EE - - - - 8,790 - - - (8,790) - - -
BEFREHENRE
29(b) - (47,008) - - - - - - (238411)  (285419) - (285,419)
R2022%1283182
e 3753 148,239 6,354 209,822 406,470 2,059 - 2,298 3872876 4,651,871 3593 4,655,464

pages 189 to 318 form part of these financial
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
ZAEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 2T -+ _A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#7I/R)

2022 2021

2022 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kiat ARET ARKETFT

Operating activities RETEE

Cash generated from operations EIBFERS 21(b) 943,990 1,464,844
Income tax paid ERATEH 28(a) (138,260) (123,220)
Dividend withholding tax paid [=ERLESEE b 28(a) (14,718) (8,000)
Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid AT IS ET ([ I ER ) 28@) (245) (329)

Net cash generated from operating & EEFIERETHE

activities 790,767 1,333,295
Investing activities REEE
Interest received 2 AE 4 59,344 78,083
Proceeds received upon maturity of REERFHRE &2 WS

pledged deposits A 2,384,619 2,224,825
Payment for pledged deposits [mEEwCiVER AN (2,400,436) (2,263,186)
Payment for purchase of property, plant BEE%%¥ - BiE L& &R

and equipment and land use rights fEAREZ TR0 (975,097) (686,834)
Payment for deposit of commodity AmBAE S ARE 2T

futures contracts (141,000) (15,000)
Refund from deposit of commodity EEmBESNIREREN

futures contracts FTiS70A 161,869 28,861
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BFE MEREFRF

plant and equipment WIE 20,312 2,815
Proceeds from disposal of associate HEB & QT TS KIE - 10,000
Dividend received from associate BUEE QT2 RE - 27,655
Payment for purchase of unlisted equity B& & IF R ANE S 2 {50

securities - (11,183)
Loss of control on a subsidiary, net of 525 ¥ P} BB 2 T) A9 4% il

cash disposed HBREHEZR S - (854)
Net cash used in investing activities R&EEEFTARETE (890,389) (604,818)

............................................................................................................. Annual Reporf 2022 %5 187



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FAERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —ZT-—"F+-_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AARFIR)

Financing activities REEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

AN

ENEE A
SRS Z S E

77
Interest paid BEAHLE
Proceeds from loans and borrowings ERNEERERE
Repayment of loans and borrowings EEERMEE

BB T D EITRNZ
PR RIR
ENARBREBRR 2R

Proceeds from shares issued under share
option scheme

Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the Company

Net cash generated from financing ®B&EEE TSR EFE
activities
Net increase in cash and cash BERBESEEYIEINFERE

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

R12A3MEHMWRERES
£EY

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

The notes on pages 189 to 318 form part of these financial
statements.

188

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED HZ$45 2472 f8 5 R /A 7]

Note
HfaF

21(c)
21(c)
21(c)
21(c)
21(c)

29(c)

29(b)

R1B1ENBEERESEEY

21(@a)

21(a)

2022 2021
2022 & 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKEFIT
(1,985) (1,603)
(515) (397)
(139,052) (92,742)
3,527,664 3,267,714
(2,780,017) (2,646,647)
5,838 6,084
(285,419) (123,631)
326,514 408,778
226,892 1,137,255
1,643,133 509,639
(20,252) (3,761)
1,849,773 1,643,133

FI189BE318E 2T AZSEIBHREN—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= =
e BHRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
(BR=HEHEBIN - BREUAAREIIR)

1 Significant accounting policies 1 FESTTEX

(a) Statement of compliance (a) SREHN

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (”IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
("IASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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Nofes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nv'.R

BB SRR MY 5T

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BR=BEHAN
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group's interest in an associate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand,
which is the functional currency of the major subsidiaries
carrying out the principal activities of the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

— investments in debt and equity securities (see Note
1(f)); and

— derivative financial instruments (see Note 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(0
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(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
IFRSs issued by the IASB to these financial statements for
the current accounting period:

o Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendment to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts
— cost of fulfilling a contract

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended IFRSs are discussed below:
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting the
proceeds from selling items produced before that asset is
available for use from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds and the
related costs should be included in profit and loss. The
amendments do not have a material impact on these
financial statements as the Group does not sell items
produced before an item of property, plant and
equipment is available for use.

Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous
contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purposes of
assessing whether a contract is onerous, the costs of
fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only incremental costs
when determining whether a contract was onerous. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the new accounting policy to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January
2022, and has concluded that none of them is onerous.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEER®)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) HMEARKRIEZERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with Notes 1(r) or (s)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(f)) or
when'lappropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
interest in an associate (see Note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,

investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 1(m)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (Note 1(m)(i)). At each reporting date, the
Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method,
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate, after applying the ECL model to such other
long-term interests where applicable (see Note 1(m)(i)).
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e)

()

Associate (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(f)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in associate are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see Note 1(m)).

Other investments in debt and equity
securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see Note 30(f). These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.
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FESTTHE®)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity () HuEBEREBRAZRSFRE(Z)
securities (Continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1

(i) Investments other than equity
investments

(i) HRFAEZFRE

Non-equity investments held by the Group are RNEBEFA R IERR ARG E A
classified into one of the following measurement ARESR—{EztZ585 :
categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest
method (see Note 1(w)(ii)(c)).

fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and
losses. When the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised
in profit or loss.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(f) Other investments in debt and equity

securities (Continued)

(ii) Equity investments

1 FESTHEHE®
() HEERBRELREH)

(i) REZZFRE

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an irrevocable election
to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 1(w)(ii)

(b).
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(g) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged

(see Note 1(h)).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 1 FESHEER®)

(h) Hedging (h) i

The Group designates the derivative as hedging
instrument to hedge commodity price risk arising from
highly probable forecast transation(cash flow hedges).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of any gain or loss on the derivative financial
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset such as
inventory, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost of the non-
financial asset.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserve is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss
(such as when a forecast sale occurs or interest expense
is recognised).

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting (including when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. When hedge
accounting is discontinued, but the hedged forecast
transaction is still expected to occur, the amount that has
been accumulated in the hedging reserve remains in
equity until the transaction occurs and it is recognised in
accordance with the above policy. If the hedged
transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
amount that has been ac